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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”), and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) specialise in the production and distribution
of instant noodles, beverages and instant food products in the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC"). The Group started its instant noodle
business in 1992, and expanded into the instant food business and
beverage business in 1996. In March 2012, the Group further expanded
its beverage business by forming a strategic alliance with PepsiCo for the
beverage business in the PRC. The Company exclusively manufactures,
bottles, packages, distributes and sells PepsiCo non-alcoholic drinks in
the PRC. The Group's three main business segments have established
leading market shares in the PRC's food industry. According to AC
Nielsen December 2017 data, based on sales volume, in 2017, the
Group was the market leader in instant noodles, ready-to-drink teas
and egg rolls, having gained 44.2%, 50.7% and 22.7% market shares
respectively. In the overall juice drink market, the Group gained 18.1%
market share, ranked No.2 in the market. In bottled water, the Group
gained 14.1%, ranked No.3. According to GlobalData December 2017
data, based on sales volume, Pepsi carbonated drinks had 31.2%
market share and held a second position. After years of hard work and
accumulation, “Master Kong” has become one of the best known
brands among consumers in the PRC.

Being a leading brand in the fast moving consumer goods industry,
Master Kong has to hold the industry responsibility of food safety
and quality guarantee. The Group constantly builds and improves
management system, establishes risk prevention management system,
implements entire control over food safety and ensures product quality
and safety. We will constantly strive for product quality and food safety,
as well as provide consumers with safe, tasty and healthy food.

The Group distributed its products throughout the PRC through
its extensive sales network consisting of 369 sales offices and 92
warehouses serving 35,163 wholesalers and 129,449 direct retailers
as of 31 December 2017. This extensive sales network is a significant
contributor to the Group’s leading market position and it enables the
Group to introduce new products rapidly and effectively.

The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
in February 1996. Market capitalisation as at 31 December 2017 was
US$10.9 billion. The Company is a constituent stock of Morgan Stanley
Capital International (MSCI) China Index and Hang Seng China (Hong
Kong-listed) 100 Index.

Focused on food manufacture, sales and circulation business, the Group
will continue to strengthen its logistics and sales network in the PRC
with target of becoming “The largest Group for Chinese Instant Food &
Beverage in the World".
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Sales Network

¥ Zhengzhou
;
B Chongaing #iM Hangzhou
L

4£7E Bity xE M =0 & BE HiZ [iif=3 Hith &%
Production Centre Tianjin Hangzhou Guangzhou Shenyang Chongqing  Wuhan Xian  Other Centres  Total
F{EMAE 9 16
Instant Noodles
B ER & & & - 100
Beverage h h h
FERMBE
Instant Food

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

e g2 #E e g2

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of

& EEF Sales Office 566 582 606 598 369
2 E Warehouse 75 77 73 69 92
#Z$H7 Wholesale 33,504 36,837 30,095 33,653 35,163
H&ZTER Direct Retailer 110,355 118,359 116,036 116,222 129,449
BT A% Employee 80,541 79,003 69,425 65,182 56,995
4 E 4 Production Line 654 697 711 719 676
4 EE M Production Centre 119 129 132 126 118
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Financial Summary

mealEE
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
BEZ12A318LLEE
For the years ended 31 December
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ANBEFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(m=E51) (ZE7) (B=51) (m=51)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
Wz Revenue 58,953,788 55,578,849 57,277,611 63,170,397 67,201,786
BB AR Profit before taxation 3,392,736 2,433,516 2,966,807 4,279,459 4,440,749
HE Taxation (1,137,368)  (1,051,453) (1,195,625) (1,288,461)  (1,404,592)
AEE T Profit for the year 2,255,368 1,382,063 1,771,182 2,990,998 3,036,157
iyl Profit attributable to:
ARFRRE Owners of the Company 1,819,077 1,161,699 1,612,968 2,471,054 2,509,359
DY R ER Non-controlling interests 436,291 220,364 158,214 519,944 526,798
FEEREF Profit for the year 2,255,368 1,382,063 1,771,182 2,990,998 3,036,157
& Dividends 909,539 580,849 806,485 1,235,527 1,254,680
AR¥7 ANEER ANRER ARES ARES
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents
FRHM Earnings per share
HA Basic 32.45 20.73 28.78 4413 44.85
e Diluted 32.42 20.73 28.75 44.01 44.72
REDEIZER

2017 Annual Report £ 03



B % E | Financial Summary

e BERRE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B12A31H
As at 31 December
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ABETFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(& E5) (lmE5) (& E5) el
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
REMEHE Investment properties 1,106,000 1,060,000 1,003,200 — —
WE - B LERE Property, plant and equipment 28,014,779 32,556,784 35,041,574 36,325,551 33,246,837
TR EE Prepaid lease payments 3,730,767 3,932,435 3,946,771 4,571,062 1,933,318
A NETl Interests in associates 120,568 160,538 190,948 198,201 176,081
BENAIELR Interests in joint ventures 660,691 676,408 555,405 459,674 486,577
B EE Intangible asset 162,936 179,179 172,404 169,264 170,068
HitdEneEE Other non-current assets 1,362,410 917,910 1,016,348 818,646 441,189
FRBEE (8F) Net current asset (liabilities) (5,038,644)  (6,670,267)  (6,360,668)  (8,016,615)  (7,366,698)
E =Y Non-current liabilities (7,825,463)  (8,712,408) (10,390,286)  (9,136,762)  (5,288,363)
FEE Net assets 22,294,044 24,100,579 25,175,696 25,389,021 23,799,009
BT Issued capital 235,053 234,767 234,710 234,738 234,511
R Reserves 18,177,026 17,888,773 18,477,329 18,501,335 17,147,794
DHRR R Non-controlling interests 3,881,965 5977,039 6,463,657 6,652,948 6,416,704
PR A% Total equity 22,294,044 24,100,579 25,175,696 25,389,021 23,799,009
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The 25th Anniversary of Master Kong
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Group revenue
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Chairman’s Statement
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At the milestone of its 25th anniversary, the Group still adheres to the
ideals of serving consumers when it was founded. It persisted in leading
the upgrade of the industry and promoting corporate transformation.
With “Consolidation, Innovation and Development” as its guiding
strategy, it also had “Return to glory” as its goal for the next 25 years,
anticipating more brilliant achievements.

In 2017, the Group’s revenue was RMB58,953.8 million, profit
attributable to owners of the Company was RMB1,819.1 million and
earnings per share was RMB32.45 cents. The Board will recommend the
payment of a final dividend of US2.49 cents per share. Total amount of
final dividend for the year 2017 will be US$139.6 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB909.5 million).

Although the performance of the Group improved this year, members
of the Board and | hope that the operation team will act with caution
and grasp the opportunities brought by urbanization. Various reforms
were implemented “To fulfill the needs of people’s lives as our business
fundamental, with the demands of the middle class as the core for
development and to win together with our customers and partners as
the foundation for success”. Generation change was implemented in
the organization. Master Kong employees will adhere to its corporate
culture of integrity, practicality and innovation in their dedicated effort
to meet consumers’ needs, maintaining food safety and fulfilling
corporate social responsibility. | wish that our consumers, employees
and shareholders will continue to give their support to Master Kong, so
that together we could move towards a more sustainable and brighter
future.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt appreciation
to all fellows of the Board, the management and all staff and customers.

Wei Ing-Chou
Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC
20 March 2018
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To fulfill the needs of people’s lives as our business fundamental,

With the demands of the middle class as the core for development and
To win together with our customers and partners as the foundation for success

T F, Chief Executive Officer EZE R Chairman
BREMIEH
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Group Structure
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Note: This chart illustrates TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING
COPR's direct or indirect proportion of ownership interest of

its Principal Subsidiaries. * represents direct translation

of registered name in Chinese.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The national economy of China had a stable performance with good
momentum in 2017. Structural supply-side reform was thoroughly
implemented. GDP has a year-on-year growth of 6.9%. The total
population grew steadily. The urbanization rate increased to 58.52%,
showing a clearly diversified trend of consumption. The rise in consumer
prices was mild throughout the year. However, prices of raw materials
such as PET and paper material increased significantly. The overall prices
for raw materials remained high.

Under the macro environment the Group continued to proceed the
established strategy of transformation and upgrading. Supply-side
reform initiated successfully in the period. The Group reduced capital
expenditure, increased capacity utilization and optimized free cash
flow, through approaches such as asset-light, activation on asset,
and organization delayering. For products, the multi-pricing strategy
continued to target the middle class on the rise while consolidating the
mass market. There were efforts in strengthening the brand, planning
for emerging channels, precise costs control and strict adherence to
high quality food safety standard. In the process of organizational
reform, good talent management was practiced continuously. With
multiple approaches taken and the strategy of “Consolidate, Reform
and Develop”, the Group continued to lead the upgrade of the industry

at the 25th anniversary of the launch of Master Kong instant noodles.

EEMEERARA R
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In 2017, the Group's revenue increased by 6.07% to RMB58,953.8
million yoy (year-on-year compared with the corresponding period
in 2016). Revenue from instant noodles and beverages increased by
4.91% and 6.96%, respectively, yoy. Due to the rising price from main
raw materials such as sugar, PET resin and paper material, the Group's
gross profit margin dropped by 1.86ppt. to 29.41% yoy. Distribution
costs represented 19.11% of the revenue for the year and decreased
by 2.61ppt. yoy. EBITDA of the Group in 2017 increased by 10.63%
to RMB7,202.2 million yoy, EBITDA margin increased by 0.51ppt. to
12.22% yoy. Benefited by revenue growth and decline on distribution
costs, profit attributable to owners of the Company during the year
increased by 56.59% to RMB1,819.1 million. Profit margin attributable
to owners was 3.09%, increased by 1.00 ppt. yoy, earnings per share
increased by RMB11.72 cents to RMB32.45 cents.

’-J;fh. L. M-lmi
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Instant Noodle Business

According to the data from Nielsen, the instant noodle industry is
showing a warming trend, overall sales volume increased by 0.3% while
sales amount grew by 3.6% in 2017. The market shares of Master Kong
in terms of sales volume and sales amount were 44.2% and 50.6%,
respectively, maintained No.1 position. The Group continued to lead
the industry towards a positive competition. Master Kong gained a yoy
growth in its rapid development in the premium noodles market. The
sales of premium soup products mainly catering to the high-end market
was promising.

During the year of 2017, the Group's revenue from the instant noodle
business was RMB22,620.2 million, which grew by 4.91% yoy,
accounting for 38.37% of the total revenue of the Group. During the
year, prices of main materials such as flour, palm oil and paper material
maintained at high level, the Group has modified product mix and
thanked for the sales volume growth, gross profit margin of instant
noodles kept same level as last year at 28.79%. Benefited by revenue
growth and saving from distribution costs, profit attributable to owners
of the Company in the overall instant noodle business increased by
27.34% to RMB1,490.5 million, profit margin attributable to owners
increased by 1.16ppt. to 6.59% yoy.

The instant noodle business adhered to the multi-price strategy of the
Group. It consolidated the high-end noodle markets and developed
its premium noodles market. In the 25th anniversary of launching
Master Kong braised beef noodles, sports marketing was implemented
in collaboration with marathon, women’s volleyball and CUBA. In
the 4th quarter, we also kicked off our cooperation with the Chinese
aerospace industry. We further improved the food safety and research
and development capability. In combination of the “Tianjin Dream
Exploration Paradise (KEZEBIRERLZE])", which was established for
teenagers’ popular science education in food safety and aerospace, we
conveyed a safe and healthy image of instant noodles to consumers and
enhanced brand image and favorability, leading further development of
the industry.
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High-end noodles

High-end noodles consolidated hero products to ascertain a stable
growth of an expanded sales and create demand with products of
multiple specifications. In its 25th year, Master Kong continued to
strengthen its brand dissemination and interaction. Sports marketing
was launched to convey a safe and healthy brand image.

“Braised Beef” expanded its consumption group to young families with
multiple specifications such as jumbo noodles, dry noodles and mini
cups. Through creating the association of “a happy family in modern
China”, the consumption occasion can become broader. “Spicy Beef/
Fried Pepper Beef/Pickled Pepper Beef/Pungent Beef” collaborated
with popular game “King of Glory” to start in-depth cooperation and
it strengthened the young image of the Master Kong brand. There
were 440 million times of brand exposure during the campaign,
which promoted sales effectively. “Pickled Mustard” continued to put
emphasis on its brand vitality. It cooperated with Kung Fu Panda in
promotional campaign to circulate the micro movie “Kung Fu of one
bowl noodle”, which convey the message that Master Kong Picked
Mustard as a bowl of supreme noodles with Kung Fu in an entertaining
manner to families with teenagers and the younger consumer groups,
bringing steady and stable growth in results. A new flavour “Ratten
pepper beef” was launched in September. Its rich spicy and fresh taste
is created by numerous types of chili in order to meet the consumption
demand for trendy tastes.

Premium noodles/innovative products

A strong premium product operation continued and there was
innovative product input and layout to follow the demand for high-end
and healthy products of the middle class. Among premium products,
the premium soup series which promoted “less additives, rich, delicious,
healthy and nutritious” was still the focus in 2017 with numerous new
flavors and specifications. With an emphasis on its delicious rib soup
and the stylish idea of being both healthy and tasty was recognized
by consumers and gained a double in sales. “Pork Rib” continued its
nationwide expansion and introduced the new flavor of “Ratten pepper
pork rib”. The sales increased with the marketing activity “giveaway of
a million mini cups”. “Golden Stock” responded to diverse demands
of consumers with new flavor “Golden Stock Pork Belly”. It raised
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awareness by using online advertisement, the “Xiao Ka Xiu" app and
“Mom Group” in combination. “Pepper” had a young and fashionable
positioning. The new Cantonese flavor of “Pepper pork belly and
chicken” was launched in December. With traditional stock and trendy
flavors, it attracted young consumers who are up for trying new flavors.
With respect to innovation in product technology, “Cook noodles
series” which emphasized a strong texture was launched in the first
quarter. In addition, the non-fried “DIY noodle” was launched in the
second quarter. Through its continuous collaboration with Lang Ping/
Zhu Ting in the “Caring Companion Plan”, it gained praise from the
consumers and strengthened its healthy brand image.

Mid-end noodles/Snack noodles

Mid-end noodles emphasized market consolidation and satisfying the
demand for large-sized noodles. “Jin Shuang” was promoted through
various ways such as input of advertising resources, resource integration
and enhancing penetration to maintain its position as a market leader.
For snack noodles, “Xiang Bao Cui” and “Cui Xuan Feng”, which are
positioned as leisure snacks, collaborated with popular mobile games.
Online and offline communication with consumers were integrated to
establish an innovative image.

EEMEERARA R
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Beverage Business

According to the data from Nielsen, the growth of the beverage
industry in China saw a stable growth in 2017. The sales volume and
sales amount of the beverage industry grew by 9.5% and 10.2%,
respectively, on a yoy basis in 2017. In 2017, the ready-to-drink (RTD)
tea (including milk tea) of the Group’s beverage business accounted for
50.7% market share in terms of sales volume and continued to secure
top ranking position in the market. The fruit juice brands under Master
Kong and Tropicana accounted for a market share of 18.1% in 2017,
ranked No.2 in the market. Market share for bottled water in 2017
was 14.1%, ranking No.3 in the market for the time being. According
to the database of GlobalData, in terms of sales volume, the overall
market share of Pepsi carbonated drinks increased by 0.6ppt. to 31.2%
in 2017, as compared to the same period of last year, ranked No.2. The
market share of Pepsi Cola increased to 48.6% in the cola carbonated
drinks market in 2017 and was the No.1 brand in the market.

In 2017, the overall revenue of the beverage business was RMB34,754.3
million, increased by 6.96% yoy, accounting for 58.95% of the
Group's total revenue. During the year, gross profit margin of the
beverage business decreased by 3.14ppt. to 29.82% yoy, mainly due
to price increase from main raw materials such as sugar, PET resin and
paper material. Because of revenue growth and saving on advertising
and promotion expenses, finance costs and exchange losses, profit
attributable to owners in the beverage business for the year amounted
to RMB426.0 million, representing a significant increase by 141.75%
yoy. Profit margin attributable to owners increased by 0.69ppt. yoy to
1.23%.

Our beverage business still adopted the strategy of focusing on
evergreen product categories and consolidating core products. Through
a multi-price range and specification satisfaction, it has a firm foothold
in the mass market and serves the middle class. In line with the principles
of cost control and simplifying input, channel diversification and
penetration of indoor channels were promoted. There was dedicated
effort in sports marketing and cooperation with brand equity, of which
the collaboration with Disney raised brand awareness. In the process of
activation on asset and asset-light, the integrated effectiveness/efficiency
of supply chain was enhanced by variety of asset disposal methods.
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RTD Tea

RTD tea successfully consolidated the mass market. It attracted young
consumers and the household market through sports marketing, brand
equity collaboration, new flavours and new packages and maintained
the top place in the tea drinks market. “Master Kong Ice Tea” is
dedicated to creating a young and energetic brand image. Through
its strategic cooperation with NBA, Master Kong jointly introduced
the exclusive package for China and launched a series of marketing
activities. Master Kong also launched the “Minions” limited edition
package and strengthened the household consumption market. The
“Jasmine Series” appealed to young consumers through collaboration
with the popular drama “Once upon a time"” and consolidated its
position as a market leader. “Green Tea"” also catered to the trend of
fruity flavours and launched “Pomelo green tea” and “Plum green tea”.
It can also continue its effort in sports marketing by integrating events
such as nationwide cycling. It deepened the healthy and energetic image
of the brand and achieved sales growth. The sales of “Classic Milk Tea”
continued to grow rapidly and seized the market share.
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Bottled water

The multiple price range strategy was implemented continuously for
bottled water of low and middle prices. There were various scenarios
supported by multiple specifications for the products to gain a firm
foothold in the mass market and to plan for the development of high-
end products. The low-priced “Master Kong bottled drinking water”
actively seized indoor channels and gained positive response through
communicating the message of “the eight processes with national
patent to care for your family’s health”. The mid-priced “Youyue”
collaborated with popular TV drama “Old to Joy II” and “ER Doctors”.
It also promoted and established its brand image of NSF certified
internationally and high quality through sponsoring large-scale events
such as the “Belt and Road Media Cooperation Forum” and sports
marketing with NBA. Such image gathered and appealed to the white-
collar consumption groups. Youyue also launched its 2 liter package in
December to seize the drinking water market of middle class families.
The high-priced mineral water “Han Yang Quan” cooperated with
Shanghai Disney Resort and effectively established a high-end brand
image.

Carbonated drinks

In 2017, the performance of the carbonated drinks business
was remarkable and the overall market share achieved a positive
improvement, which was attained by developing diverse channels,
introducing multiple specifications, expanding consumption occasions,
increasing online and offline interaction with consumers and other
approaches. The Lunar New Year theme marketing campaign “Bring
Happiness Home 2017 (BHH 2017)" of “Pepsi/Mirinda/7-up” highly
integrated online and offline resources, gathered actors who are
popular in Chinese version of “growing pains” to shoot the microfilm,
attracted a lot of attention on social platforms, and increased the
brand favorability again. Pepsi expanded consumption occasions with
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new specifications and new packages. “Pepsi Concept Store” and its
offline pop-up stores were built for closer interaction with consumers.
The joint-limited edition “Pepsi Black” was launched with renowned
designers and became a style indicator. “Mirinda” cooperated with
Tencent WeGame in its promotional activity and implanted advertising
in the most popular online talk show “U can U BIBI” to convey the “Mess
with Your Senses” brand image. “7-up” increased its brand favorability
effectively by launching the “retro can” and carrying out “7-up mixed
drink” activity.

Juice drinks

By creating scenarios for consumption and expand channels such as
catering and takeaway, the Group reinforced its leading position in
Chinese style juice drinks and drove the development in the market of
Western style juice drinks at the same time. Chinese style juice drinks
developed channels through “Match with gourmet” activities, among
which “Rock Candy Pear” educated young families about timing for
food and drinks consumption with the slogan of “Nourishing Chinese
diet” and strengthened its channel penetration. “Tradition Fruit Mix
Sour Plum” made its entry to hotpot restaurants and food street with
its Chinese classic image of “reducing grease” to attach the product
to hotpot. Among Western style juice drinks, “Master Kong Juices”
strengthened its sales during the festive season with the promotional
activity “auspicious words in your mother tongue”. Tropicana gained
positive feedback and additional growth by introducing the new flavor
of “green coconut and lychees” and new specification, and integrating

online and offline marketing efforts.
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Functional drinks/Probiotics

“Gatorade” continued to enhance consumers’ awareness of sports
education and establish the brand image of professional sports drink
through sports marketing. Through “NBA Chinese matches”, joint
events with the nationwide chain “Rucker Sports Park”/running group/
sports events/sports brands, joint marketing with sports apps, we
successfully gained the preference and recognition of consumers.

“Wei Chuan Ambient Probiotics Drink” launched the strawberry flavor
and was upgraded with a new packaging and European strain. Its sales
region was further expanded. While consolidating its growth in the
Yangtze River Delta and Shanghai market, it was gradually extended to
the whole country, achieving a healthy double-digit growth in 2017.

Coffee drinks

Bottled Frappuccino produced in cooperation with our international
strategic partner Starbucks continued to lead the growth in the high-
end RTD coffee market in China. In 2017, Frappuccino accelerated
its regional expansion and city coverage by following the footprint
of Starbucks’ retail stores. The focus was on e-commerce business
and development of specialty channels, which further expanded
points of distribution and drinking occasions of our products. With
respect to product innovation, “Matcha Frappuccino” and “Black
Tea Frappuccino” successfully promoted the Starbucks brand to the
RTD tea market. The Christmas limited offer “Holiday Cookie Mocha
Frappuccino” also brought the successful experience of limited time
offer in Starbucks retail stores to the RTD market.

“Bernachon coffee” continued to expand the room temperature mid-
high-priced RTD coffee market. Market expansion began from the
modern channels in Beijing, Shanghai, the Yangtze River Delta and the
Pearl River Delta and gradually developed nationwide with a remarkable
trend. The brand positioning of “Masterpiece” tasting grade coffee
using advanced extraction technology steadily improved sales. After
successfully launching the four flavours of “Classic Italian”, “Classic
Manddheling”, “Matcha Latte”and "“Coffee Latte”, “Mocha Latte”
was newly launched in the 4th quarter to provide more options for
consumers.

REDBEIZAR

2017 Annual Report £ 19



i

BRI E S 4 | Management Discussion and Analysis

hERmER

BEBATIHERER 2017 F2F8%
BEmMEHERNETR1.3% @ HERL
RE1.9% + EpksrsziiE R K R
1.0% * $HEERLEA R 4.4% ° 2017 FEZAD
BEMEIHEENIEH266%  BEHHE—
7 LB HEMEA11.7%  EWH

Efi -

REBFERGEFENR2017FRE A
8590 AR - ALLZEER6.10% - (AR
EEBUWE1.46% - BHAEFEF L T %
1.00 A D2 E35.66% ° B ERDH
AT S2017FFERABERE
RN EIBRERE2306BARE - [
LE 25 96.78%

HERBFEANFERERTRE  BEX
DEEBE RS - HITERRRZERS
EmmeHENE BEEFTRETAR
RZS  BEBRARFERERR RAEE
BEELERN  BREMatER AR
AAEE RS - LEBRYHIREED -
[3+2ROLBE RN BER/NEBRER W
RHEBELVEZRZHERNBEER R I
MEFmE S BREMEN3+2 L &1
ROBE DA BB EHREMNER I
AR 56 QR Z MM AR 21T ERL
2 B4RLMUARRETRHENTSER
o mmEHEEFMRRZHER - HH
BETRERTOHRE  BERRIMGE
RBE -

EEMEERARA R

20 TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Instant Food Business

According to the data from Nielsen, overall sales volume of the biscuit
market for the full year of 2017 decreased by 1.3% yoy, sales amount
increased slightly by 1.9% yoy, of which sales volume of sandwich
crackers increased by 1.0% and sales amount increased by 4.4% yoy.
In terms of sales amount, the market share of Master Kong egg rolls
increased to 26.6% and ranked No.1 in the market. The market share
of sandwich crackers was 11.7% and ranked No.2 in the market.

In 2017, revenue of the instant food business dropped by 6.10%
to RMB859.0 million yoy and amounting for 1.46% of the Group's
revenue. Gross profit margin decreased by 1.00ppt. to 35.66% yoy.
Due to the saving on distribution costs, as a result, a reduction of overall
losses in the year of 2017 to a loss of RMB2.306 million, improved by
96.78% yoy.

The instant food business continued its established strategy of
consolidating its core operation of cake and cracker brands and
introducing products of multiple specification and price ranges to cater
to different consumption tiers, demands for healthy diet and different
food consumption occasions. Emerging channels were vigorously
established. Meanwhile, efficient management was implemented
through improving production model and the cost refinement project
was started to reduce the stress from increasing raw material prices.
"“3+2 sandwich crackers” made rigorous development in small package
products to meet consumers’ needs for small amount, diverse and
higher frequency. It also developed “3+2 germ soda crackers”, a new
product rich in dietary fiber, for health-conscious consumers. There was
also differentiated operation of the localized sesame and mung beans.
The market response has been favorable since its launch in April. Gift
packs of different price ranges were introduced to satisfy the needs for
gifts during the festive season and closely follow the upward trend in
the gift pack market.
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FINANCING

The Group continued to maintain a stable and healthy financial
structure through effective control of trade receivables, trade payables,
bank balances and cash and inventories. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group's cash and bank deposits totalled RMB10,284.9 million,
an increase of RMB53.1 million from 31 December 2016. A sufficient
amount of cash holding was still maintained. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group's total assets and total liabilities amounted to approximately
RMB54,099.2 million and RMB31,805.1 million respectively. This
showed a decline in RMB2,421.9 million and a decline in RMB615.3
million respectively compared to 31 December 2016. The debt ratio
increased by 1.43ppt. to 58.79% compared to 31 December 2016.
Gearing ratio was 32.07% on 31 December 2016 and dropped to
22.26% on 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's total interest-bearing borrowings
decreased by RMB1,659.7 million to RMB14,384.3 million. In the
interim, the Group has repaid 500 million listed US$ notes (equivalent to
RMB3,383.6 million) and 1 billion unlisted RMB notes in June and July
2017 respectively. At the end of the year, the Group’s proportion of the
total borrowings denominated in foreign currencies and Renminbi were
69% and 31% respectively, as compared to 72% and 28% respectively
as at 31 December 2016. The proportion between the Group’s long-
term borrowings and short-term borrowings was 46% and 54%
respectively, as compared to 43% and 57% respectively as at 31
December 2016. In line with the Group’s overall strategy of cash being
the king, Master Kong has implemented sound control over capital
expenditure and has effectively promoted asset-light and activation on
asset, which is expected to generate stable cash inflows. During the
year, the Group sold the entire equity interests in four subsidiaries under
the Group’s beverage business to an independent third party, realised
a net cash inflow of RMB663.1 million. In anticipation of the long-term
performance of the beverage business in the future, the Group acquired
20.4% TAB (Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd.) shares which
held by the joint venture partner AIB (Al Beverage Holding Co., Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Asahi Group) at the aggregate consideration
of approximately US$611.9 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,987 million) in December 2017. In the future, the Group will
continue to gradually reduce the size of interest-bearing borrowings
with its own funds so as to achieve more flexible and healthier financial
structure objectives and further improve the operational basis.
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Adjustments in organizational structure were introduced organizational
hierarchies were reduced to accommodate corporate transformation
and upgrade. Organizational hierarchies were reduced to make the
organization lighter, more effective and closer to market and enhance
responsiveness. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 56,995
employees. Among them, 7 employees were holders of doctoral degree,
329 employees were holders of master’s degrees, 30,524 employees
were graduates of bachelor’s degrees and post-secondary level,
accounting for 54% of the Group’s total number of employees; 26,135
employees had education qualifications below post-secondary level,
accounting for 46% of the Group’s total number of employees.

In the process of organizational reform, the Group paid more attention
to talent selection and nurturing. Evaluation and training system
was set up for staff from different levels. Talents were selected and
developed with precision. The focus was on the leadership of high-level
management, who had a customized personal development plan for
their knowledge and skills, experience and integrated abilities. A “mentor
and coach mechanism” and the training course of China Europe
International Business School and Shanghai Jiao Tong University were
introduced. Systematic management and differentiated cultivation were
established for medium and lower level management in order to build
a backup force. A training system was established for staff at all levels
in an integrated manner, covering corporate culture, management,
professionalism and liberal studies.

Considering long-term and sustainable development, the Group also
highly values the talent pool in schools. The Group actively participated
in campus recruitment in 2017 and strengthened its cooperation with
medium level vocational schools. The Group has implemented the
Young Master talent reserve project for campus recruitment in 2018. It
also adheres to the spirit of the 19th CPC National Congress report and
actively promotes cooperation with medium level vocational training
schools in the country. There has been cooperation with 39 vocational
schools, achieving resources sharing and complementing between
schools and enterprises. Through the training model of integrating
production and education, skilled labour with craftsman spirit can be
cultivated.
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Looking ahead in 2018, the volatile global economy, the urbanization
and the rapid rise of middle class in China lead to diverse consumption
demands. The Group faces numerous challenges such as demographic
changes, constant increase of raw material prices and macro policy
adjustments.

Under the irreversible upward trend of raw material prices, based on
consumers’ needs, the Group will consistently strengthen the revenue
management through product upgrade, formula improvement,
specification optimization and other methods to stabilize the gross
profit. Strict control over food safety is the unwavering policy of the
Group as we firmly believe in food safety being the foundation of
packaged food and beverage manufacturers.

After starting aerospace cooperation in November 2017, the Group
will further pursue the food safety with aerospace quality and scientific
spirit. We will promote high-end R&D on food safety and turn the
results into application. We will also provide constructive inputs for
the formulation and update of the national food safety standards,
facilitating an all-rounded improvement in the industry’s food safety
standard. We will also integrate aerospace into the popular science of
food safety to educate the new generation of consumers.

WIN NOW
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For corporate transformation and upgrade, the Group will continue to
implement the reform of three rationalizations in 2018 to adopt the
experience of reform in instant noodles in the beverage business:

1. With respect to supply chain configuration rationalization,
there should be response to multiple consumption tiers. Explore
potential of supply chain potential and promote asset-light and
activation on asset through production and sales coordination and
the optimization of capacity allocation;

2. With respect to dealer layout rationalization, in response to the
development trend of channel fragmentation, there should be
expansion of diverse channels and the building of a stronger
partnership with wholesalers/dealers which we will leverage to
achieve a win-win situation;

3. With respect to organizational design and cost rationalization,
operational efficiency will be improved. To organizational
transformation and upgrade, the Group will constantly optimize
its process, simplify its management, accelerate the progress of
information digitalization, facilitate the setting up of the service
sharing mechanism and pursue the specialization of talents.

The Group will uphold food safety as its highest priority. It will extend
the supply-side reform, continue to promote asset-light and activation
on asset to reduce capital expenditure and continue the optimization
of free cash flow. It will continue to focus on its core advantage and
accelerate the upgrade of products to satisfy the diverse needs of
consumers. With the idea and conviction of being rooted in the China
market, the Group is looking forward to promoting the upgrade and
improvement of the industry together with partners in the stable
Chinese economic environment with improving momentum.
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FEATURE: 25 YEARS' DEDICATION TO YOU!

2017 was the 25th anniversary of Master Kong. In the past 25 years,
with the rapid development of China’s economy and the love and trust
of consumers, Master Kong has grown from the first bowl of Roasted
Beef Noodle in 1992 to a large-scale food and beverage group, with an
annual turnover of nearly US$10 billion.

Grateful for the favors received, Master Kong has embraced the vision
of “Being the Most Admired Food & Beverage Enterprising Company”,
contributing actively to the country and national development,
continuously improving the performance of corporate social
responsibility, committing to providing consumers with safer, more
convenient, delicious, and value for money products.

25 years’ commitment with initial vision of quality to achieve
excellent results with aerospace technology. Since the birth of
the brand in 1992, Master Kong has always regarded food safety as
the “first priority” and the cornerstone of the Company. As a leading
brand in China’s food industry, Master Kong actively responds to the
country’s concept of quality control”from farmland to dining-table”. It
invests heavily in all aspects to strictly control food safety in the entire
process, ensuring product quality and safety, and constantly striving
to provide safe, delicious, and healthy food, therefore gains widely
recognition from consumers and the public. At the new starting point
of the 25th anniversary, Master Kong received high recognition from
China Aerospace with excellent food safety control and strong sense of
social responsibility, and has formally become a partner of the aerospace
industry. In the future, Master Kong and the China space institution
will jointly establish a research institute to introduce the concept of
aerospace quality management, to research and develop space food
technology, which can realize space transportation. It will also support
popular science education in space science, as well as assist the national
defence science and technology and aerospace industry, to deepen
the development strategy of Civil-military Integration. With aerospace
quality as its goal, Master Kong will further provide consumers with
higher quality products.
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25 years’ attachment to the nation by contributing to the strong
country, as well as becoming a paradigmatic national brand.
As the leading company in China’s food industry, Master Kong is
committed to leading the benchmark of social responsibility, adhering
to the concept of “sustainable operation, contribution to society” to
actively fulfilling its social responsibilities. In the past years, Master
Kong has promoted Chinese food culture, sports and public welfare,
and helped with agriculture, rural areas, and rural people. Master Kong
has also been dedicated to supporting education, school-enterprise
cooperation, and emergency assistance and other areas, by actively
carrying out community investment and public welfare activities,
and fully supporting the country’s economic development, charity
work, and the building up of social capacity. It has won for multiple
times the “China Food Enterprises Benchmarking Golden Chopsticks
Award,” "Outstanding Chinese Enterprise in CSR”, and “Special
Award in Public Welfare”. At the beginning of a new 25-year period,
Master Kong actively joined the Xinhua News Agency’s “National
Brand Communication Project” in response to “a strong nation of
good brands” strategy and responsibilities, and settled in the “Xinhua
Credit” national credit information service platform. As a representative
of outstanding national brands, Master Kong continues to enhance its
values, while at the same time, interprets the international power of
national brands through culture and innovation.

25 years’ of attachment to its mission, ceaseless innovations,
and proclaiming the Chinese food & beverage culture. Broad and
profound, Chinese food culture has a standing history. Master Kong has
always taken “Proclaiming the Chinese Food & Beverage Culture” as its
corporate mission. In the past 25 years, it has inherited and innovated
hundreds of Chinese traditional cuisines with local characteristics, such
as Chicken Stewed Mushroom Noodle, Pickled Pepper Beef Noodle,
Red Chilli Oil Sour Soup Noodle, as well as characteristic Chinese
products such as Rock Candy Pear and Fruit Mix Sour Plum, which
are the extraction of traditional food essence and combination of
modern innovation and technology. At the same time, Master Kong
is committed to the communication and linkage between the Chinese
food culture and the world culture. It has developed partnerships with
international brands such as Disney, Starbucks, and NBA. It used the
“the Belt and Road” as a platform to let Chinese culture to”Going
out” through the promotion of national brands, as an attempt to use
the soft power of Chinese culture to influence the world; “Bringing
in” international brands through the notion of “Created from China”,
Master Kong contributes to the country on playing a positive role in the
world arena.
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Remembering the food safety vision,
faithful to the beginning corporate values
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In the future, Master Kong will take its 25-year experience and
innovation as the cornerstone, bearing the responsibility of a national
brand, strengthening its confidence continuously, moving ahead,
bravely climbing the heights, securing new achievements, performing
better corporate social responsibility, helping the country to flourish,
and joining hands with all parties to create a better modern life.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG)
MANAGEMENT

ESG Strategies and Policies

Throughout the past 25 years, Master Kong has embraced the
corporate vision of “Being the Most Admired Food & Beverage
Enterprising Company” and has always committed to the principle
of “sustainable operation, contribution to society”. Master Kong has
communicated closely with stakeholders, actively fulfilled its social
responsibilities, and continuously explored and refined the strategic
objectives in environmental, social and governance (the "ESG”) and
its performance in this area, and dedicated to sharing corporate values
with stakeholders, achieving good modern life together, enhancing
social welfare, and winning recognition and respect from the society
and the industry.
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Organization and Operation of CSR

In 2017, Master Kong CSR Management Committee (the “Committee”)
maintained its good operation. On the basis of clear CSR strategies
and development directions, the Committee guided implementation of
work and performance evaluation, and regularly conducted reviews and
decision-making on targets, reports and disclosures, and related major
events. The Committee promoted the vertical linkage of the Company’s
CSR work, internal and external cross-system, cross-discipline
collaboration, upgraded the professional management level of CSR, and
continued its efforts to enforce the concept of “sustainable operation,
contribution to society”.

Stakeholder Communication and Assessment of Importance of

The Company actively identifies the stakeholders’ expectations and
requirements on Master Kong through various communication channels,
in order to practically satisfy stakeholders’ needs while fulfilling social

Communication Channels

BRARE  EFH XEQE K

Key Issues
FEMERBEXANEEESTZRENE
wERTREHRMELSEEHEN
EX - NRERTEALGEENRE -
DEmENZBEAFR - responsibilities.
FEERETEERR
Communication Channels for Stakeholders
MENEES HE 8 75 5 A
Stakeholders Description
BRERKREE R EETRERENEANINRE
A B

Shareholders and Domestic and overseas legitimate equity

investors and debt investors to Master Kong
BT HEMEREXNSEBER LT FR
BREMEEBHAE
Employees Personnel serving Master Kong's
businesses on a permanent basis under
formal labour contracts
R (BEF) BERERMBETSMEERND

% mmiEEms

Distributors (including Enterprises, stores or individual

customers) businesses legally operating various
branded products of Master Kong
IR MR EHEEEYH  BHEBEA
VERENDLE  BEkERHP
Suppliers Enterprises, stores or individual

businesses legally supplying production
material, accessories and office supplies
to Master Kong

General meeting, annual report, results
announcement, roadshow, etc.

BETE® BHKEg BT
FmEFE E2E
wuk - ERTYE
Employee activities, staff congress,
training courses, employee manuals,
“KSF-Cloud”, WeChat, enterprise portal,
corporate publications, etc.

EMEE  TERAT BERBLERH
Product exhibition, industry survey,
customer service hotline and satisfaction

survey

AARBKREEHE  BBSEXRH R
MEFE o
Open bidding meeting, strategic
cooperation negotiation, exchanges and

visits, etc.
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Stakeholders

BRREEHE

Governments and
regulators

R

Media

HERDR

Communities and
the public

BR KBTS

Universities and

research institutions
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Communication Channels for Stakeholders

HE 8 75 5 A
Description

Bm - W RRE  Z2FEIHMFT - 1
FHA - BESEEEKE

Food, taxation, environmental, safety
and other authorities; local governments;
the SFC and other regulatory agencies

HEAMERY S ERENRLE - BR
8 MR ARREMBRE S
Newspaper office, television station,
Internet companies and other media
agencies legally cooperating with Master
Kong

BEMME R HER
MARR S

B

E
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Local communities, the public, non-
profit organizations, etc.

HEMBREIAEBRENOKRE . B
Bt~ IR PSR

Universities, colleges, research and
other institutes partnering with
Master Kong

BERE

Communication Channels

WEER - QIR RT3
BREE

Field visits, official correspondences,
policy implementation, information
disclosure, etc.

rELLETHR XLEE FeEE
EEE

Business interviews, cultural publicity,
featured activities, etc.

NEEF  BTEREETSY - R&EE
B bERREME IS RRE
HEEEXFEES

Community activities, employee
volunteer activities, public welfare
activities, WeChat/subscription
activities, project supporting social
undertaking,etc.

TERESE BILEEZ g
SR LS EEE F
Recruitment presentations, training
programs, seminars, academic
exchanges and cooperative research
projects

BB EE R AR T RER R - R
HRBELGUHEBEETIE  WKESGH
REEERMNGRE  WHEFESRE
BEEBZEKTHRE -
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Through continuous communication with various stakeholders, Master
Kong evaluates various substantive issues and forms an ESG key issue
importance assessment matrix, which is used as a reference of the
importance of the matters in the Report.
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Quality inspection
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COMMITMENT WITH INITIAL VISION OF FOOD SAFETY TO
ENJOY A “LIFE PLUS DELICACY”

Food is the paramount necessity of the people, and food safety as the
top priority is a key variable to our future. Master Kong is committed
to its corporate mission of “Proclaiming the Chinese Food & Beverage
Culture” and take food safety as the cornerstone of corporate success
and the "utmost priority”. In 2017, Master Kong actively responded
to the 19th CPC National Congress’ food safety strategy. The annual
investment in food safety and quality control amounted to RMB110
million, and the acquirement rate of food safety management system
certificate was 100%, achieving a management mode of full traceability
from farmland to dining-table.

Master Kong's zero-tolerance attitude towards food safety has won
the recognition of various fields of the society. In November 2017,
Master Kong formally signed a contract with China Space Foundation
to become a partner in the Chinese aerospace industry. At the same
time, in the 2017 China Food Development Conference hosted by
Xinhuanet.com, and the Fifteenth China Food Safety Annual Meeting
jointly hoisted by the General Administration of Quality Supervision,
Inspection and Quarantine of the People’'s Republic of China and
several authoritative departments such as the “China Food Industry
Association”, Master Kong was awarded the China Food Enterprises
Benchmarking Golden Chopsticks Award, Top Ten Enterprises & Top
Ten People in Safety Management at China Food Safety Annual Meeting
2017, among other important awards.
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In 2017, the Company has a professional team for food!
safety and quality control of 3,000 people.
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In 2017, Master Kong conducted multiple rounds of
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.

Note: A normal operational plant is a plant that has been operating normally for
more than 6 months in 2017 and is not in downtime.

Driven by Core Technology, Managed by Food Safety Systems

Master Kong has set up a Food Safety Center of the Central Research
Institute (the”Food Safety Center”) to undertake internal food safety
management and technical support functions of the Company. Each
business has set up a quality assurance department to connect the
Food Safety Center and undertake the food safety management
implementation of their own business. Each factory has set up quality
management positions and is equipped with professionals to implement
food safety management measures throughout the production process,
and has formed a comprehensive food safety management system that
is driven by the core technology of Food Safety Center and covers all
businesses and factories.

The Food Safety Center has its laboratory capacity accredited by China
CNAS (China National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment)
and possesses international and advanced scientific research and
technical capabilities. Driven by its core technology, Master Kong has
over 1,500 food safety monitoring indicators annually and over 3.5
million quality index tests throughout the year. As of 2017, the Master
Kong Food Safety Center had cumulatively invested more than RMB500
million. The Company's food safety management system has maintained
scientific and sound operations, and the entire industry chain has been

closely monitored to ensure food safety.
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The 25th Anniversary of Master Kong
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* Introducing international level supply chain assessment
system of FDA expert to strengthen food safety defense
capabilities

* Strict raw material supplier qualification management,
supplier grading, classification, regular or irregular resident
guidance and unannounced inspection

* Strictly meeting the national requirements from or product
R&D specification design, and guaranteeing food safety
from the design level

* 0SB A ESEREREER 5 R MR AR E R
o BERRELG SEBEBOABRAZEERA
* More than 30 authoritative Chinese and foreign
consultants in the industry
counselling on supply chain front office risk
management
* Source control of agricultural products, movin:
the management gate forward to the source
of farming

c BEEF RERE ETREEER
BRBET
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* Recall procedures in place, timely
response. Problematic products never
allowed to be consumed by people.

® Tracing the sources, controlling risks

e BB ENEE HRERRTERTME

® Pragmatic, public opinion-based,
carrying out specialized food safety
assessment projects

Using external
forces to
improve supply
chain source safety]

Food Safety Management System Certification

e In 2017, all Master Kong's normal operational factories met the
requirements of 1SO22000 Food Safety Management System, and
the overall ISO22000/FSSC22000 management system certification
rate reached 100%. In 2018, a further upgrade from 1SO22000 to
FSSC22000 will be launched.

e All the normal operational factories of the Pepsi beverage business
have passed the AIB (American Institute of Baking) uniform food
safety standards;

e The 80 packaged drinking water factories of Master Kong
beverage and Pepsi beverage are the first to obtain NSF
international certification in the industry, becoming members of
the IBWA International Bottled Water Association.

Completely Traceable from Farmland to Dining-table

Master Kong actively assumes the main responsibility of food production
enterprises, pays attention to source management, strictly controls
production processes, coordinates suppliers and distributors, and establishes
a made process traceability management system. Through the introduction
of FDA experts into the international-level supply chain assessment systems,
the promotion of fully automated unmanned production lines, and the
implementation of domestic and international advanced technologies such
as food safety specialized assessment and recall procedures, Master Kong
has achieved transparency in the flow of all raw materials and finished
products in terms of all quality indicators. It has achieved Whole Process
Traceability Management from farmland to dining-table.

e MALER, W&Jﬁl’ﬁ%)\
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* Unmanned production lines,

reducing introduction of risks;
e Strictly controlling the production process;
* Unified product and technical standards

o BHEIRR B IER o MORIBRG: AB2008 R/, S EM:
* Tracing back to ﬁ150§h/¢,)§{§‘é}:u RI0BR/IE
sub-suppliers o ERIEE M| BRAR AR IBAR
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® Testing on beverage: over 2 million times
per year; instant noodles: over
1.5 million times per year; convenience
food: over 100,000 times per year

* Materials monitoring mechanism, strictly
based on specifications

® Sound inspection system: independent
third party inspections,
factory quality check, market product
quality check

EAERER
Traceability
management
system

HRATER
From farmland to dining table

L ERHEER

&
. RRLBRER
* Personnel hygiene, cleaning

and disinfection management
* Comprehensive pest management
* Hazardous chemicals management

RIFHGMP
Good GMP

RRER
food safety

SRR CEFERMAREER -
EREERFRSE

* Customer opinions incorporated
into quality management, risk
management and R&D

s FNEXFERRRAUFEMRFE
SRR

* Closely in line withthe annual national
food safety planning direction
and carrying out annual specialized
monitoring

k]
Whole process traceability.

o Bty R, EHA SR R E K T AR R R B 4R
* Down-to-earth, regular or irregular
commercial product sample monitoring
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Safeguard Food Safety and Gain Social Recognition

Master Kong profoundly understands the concept of “social co-
governance” in the field of food safety. It therefore actively assists
government and industry organizations in various food safety promotion
activities such as Food Safety and Agricultural Products Safety,
Entrepreneurship and Innovation Show, zealously participates in the
formulation of government food safety standards and launches multi-
domain food safety projects, researches and develops and promotes
advanced food safety technologies and other diversified approaches,
contributes so as to the promotion of the industry’s overall food safety
level and the strengthening of public food safety awareness.

L L E S
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On the occasion of its 25th Anniversary, Master Kong signed a letter
of intent with Tianjin Economic-Technological Development Area to
plan and build a world-class food safety testing center. In the future, it
will cooperate with Shanghai Food Safety Center to promote high-end
R&D and conversion of food safety technology, and actively support
the formation of national food safety standards and the enhancement
of the food safety level in the entire industry, in order to become an
important carrier of “Healthy China” Strategy.

Technological Innovation - National Patent for “Eight-Step
Purification”of Drinking Water

In 2017, Master Kong's “8-step r ‘ "
purification process” for drinking [ B
water was awarded a national utility " wenns IR S
model patent - another reassurance O

of Master Kong beverage’s leading £ ”j{_J : :f_ ::
quality and innovative technology . :1 u _, © vrves
in the industry. Through eight e Wemare
purification steps and 100 test i .'f ::::

items in the manufacturing process,
we are able to protect the health
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and safety quality of each family’s

drinking water, which is our own
responsibility, so that everyone
can feel at ease to drink and enjoy
health.
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Source Guarantee - Crop Active Guarantee System

In the past three years, Master Kong Food Safety Center cooperated
with universities to carry out research on the “Crop Active Guarantee
System”, in which they investigated the overall pollution distribution of
the major vegetable production regions in China, counseled suppliers,
and established an environment-friendly vegetable base in the Inner

Mongolia-Kangba Noel region. The local natural environment is in good

condition and food safety is effectively guaranteed at the source.
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System Construction - Whole Process Quality Control System
of Food Processing Oil and Dynamic Control System of Instant
Noodle Frying Process

Inviting the participation of authoritative experts and scholars, the
research process lasted for two years and achieved more than 20
technical achievements, Master Kong established the “Whole Process
Quality Control System of Food Processing Oil” and “Dynamic Control
System of Instant Noodle Frying Process”. While optimizing the index
for the sourcing of raw materials for food, Master Kong ensures the
freshness and quality and safety of the “raw oil materials”, with relevant
indicators 30% higher than the national standards or more. In an expert
appraisal meeting hosted by the Chinese Cereals and QOils Association,
the expert group unanimously agreed that the research on the Whole
Process Quality Control System of Food Processing QOil through Industry-
university-research Cooperation has accurately identified and solved
the imminent problems in the development of the industry, improved
product quality and safety, provided support for product quality and
safety improvement as well as advancement of science and technology,

playing a demonstration and leading role for the industry.
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Master Kong has always regarded food safety as a non-competitive
area. It actively shares the forward-looking research and technological
advantages it has achieved with the industry and even the entire society
in order to improve social welfare and promote the realization of food
safety strategies. Starting cooperation with the space industry and
planning to invest heavily in establishing a food safety testing center in
Tianjin, Master Kong is preparing for a more strategic start for the next
25 years.

1

-

In the future, Master Kong will continue to adhere to the vision of
food safety, and will not forget the initial values, and promote a good
modern life.

FOCUSING ON FAITH AND INNOVATIONS TO LEAD A “LIFE
PLUS DELICACY"

Master Kong takes proclaiming the Chinese food & beverage (F&B)
culture as the corporate mission, and focuses on the three main themes
- "Infusing the Essence of F&B Tradition, Promoting New Generation
F&B Concepts, Creating Healthy F&B Values”. Master Kong carries
out in-depth study of traditional food culture, and put the “Chinese
Traditional Gastronomic Map” and product innovation closely together.
Over the past 25 years, the company has cumulatively launched
more than 260 instant noodles and developed a variety of Chinese
classic drinks such as “Rock Candy Pear” and “Fruit Mix Sour Plum”,
contributing to the conservation of Chinese food culture and innovation.
On the basis of product innovation, Master Kong actively understands
the needs of consumers in addition to product tastes. Through cultural
integration and Channels Innovation, the Company continues to enrich
the inherent content of food and timing of consumption, so as to meet
the diverse needs of consumers nowadays.

At the same time, through the continuous improvement of its product
liability management capabilities, such as advertising, trademarks, and
intellectual property, Master Kong hopes to encourage more companies
to strengthen their brand responsibilities, innovate pragmatically, start
with integrity, and lead a good modern life together.
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Putting Customers at the Center and Enhancing Services and
Branding

Product Innovation

In 2017, Master Kong pioneered industrial upgrading to meet the
needs of a growing middle class for “delicious taste and nutritious”
food. It innovated the soup-stock extraction technology and introduced
the”Golden Stock (£5)" series instant noodle products. The soup-
stock is brewed with traditional classic craftsmanship, with a careful
addition of sourness. This new series shall provide consumers with
a rich, mellow, delicious and nutritious upgraded experience. At the
same time, to further meet the diverse needs of consumers in different
scenarios, Master Kong launched a DIY noodle product series to
enable consumers, including Kitchen Rookie and busy white-collar
workers, to show their cooking talent. They will be able to personally
cook food that suit their tastes and do whatever they like, DIY noodle
and Golden Stock (£5)" series products have won the unanimous
recognition by consumers and the industry. In this year, they won “The
Innovative Convenience Food Grand Award 2017" and “The Innovative

Convenience Food Award 2017".
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While it innovates new tastes, Master Kong also actively responds to
the requirements of the country for the inheritance and development
of excellent Chinese traditional culture, and pays attention to
the promotion of product culture and connotation. Master Kong
combines innovations in product packaging with traditional cultural
communication, printing classical poetry on the bottles of the classic
beverage Rock Candy Pear. It is packaged with a beautiful poem
series, combining culture, fun, and mellowness of taste. It satisfies
the catering needs of young families and at the same time put the
Chinese traditional etiquette culture and classic poetry culture that is as
nutritious as the drink into children’s hearts.

In terms of innovation in the market, Master Kong further cooperated
with “WeiChuan” in 2017. They complement each other with their
strengths in exploring the dairy beverage and ready-to-drink coffee
markets. While trying to satisfy the consumers’ needs for health and
nutrition, the partnership also steered Master Kong's products into
healthier areas.

Channels Innovation

Master Kong continues to explore channel innovation and has been
recognized by all partners.

The instant noodle business puts the offline meeting opportunity with
the spokespersons onto e-commerce platforms for linked live broadcasts,
forming a trinity of video websites, social media, and e-commerce in-
site diversion, which facilitates the launches of new products online. The
initiative has won the “Enterprise with Most Potential Award” awarded
by the partner JD.COM. The healthy beverage business harnesses
big data analysis to carry out scientific PDCA cooperation method,
winning the “Sincere Cooperation Award of the Year” awarded by
China’s largest integrated hypermarket operator “Sun Art Retail Group
Limited”. The Pepsi beverage business achieved better improvement in
sales planning, order forecasting, and supply chain optimization through
more interactive information sharing with channel customers, and won
the “China Management Award” awarded by Yum China, China’s

largest restaurant group.
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In addition, Master Kong innovatively used the concept of Channels
Refining to expand the management and control of emerging channels,
securing more opportunities for product consumption. Master Kong
established a strategic alliance relationship with Shanghai Disney Resort
and established a correlation between products and entertainment. It
actively promoted the “Match with Gourmet” restaurant project, not
only did they manage to combine hot pot, a representative Chinese
speciality food, with Fruit Mix Sour Plum, which is also a Chinese food
classic, creating more taste combinations that are more suitable for the
Chinese people. The Company exploits the use of vending machines for
sales of products, installing the machines on the railway/highway/the
cities” important transportation outside airports - subway station.

Customer Service

The healthy development of an enterprise is inseparable from the
customers’ sincere suggestions and opinions. Consumer satisfaction
is the ultimate good quality, as well as the approach to the realization
of good modern life. In the course of providing services, Master Kong
regularly conducts customer satisfaction surveys, and makes use of the
results of feedback from customers to formulate targeted adjustments,
improvements, and enhancements to the deficiencies in the service and
management processes. At the same time, the Company has established
platforms such as official Weibo, Wechat, and 400 service hotline,
which provide consumers with convenient channels to promptly express
the product quality problems they have encountered. Master Kong
shall deal with each issue in accordance with the “Customer Complaint
Handling Guide” seriously, so as to solve consumers’ problems in time
and strictly protect consumers’ personal information, allowing them to
purchase with more ease.

Advertisement and Intellectual Property Management

Master Kong complies with the “Advertisement Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and other laws and regulations in the production
and dissemination of advertisements, and ensures that the advertised
content is true and legitimate, and free of situations that deceive or
mislead consumers.

Master Kong profoundly understands that intellectual property rights
are a strong support for the core competitiveness of each company.
When promoting its branding, Master Kong respects the intellectual
property rights of itself and other partners, and must respect intellectual
property laws for the materials used, so as to avoid any violations. It
also effectively safeguards its own intellectual property rights with a
systematic intellectual property management system.
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Responsible Management and Effort to Upgrade the Industrial
Chain

Master Kong actively explores ways to promote the social responsibility
performance of the entire industry chain. Master Kong launched the
“Supplier ESG Management Project” in 2017 and identified “supplier
environmental and social risk management” as an important way to
promote social responsibility in the whole industry chain.

Master Kong drafted and published the “Compliance Agreement
Letter of Suppliers’ Environmental and Social Risk Management” as a
prerequisite for suppliers to establish or keep a cooperative relationship.
It also clarifies Master Kong’s “uncompromisable bottom line
requirements” for suppliers’ corporate social responsibility management
performance. At the same time, Master Kong is planning to promote the
“Hierarchical Management Suggestion of Suppliers’ Environmental and
Social Risk Management”, and to provide suppliers with environmental
and social risk management training and technical support in the future
to achieve joint improvement of the entire industrial chain’s social
responsibility performance.

Integrity and Self-Discipline, Standardized Professional Ethics

“Conscientious, Integrity, Expertise” are the qualities possessed by
each “"KSF member”, while “Integrity” is the basic requirement for
the moral character of a “KSF member”, also a basic behavioral
requirement. Master Kong requires employees to strictly abide by
professional ethics and be honest and self-disciplined. The Company
has set up a report hotline to encourage employees to take the initiative
to expose fraudulent corruption and other illegal activities, consciously
safeguarding the Company'’s reputation and image, and jointly creating
a good working environment.

Master Kong strictly complies with laws and regulations such as
“Commitment Letter on Anti-Commercial Bribery”, engages in
production and business activities in accordance with the law and
integrity, and refuses any direct or indirect forms of bribery offers,
bribery acceptance, and other commercial violations. Master Kong has
formulated the “Reporting Handling Guide” operation procedures
and rewarding standards, as an effect mechanism of entertaining and
handling fraud reports, and conducts effective announcements.

For external suppliers, Master Kong also requires suppliers to sign the
Commitment Letter on Anti-Corruption, by which they explicitly state
that they would not offer bribes or accept bribes, and will set up anti-
corruption and anti-commercial bribery complaint and reporting hotlines
as channels and institutional support for anti-commercial bribery.
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Beijing Pepsi bevexage has invested RMB 490,000
to replace low-nitrogen plants and replaced two
boiler heaters. After the renovation, it has
reduced natural gas consumption by about
75,000 cubic meters per year; nitrogen oxide
emissions have been reduced by 59.4%; and
carbon emissions have been reduced by 180 tons.
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the factories”
conditioning workshop h: -in biological
deodorization equipment. Biological treatment
includes pre-treatment and biological filtration.
The treatment targets at specific pollutants in the
gas and biodegrades odorous gases with organism
groups of complex bacteria. The environmental
protection tests are in compliance with the emission
standards.

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT TO BENEFIT THE FUTURE AND
ENSURE A “LIFE PLUS DELICACY

Master Kong actively responds to the national policy on environmental
protection and green development by strictly abiding by laws and
regulations related to environmental protection and resource use,
and ensured compliance operations. At the same time, it continues
to strengthen refined management, actively introduces advanced
environmental protection and energy conservation technologies,
encourages the implementation of energy conservation and emission
reduction projects, strives to continuously reduce environmental impact,
and continues to increase the efficiency of use of resources. Protecting
the environment, benefiting the future, and ensuring a life plus delicacy.

Management in Place to Reduce Environmental Impact

Master Kong strictly complies with laws and regulations such as the
“Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”
formulates systematic emission management mechanisms and methods
based on its own production characteristics, and adheres to the
compliance treatment of pollutants. In 2017, Master Kong conducted
a number of technological transformations and achieved significant
emission reductions.
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In 2017, in order to improve the efficiency of
wastew ater treatment, Master Kong beverage
business added capacity to the sewage treatment
equipment and collection system, and made major
changes in Tianjin, Guangzhou, Suzhou, Xi an,
Urumgi, Wuhan, Harbin, Zhengzhou, Lanzhou
and other factoncs (ultogcthcr 11 factories), wnh
a total investment of RMB 15 million. After the
upgrade, the wastewater treatment capacity has
been greatly increased.
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Tianjin~ s convenience food factory implemented the cutting
machine improvement in July 2017 by changing the roll-in method
and lengthening the cut length from the original 10cm to 36¢m.
The number of end products increased from 3 to 12 each time.
The precision positioning device was designed to increase the
accuracy of the roll-in process, the improvement of which was
completed in October, significantly improving the effect of cutting.
Defect rate dropped by 25%, reducing 28 tons of solid waste per year.
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Technological Application to Reduce Consumption of Resources

Master Kong actively promotes the energy efficiency management of
various factories, and implements detailed control, detailed management
and other requirements in accordance with the “Energy Management
Specification” and other related energy management systems, and
incorporates energy conservation and consumption reduction into
the management performance evaluation indicators. At the same
time, Master Kong raises the awareness of energy conservation of
all employees and ensures effective implementation of energy-saving
management, through energy-saving project, training, etc.

In November 2017, at the annual meeting themed”Ingenuity, Nutrition
and Diversity” held by the China Beverage Industry Association, 20
beverage factories in the “Master Kong-Pepsi Alliance” beverage system
won the “China’s Outstanding Beverage Enterprises in Energy Saving”
award and 26 were awarded the “China’s Outstanding Beverage
Enterprises in Water Saving”award. The awards won by these factories
account for 35% of the total awards. They have become a model of
water-saving and energy-saving in the beverage industry.
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Master Kong beverage business installed photovoltaic power
generation systems on the roof of factories in Xi‘an and Suzhou,
with an annual power generation capacity of about 10 million
kWh.
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The instant noodle business has completely implemented the Waste
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Steam Recovery (WSR), which saves 95,942 tons of steam.
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The transmission belt of Pepsi beverage business in Guangzhou

Transmission Belt

factory uses dry lubrication to reduce the use of lubrication and
cleaning water, and a single production line saves about 8,016
tons of water annually.
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Steam Pipeline Renovation Project - 5
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The Hangzhou convenience food factory has reconstructed the

steam pipeline to reduce the flow. In summer, it will save 11.6

tons of steam every day. In 2017, the steam consumption is
saved by 2608 tons compared to the same period of 2016.

RIBRABESIEEIROT BRS1THH The environmental key performance indicators are listed below. Unless

SN RIBFBREERE FERMMERERE otherwise specified, the environmental data covers all the domestic

EEEETEONERNEE TR - FEIME factories directly managed by the Shanghai Master Kong Headquarters

ERARES NG TREESEE - K and various businesses!”. The overseas offices are not included in the

RGRIBERIERERSAHRE - statistics due to their small scale. Disclosure in the future will be based
on the actual situation and in a timely manner.
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Total greenhouse gas emission®
(Scope 1 and Scope 2)* (10,000 tonnes)
Greenhouse gas emission per 10,000 boxes
(tonne/million boxes of products)
Total sodium dioxide (SO,) emission (tonnes)
Total nitrogen oxides (NO,) emission (tonnes)
Comprehensive energy consumption (MWh)
Comprehensive energy consumption
per 10,000 boxes® of products
(MWh/10,000 boxes of products)
Electricity
Gasoline/diesel
Natural gas/coal
Purchased steam
Total water consumption (m?)
Water consumption per 10,000 boxes of
products (m3/10,000 boxes of products)

Total use of product packaging materials (tonne)

Use of product packaging materials
per 10,000 boxes of products
(tonne/10,000 boxes of products)
Total COD emission® (tonne)
Total hazardous waste (tonne)
Emission of hazardous waste per 10,000 boxes
of products (tonne/10,000 boxes of products)
Total non-hazardous waste (tonne)

Emission of non-hazardous waste per 10,000 boxes

of products (tonne/10,000 boxes of products)

123.5

7.85

123

305
5,291,458.6

33.6
1,480,840.3
8,978.7
927,888.1
2,873,751.5
47,803,198.2

303.8

1,124,558.3

7.15
88.4
623.8

0.004
171,367.1

1.09
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The domestic factories directly managed by Master Kong include all the
domestic instant noodle, Master Kong beverage, and instant food factories
located inside the country, as well as all the domestic Pepsi beverage
factories except 4 factories in Shanghai, Wuhan, Nanjing and Hangzhou.
Pepsi beverage’s four factories in Shanghai, Wuhan, Nanjing, and
Hangzhou are managed directly by PepsiCo International and are therefore
not included in this statistics.

Based on the nature of Master Kong's business, its major gas emissions are
greenhouse gases, sulphur dioxide (SO,) and nitrogen oxides (NO,), which
are mainly from the use of fossil fuel-converted electricity and fuels.

Master Kong's greenhouse gas calculation scope mainly covers carbon
dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide. Greenhouse gas emission data is
presented in CO, equivalent and is calculated according to the 2006 IPCC
Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories.

Scope 1: Covering the greenhouse gas emissions directly generated by
the Company’s operations; Scope 2: “Indirect energy” greenhouse gas
emissions from the Company's internal consumption (electricity, heat, and
steam either purchased or obtained).

Comprehensive energy consumption is calculated from direct and indirect
energy consumption, according to the General Principles for Calculation
of the Comprehensive Energy Consumption (GB/T 2589-2008) by General
Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of the
People’s Republic of China, and the Standardization Administration of the
People’s Republic of China.

Number of product boxes is the total number of natural boxes for each
product of Master Kong.

Water consumption is the production water within the statistical range
together with employee’s consumption of water in office.

Amount of product packaging materials is the sum of the total amount of
packaging materials used by all Master Kong products.

Total COD emission is the sum of COD emission of all factories within the
statistical range. The Shanghai Master Kong headquarters operates as an
ordinary office and does not involve discharge of production wastewater.
It is therefore not included in the statistics.
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CARING FOR EMPLOYEES AND DEVELOPING TOGETHER TO
SHARE A “LIFE PLUS DELICACY"”

“Conscientious, Integrity, Expertise” are the qualities that every Master
Kong member possesses. Master Kong regards every employee as
a valuable asset for the Company's sustainable development. The
Company pays attention to protecting the legitimate rights and interests
of employees, continuously focuses on the growth and development of
employees, actively creates excellent corporate culture, and strives to
grow together with employees to share the modern good life.

Caring for Employees and Protecting Their Rights

Master Kong profoundly understands that safeguarding the legitimate
rights and interests of employees is the basis for the sustainable
operation of the Company. It strictly complies with laws and regulations
such as “the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China”, follows the
corporate culture of “Visionary, Scientific, Effective, Collaborative”,
and establishes an employee management system that meets the

characteristics of Master Kong.

Employment Management

Master Kong always provides open and equal job opportunities to
qualified talents, and recruits through diverse recruitment channels
such as internal hiring, media advertising, talent market, and campus
recruitment. Besides, the Company strictly manages the employment
process and eliminates all forms of child employment. As a partner of
Disney, Starbucks, NBA and other international brands, Master Kong
has passed the labor certification requirements from the partners and
received their unanimous recognition.

Working Hours

In compliance with relevant laws and regulations such as “Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, Master Kong strictly manages
employees’ working hours, and applies for irregular working system
and comprehensive working system for sales and manufacturing jobs,
as required by the law. The heads of human resources management
departments and competent departments jointly supervise the overtime
arrangements of employees and effectively implement labor protection

for employees.
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Equal Employment

Master Kong treats all employees equally in employment, promotion and
training. Besides, the Company tries its best to provide all employees
with a superior working environment and better equipped resources.
Master Kong expects to inspire employees’ enthusiasm and motivation
by enhancing their mutual recognition and trust with each other, so as
to enhance the vitality of the brands.

Remuneration and Benefits

Master Kong has established a scientific payroll management system
and a diversified welfare system so that employees can enjoy stable and
competitive compensation and benefits.

Employee Caring

Master Kong strives to create a people-centered working environment,
advocating work-life balance, and hopes that employees can have
fun in their work, as well as their families may also identify with and
love Master Kong. Master Kong tries its best to make every employee
enjoy their work and work happily. Master Kong's headquarters and
various business units actively organize various internal employee caring
activities to promote harmonious and active cooperation between

employees.

Focusing on Safety and Creating a Healthy Environment

Master Kong values the health and safety of employees and promises
to provide a safe and healthy work environment for employees. In strict
accordance with laws and regulations including “Production Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the Company has formulated
a system of internal safety production and employee occupational
health management system measures to effectively protect the safety
and occupational health of employees. At the same time, Master Kong
encourages all production units to actively adopt the OHSAS18001
Occupational Health and Safety Management System to enhance the

occupational health and safety management level.
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Intensive Training to Help Employees Develop

Master Kong focuses on employee training and development, and has
arranged education and training throughout each employee’s daily
work. In 2017, Master Kong organized various training programs with
a cumulative total of 51,895 trainees. The total length of training and
learning was about 2,506,800 hours, with an average of 48.3 hours
per person. On the basis of traditional training system, Master Kong has
built the “KSF-Cloud” mobile online learning platform, which provides
a wealth of learning resources and makes it easier for employees to use
fragmented time for learning. They can learn from the training video
clips uploaded by the Company, anytime and anywhere.

Cultural Construction to Promote Continued Glory

Embracing the corporate vision of “Being the Most Admired Food and
Beverage Enterprise Company”, Master Kong shoulders the corporate
mission of “Proclaiming the Chinese food and beverage culture”, and,
with the business philosophy of “Ethical, Pragmatic, and Innovative”in
mind, leads every “KSF member” who is of”Conscientious, Integrity,
and Expertise” to “provide consumers with more safe, convenient,
delicious, and worthy for money products. With 25 years’ accumulated
experience, Master Kong has built a corporate culture of “Visionary,
Scientific, Effective, Collaborative”, and has also created a market-
leading brand that is deeply loved and supported by consumers.

Big WE Small ME, Together WE and ME

On 10 June 2017, the Master Kong Culture Vision Day with the theme
“Big WE Small ME, Together We and Me" was unveiled by 118 mid-
and high-level executives including the chairman, CEO and 10 CIS model
figures. In 2017, Master Kong elected 40 KSF members throughout the
group who demonstrated the corporate culture of “Visionary, Scientific,
Effective, Collaborative” as model figures. In order to look into the
results of integration of different organizations into CIS, Master Kong
launched a survey of corporate culture (Voice) and received feedback
from 15,314 people, of which Master Kong examined and improved
internal operations from different perspectives.
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“The road ahead will be long and our climb will be steep.” In the next
25 years, Master Kong will operate a WE company, working together

with ME's, and looking forward to returning to glorious days with the
KSF members, and then reaching new heights.
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25th Anniversary Song “Flying to the 25-Year-Old Dream”

In 2017, Master Kong wrote its own song for the first time - “Flying to a
25-Year-Old Dream”, which was composed and recorded by a band of
comprised by Master Kong staff, commemorating the 25th anniversary
of its foundation. The lyrics highlights Master Kong’s corporate
characteristics and aerospace dreams, reflecting the elegance and vitality
of Master Kong. The song is beautiful, catchy, and widely sung in the
Company, stimulating the enthusiasm of work, enhancing cohesion,
improving the sense of teamwork and belonging of employees, and
inspiring everyone to be more pragmatic and hard working for the
development and dream of the Company.
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SMALL ACTION AS GREAT BLESSING TO BRING WARMTH
TO A "LIFE PLUS DELICACY”

Over the past 25 years, Master Kong has always been grateful to the
community as a leading company in the food industry. Master Kong
has been working hard to give back to the consumers and the society,
and has actively participated in social welfare, continued to exploit the
advantages of the industry, and endeavored to use its own tiny actions
to benefit the society as a whole, and to use practical actions to bring
warmth to a good modern life. In 2017, Master Kong focused on
involvements in community activities in areas such as popular science on
food safety, proclaiming the Chinese food & beverage culture, sports
charity, helping the agriculture, rural areas, and rural people, education
support, and emergency relief. A total of RMB110 million was invested
to support community development and empowerment. Master Kong
was highly recognized by the community and the industry, winning
eight major awards such as the “Outstanding Chinese Enterprise in
CSR 2017" and “Special Award in Public Welfare”. Master Kong also
conducted a “2017 Community Investment Project” to gain an in-depth
understanding of the needs of community stakeholders and to develop
and improve community investment activities in a more targeted
manner.

Responding to the National Policy by Food Safety and Co-
governance

Master Kong actively responds to the spirit of national food safety
and social co-governance, strives to promote the whole society’s
popularization of food safety science, enhances people’s overall
knowledge of food safety, and expects to realize everyone the target
soon that everyone is a food safety guard. By the year of 2017, Master
Kong has exclusively sponsored the food safety science popularization
public welfare competition for three consecutive years, drawing
together the government, media, enterprises, universities and popular
science volunteers and other parties, and succeeded in increasing the
degree of social knowledge of food safety. At the summary conference
of this year’s social welfare competition, an authoritative expert released
the “Data analysis report on knowledge literacy of food safety of college
students in China”, which shows an increase of 12 percentage points in
food safety awareness of the interviewed college students.
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On the occasion of its 25th anniversary, Master Kong worked together
with China’s space industry, to upgrade the Tianjin Dream Exploration
Paradise. Master Kong joined forces with the Tianjin Master Kong
Beverage Pavilion and Hangzhou Dream Exploration Paradise to
contribute to food safety science popularization. Each park and pavilion
have different themes and design styles. They will continue to exhibit
and pass on Master Kong's own stories and unique understanding and
knowledge of food safety to all visitors.

On 8 November 2017, Master Kong held the “Release Conference
of Chinese Youth Aerospace Science Technology and Popularization
Science of Food Safety” and “Master Kong Dream Carnival and Space
Science Popularization Seminar” at the newly completed Tianjin Dream
Exploration Paradise. The diversified interactive activities at the scene
not only popularized the food safety knowledge for the children, but
also brought profound patriotism education and aerospace science
education to children by aerospace education experts.
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Spread of Culture and National Pride

A nation belongs to the whole world. As a big national brand, Master
Kong actively promotes Chinese culture as it conducts international
cooperation. In the 2017 NBA All-Star Game, Master Kong arranged a
lion and dragon dance in front of the international media, showcasing
Chinese New Year delight and the blooming of the beauty of our
nation.

In order to proclaiming the Chinese food & beverage culture, “Master
Kong Taste Pavilion” is built as the times requirement. Through the
use of modern high-technologies, the taste of China and the way of
business is vividly presented from many aspects. Master Kang hopes
to do everything in its power and calls on the whole community to
shoulder the responsibility of promoting the Chinese food and beverage
culture.

In September 2017, the Belt and Road Media Cooperation Forum 2017
was held in Dunhuang of Gansu Province. High political leaders, media
elites, business leaders and authoritative experts from 126 countries and
international organizations were gathered in the forum. As the exclusive
partner of beverage of the forum, Master Kong, with its wonderful
taste of Chinese characteristics, inspired participants’ curiosity about
traditional eastern culture, and set a good image of “China Quality
Production”. In the future, Master Kong will continue to harness “the
Belt and Road” exchanges between China and the West to bring into
play the mission of the new era. In a collision with cultures of various
countries in the world, Master Kong will inherit, innovate and infiltrate
the Chinese food culture, in an effort to take it to face the world with
its base in China. With an open-minded and innovative attitude, Master
Kong will lead the industry to flourish.




)\ S

REBLE RELE

25F K RAIVE—EHESE  EHMM@E
RERMBEBEMEA - MEBEEXEFSIE
fEEE N EF KEERMECEER
HERFHTERSE - RAIZFRERE
HFBE NG hAEHERLEBYNREE
MEIERMENAETESHERR - FE
(8 FE MEIEE S - @BEBNBA -
CUBA ~ R - @277 - 817 R1TE
BEREZERANAE - RAVETEDE
BEEBELAmES  BXERYRE
5 - RS BRI RERESETE -

FEELNBA & 1ERY[ FREN % 25 A F MR E R
Nan EE) |H o FRAD B S TE R R 3 4F B R
REB IR BHABRES 2 [EESER
mES ETREANE - 58T &6 ERAD
BRIRZREP L AZAERBBERE
- EBREBEFTOFERERSN -

ERBCUBAEBNBEBRERAIERN &
EME A 17 F T~ 4F F A M58 ¥ CHBL/CJBL
(FEYSPERBE) N THE
CUBABB A EE  ERERRIT &
EEDERNEERS  BRATESIOF
EIREE - TMEWM - {fEANBAEICUBA
MERAERY  BEMEBGYHERE
BIERRR/EE  BBHENBAE S L
ERNERERDZ - K CUBATKE 2N
NBA L ABIIFEHEIRE - MEBENBAEKR
CUBAKE RS - AREKE4A
BlE BB IBREIR e - BN
BEREXEDEE -

Passion in Sports, Health in Life

For 25 years, Master Kong has appeared to consumers with the face of
youth and vitality. Such vibrant corporate image of Master Kong and its
product features click perfectly with the health, vitality and nutritional
needs led by the physical culture. Over the years, the Company has
actively participated in sports undertakings, promoted the spirit of
hard work and upward-looking, and also paid attention to advocating
healthy diet from a scientific perspective and conveying the popular
science concept of “balance between food and exercise”. Through
sponsorships for various forms of athletic competitions such as NBA,
CUBA, marathon, brisk walking, cycling, and air race, Master Kong
continues to practice its own concept of sports undertakings, gradually
expands its audience, and actively leads Chinese people to a healthy life.

In the “Master Kong 25th Anniversary Burning Dream Public Welfare
Activity” cooperated with NBA, Master Kong will partner closely with
“the Adream Charitable Foundation” (one of the initiators of the
“Burning Dream” charity project) in the next three years. Master Kong
plans to create six Master Kong Burning Dream Center to donate
basketball equipment to schools, helping youngsters in remote areas
realize their basketball dreams.

As the dietary partner of CUBA athletes, Master Kong began to
strengthen its support for CHBL/CJBL (China Junior High School
Basketball League) in the second half of 2017. It also partnered with
CUBA to teach basketball skills through charity events, convey the
nutritional concept of sports and diet, and promote the quality of
young Chinese basketball players. More than that, as a partner of NBA
and CUBA, Master Kong has actively helped develop multinational
basketball exchange activities. Through promoting more advanced
sharing of NBA basketball resources, Master Kong has made CUBA
players to participate in the NBA Futsal elite basketball game, as well as
invited the NBA team to provide technical guidance to CUBA players, to
create opportunities for Chinese university students to reach out to top
international basketball technique, helping China’s basketball industry
develop rapidly.
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In 2017, Master Kong served a total of 10 influential and well-known
marathon events in China, providing nearly a million runners with
nutritious dietary supplies for marathon sports, including International
Gold Label Tournament Matches (Beijing and Xiamen) and International
Silver Label Tournament Matches (Guangzhou), China Gold Label Road
Races (Chongqging, Hangzhou and Lanzhou). During the same period,
Master Kong served overseas marathon events (such as one of the
Six World Marathon Majors (WMM) - New York City Marathon, the
Polar Circle Marathon-Arctic Marathon, and the HTC and UTMB Super
Marathon events), taking Master Kong's products and the concept of

“Sports, Nutrition and Meal” abroad.
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Love Accumulated from Everyone’s Kindness

People show their mercy in the face of merciless disasters. As a national
brand, Master Kong always takes relief and rescue as an unshakable
corporate responsibility. Through combining its characteristics as a food
enterprise and its advantages of widespread business, Master Kong
proactively set up emergency relief fleets with functions of material
transportation, power supply and hot water supply in over ten areas
subject to high risks of natural disasters, including Xinjiang, Yunan,
Chongging and Shanxi, so as to ensure timely disaster relief and delivery
of relief supplies.

The Year 2017 witnessed several major natural disasters, from which lots
of people seriously suffered. Master Kong actively initiated disaster relief
in a timely manner, to bring relief supplies and hopes via the emergency
relief fleets to the disaster-stricken areas. In 2017, Master Kong spent
up to nearly a million yuan in emergency relief. During the Jiuzhaigou
Earthquake, Master Kong organized a rescue pioneer team down to
the disaster-stricken area, and deployed 7 fleets to deliver over 3,400
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boxes of drinking water and 2,800 boxes of instant noodles. Right after
the earthquake in Yulin of Shaanxi Province, Master Kong deployed
3,000 boxes of drinking water and 500 boxes of instant noodles for
earthquake relief. At the same time, through its own actions and
influence, Master Kong called on the media, enterprises, associations,
volunteers to support the earthquake-stricken area and people, so as to
give back to the society through accumulation of everyone’s kindness.
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Benefiting Agriculture, Rural Areas, and Rural People for Mutual
Development

The 13th Five-Year Plan Period is a key stage for China to build a
moderately prosperous society. Eradicating poverty and improving
people’s livelihood are an important manifestation of building an overall
well-off society. As a leader in the food industry, Master Kong actively
responds to the national targeted poverty alleviation policies and gives
play to its advantages in the industry. It develops agricultural products
procurement and helps farmers increase their harvest. As a large-scale
food and beverage manufacturer, Master Kong purchases millions of
tonnes of agricultural products every year, with origins of raw materials
being purchased scatted throughout the country’s main areas of major
agricultural production, directly stimulating the development of regional
agricultural economy and ensuring the benefit of more than 40 million
farmers.

Master Kong has built a “production, teaching and research” platform
to promote the development of agricultural technology. Master Kong
cooperates extensively with China Agricultural University, Tianjin
University of Science & Technology, Zhejiang University and other well-
known Chinese food science and engineering colleges and universities
to carry out fundamental scientific research, facilitate the promotion and
application of research results, and use technology and innovation to
promote the sustainable development of China’s ecological agriculture.
In addition, through the planting guidance for farmers and strict
control of quality inspection and supervision at the production sites, the
detection rate of residual pesticides in vegetables and raw materials has
been significantly reduced, maximizing food safety.
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Two Stanford MBA students delivering
completion presentation to our Group” s
high-ranking executives
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Four Schwarzman Scholars
Interacting with our business units for
internship projects
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Master Kong undertakes to upgrade the industrial chain and implement
scientific poverty alleviation. The Master Kong Food Safety Center has
cooperated with universities for three years to carry out research on
the “Active Crop Protection System”, upgraded the industrial chain
model of “enterprise + base + farmer”, and launched the “International
Agricultural Industrial Park” project in Kongba Noel region of Inner
Mongolia, led the farmers to enter the national vegetable supply market
(with an output value exceeding RMB100 billion). Master Kong not only
enhanced the hard power of farmers in the national vegetable supply
market, but also promoted the development of the local agricultural
recycling economy, realizing Master Kong's scientific and in-depth
poverty alleviation objective. The construction of Master Kong-Kangba
Noel Environment-friendly Vegetable Base has been recognized by
the society and won the important “Poverty Alleviation Award of the
Year” in “the Grand Award Ceremony of the Twelfth Corporate Social
Responsibility Awards” hosted by People.cn.

Willingness to Be the Cornerstone, Benefiting the Future

The development of Master Kong for the past 25 years is inseparable
from the overall improvement of talents in the society and the support
of high-end talents in various fields. Being graceful to the society
and willing to repay, Master Kong attaches great importance to and
continues to promote college-enterprise cooperation. In 2017, it invested
more than RMB12 million. Master Kong maintains good cooperation
with Stanford University, Waseda University, Peking University, Tsinghua
University, Shanghai Fudan University, Shanghai Jiaotong University,
Zhejiang University and many other famous universities at home and
abroad. Through multi-disciplinary research projects, scholarships,
project internships, support for commercial competitions, and a wide
range of channels and forms, Master Kong has provided a large number
of outstanding talents for the society.

SREAASRRHOT)IHESTER

R

Professor Hirakawa of Waseda

University’ Student Center sharing
project achievements

BREEHE
ATHE
College-enterprise
Cooperation
More Effective
Education

SERARELE [REE] BB
EERBAR

Yanbian University's 10th "Master
Kong Cup” Career Planning
Competition
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No. Award

1 017 EEFBEREMEEFELRERE TR R

Top Ten Enterprises in Safety Management at China Food Safety Annual Meeting 2017
2 FRERRETRESER

China Food Enterprises Benchmarking Golden Chopsticks Award
3 FTZEARGEMSETRFEHLER

Poverty Alleviation Award of the Year at the Twelfth People’s Corporate Social Responsibility Awards

4 2017 PEM & E AT DER
Outstanding Chinese Enterprise in CSR 2017
5 RS NIETRE
Benchmarking Enterprise in Promoting Food Fashion

6 2017 FERIEFEE

Popular Science Contribution Award 2017

7 2017 FRRE G ERMAIFT ALE

The Innovative Convenience Food Grand Award 2017

8 2017 FHE G E R @EFT

The Innovative Convenience Food Award 2017

9 Bl 10058
China’s Top 100 Brands

10 2017 REETBV K4&
China’s TBV Grand Prize 2017

"M HELREFKRERE
Special Award in Public Welfare
12 PESRETESRESEE
China’s Outstanding Beverage Enterprises in Energy Saving
13 RESRETEEREREE
China’s Outstanding Beverage Enterprises in Water Saving
14  KPEEDEBBREAE100% BEERRAEE+RXKMREKE
100% HK Branding Award in Greater China/100% Canton-HK Collaboration Partner Award/Top Ten Brand
15 HEELGXETE
Honorary Certificate Awarded by Provincial Charity Federation

16 EEHER
Outstanding Supplier

17 BINTRRBEZEEE AR
Demonstration Site of Social Co-Governance on Food safety in Guangzhou City
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We have, throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, complied
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), except for the deviations from code provision A.4.1. The
reasons for these deviations are explained below.

Code provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Our Company
deviates from this provision because the independent non-executive
Directors of our Company do not currently have specific terms of
appointment. However, the articles of association of our Company
provide that all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being or, if the number is not a
multiple of three, then, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation and may offer themselves for
re-election. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have
been put in place to ensure our Company’s corporate governance
practice in this aspect provides sufficient protection for the interests of
shareholders to a standard commensurate with that of the CG code.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested with the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All the
Directors should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company. The main duties of the Board are as follows:

o Responsible for the shareholders of the Company;

o Formulate long-term and short-term strategic direction of the
Company, including development strategy, major investment,
acquisition and dispose of significant assets;

. Approve the Company’s annual budget and business plan;
° Supervise the management of the Company;

. Approve financial reports, annual reports and interim reports.
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The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
the Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to
exercise its powers in an informed manner, management provides
monthly management accounts and updates to the Directors for
the management report, provide detailed data of the company’s
performance, financial position and prospects, supported by the most
up-to-date financial data, combined with easy and comprehensive
assessment, who also have full and timely access to all relevant
information and may take independent professional advice if necessary.

Board composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises 9 Directors in total, with 6 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors whose
biographical details are set out in “Directors’ profile” section on pages
75 to 77 of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties with its written terms of reference as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(¢)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance practices and the compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.
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The Board has scheduled quarterly meetings per year and meets more
frequently as and when required. Agenda of the Board meeting are
collated by the board secretary and approved by the Chairman. Directors
may delegate some issues into the agenda of the Board meeting.
Board meeting notices issued in one month prior to the meeting to
each Director, and the accompanying agenda. During the financial
year ended 31 December 2017, seven Board meetings were held. The
attendance of individual director to the Board meetings in year 2017 is
summarised below:

HE BTEERSENH
Number of Board

Directors Meetings Attended/Held

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou 6/7
Mr. Junichiro Ida 717
Mr. Wu Chung-Vi

(resigned on 4 August 2017) 4/7
Mr. Teruo Nagano 717
Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 5/7
Mr. Koji Shinohara 7/7
Mr. Lin Chin-Tang 2/7

(appointed on 4 August 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 717
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 717
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 717

The Company Secretary keeps the Board Minutes of the Company for
inspection by the Directors.

Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board of Directors discuss
and approves major issues such as the Group's strategic plan, annual
budget, key operational initiatives, major investments and funding
decisions. It also reviews the Group's financial performance, assess and
identifies principal risks of the Group's business and ensures appropriate
implementation of measures to manage these risks.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the Finance
and Accounting Department which is under the supervision of the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, the Directors ensure that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure that the publication of the financial statements of
the Group is in a timely manner.
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The Company’s auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements has been set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 104 to 106.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first
occasion of his appointment, so as to ensure that he has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements. Such induction is normally supplemented with visits
to the Group's key business sites and/or meetings with the senior
management of the Company.

The Company provides, as appropriate, the latest developments
in the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
and reading material on relevant topics will be issued to directors
where appropriate. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses. All directors are
entitled to seek independent professional advice on responsibilities,
expenses paid by the company. To ensure that the directors have
deepened their understanding of the Group, senior management of
the Company has conducted a continuing professional development
plan for the directors during the year.

Summary for 2017 Directors’ Continuing Professional Development
shown as below:

(a) visit the management of business units to understand the
industry development and state of business operation as well
as the opportunities of business units;

(b) visit the management team in different locals, and learn
about China’s various regional channels operating conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company organized
briefings conducted by the Company Secretary for all its directors,
on corporate governance and update on the Listing Rules
amendments and provided reading materials on regulatory update
to all the directors for their reference and studying.

REDBEIZAR

2017 Annual Report £ 61



¥ ERIRE | Corporate Governance Report

EEREENRRZH

ARFICHEEENERAIGEEME A
BRITBELEE NIRRT -

ERERS

RABIR1999F 9 AN BIZEZE S - B
AMZEBEKERESTREBLALE  RIEHTL
ERFARAEZMNBYIENITES  F
REBLEERERZBEZER -

ENZEEEERPARAESSRRY
BRENEBEMERAEN  FREE8g 2

TERIRERHRERASEE 2B H
WHE - BBmE - BREERAEE
REEURBERRINEEERAEER
B ZEENETESREARQ AKX
MESEEZHEEEEACEEB/R - &
Vyﬂﬁ%hﬁﬁiéﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁa'ﬁ

TFHEERAE - NEBHEETA B RIMNE
Vﬁ%ﬁA*M&%ﬁmﬁmﬁioaé
2017 F 12 A3V HIEHREE ZEeH
BONWAEH BRZEESKELRES
BHERFR TR

]1]9

&

FRELE
RIERIELE
ARERTE

RZEenIRBzZeRIEZLAEE
2017 FEZ %45 -

BRMEZERERAA

62 TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in September 1999
and currently has three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Lee
Tiong-Hock, Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun and Mr. Hiromu Fukada. Mr. Lee Tiong-
Hock acts as Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors
of the Company to ensure the objectivity and credibility of the financial
statements. The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the
review and supervision of the Group's financial reporting system, the
preparation of financial statements, risk management and internal
control systems. As well as maintaining good corporate governance
standards and practices. It also acts as an important link between the
Board and the Company’s auditor in matters within the scope of the
group audit. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties and will meet regularly with management, internal
auditors and external auditors, as well as review their reports. Four
meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 December
2017. Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as

follows:

HEBITEERY
Members Number of meetings Attended/Hold
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 4/4
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 4/4
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 4/4

The latest meeting of the Committee was held to review the results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee was established on
11 August 2005. This Committee now comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun, Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock and
Mr. Hiromu Fukada. Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun acts as the Chairman of the
Committee. One meeting was held during the financial year ended 31
December 2017.

HEE T BITERRE

Number of meetings

Members Attended/Hold
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 171
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun i
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 11

The Committee was set up review the structure, size and diversity of the
Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
assess the independence of the independent non-executive directors,
advise the Board on the remuneration of individual executive directors
and senior management, and consider and approve the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management of the Group,
including the terms of salary and bonus schemes and other long-term
incentive schemes. The Committee also reviews the structure, size and
composition of the Board from time to time, assess the performance
of the Executive Directors and approve the terms of the Executive
Directors’ and recommends to the Board on appointments of Directors
and the succession planning for Directors. And to ensure that the
appointment and re-appointment of Directors in accordance with a fair
and transparent principles.

The company’s remuneration policies are as follows:

(@) Remuneration policies and practices, including directors, should
be fair and impartial and transparent and comply with regulatory
requirements;

(b) a director may not be involved in the making of his personal
remuneration.

Details of the Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.

REDBEIZAR

2017 Annual Report £ 63



¥ ERIRE | Corporate Governance Report

EREEME
REIE2017F12A31BEE X104z

=EEEALZMEARIT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid to the ten senior management individuals during
the year ended 31 December 2017 were as follows:

EEA"
SRESMSAR Emoluments band Number of individuals
3,027,851 ARM = 3,460,400 AR ¥ RMB3,027,851 to RMB3,460,400
(3,500,001 L% 4,000,00087T) (HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000) 1
3,460,401 AR¥EZE 3,892,950 AREE RMB3,460,401 to RMB3,892,950
(4,000,001 BT E 4,500,000 7T) (HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000) 1
3,892,951 ARME %= 4,325,500 AR#E RMB3,892,951 to RMB4,325,500
(4,500,001 5% 5,000,000/87T) (HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000) 4
6,920,801 AR¥ %= 7,353,350 AR RMB6,920, 801 to RMB7,353,350
(8,000,001 L% 8,500,000787T) (HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000) 1
7,353,351 AR¥EZE 7,785,900 AREE RMB7,353,351 to RMB7,785,900
(8,500,001 7L Z 9,000,000 7T ) (HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000) 1
12,543,951 AR¥EZ 12,976,500 AR # RMB12,543,951 to RMB12,976,500
(14,500,001 872 15,000,000 7 7T) (HK$14,500,001 to HK$15,000,000) 1
24,222,801 AR¥ % 24,655,350 AR RMB24,222,801 to RMB24,655,350
(28,000,001 8 7L 28,500,000/ 7T) (HK$28,000,001 to HK$28,500,000) 1
10
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The principal spirit of the risk management and internal control
procedures established by the Group is in compliance with five elements
in the COSO structure, i.e. control environment, risk assessment, control
activities, information and communication, and monitoring. The goal
of risk management is to keep the overall risk of the Group within
acceptable levels and to lay a good foundation for achieving the Group's
long-term development goals. In terms of internal control, it can achieve
the goal of defining the management structure and authorization so as
to enhance the operational performance and operational efficiency as
well as asset safety protection, which ensures the reliability of financial
reports while complies with the requirements of national regulations.
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Under the supervision of the Board, the Group has established a clear
organization structure, role and responsibility, and authorization for
it. The Audit Committee will assist the Board to review the design
and operation effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group. As of December 31, 2017, the Group
has completed the construction of the three lines of defense for risk
management, strengthened the internal control functions of the second
line of defense and carried out self-assessment and diagnosis of internal
control including finance, information and operation and sorted out
core restriction of authority and the implementation of regulations
monitoring and other work. According to the internal audit of the
internal control inspection and audit department, we have not identified
any material deficiency in risk management and internal control.
Therefore, the Board and the Audit Committee believe that the Group’s
risk management and internal control system are effective.

The risk management system established by the Group sets “pursue
sustainable development, assume social responsibility” as management
objective. The management process includes: risk identification, risk
assessment and evaluation, risk control and overall monitoring. Firstly,
the implementation of risk management objectives is set through
systematic and scientific methods. Then, through the interviews with
management and risk seminars, risk identification and risk management
framework are completed. Thirdly, fully participate in the discussion
through senior management to complete the risk assessment, and then
formulate risk response strategies. Finally, continue to implement risk
control activities and supervision.

Through counseling by external consultants, the risk management
projects executed by the Group in 2017. After the risk and opportunity
identification of the management, we will identify the driven factors of
risk and forecast the impact of risk. Meanwhile, the Company adopts
following four types of response strategy after prioritizing the risks:

(a) risk aversion.
(b) risk prevention.
(c) risk tolerance.
(d) risk transfer.

We will ensure the effective implementation of risk management
measure through periodic tracking and review after formulation of risk
response strategy. We further establish the enterprise risk management
strategy to support the Company to achieve the enterprise mid-to-
long term vision and strategic objective through implementation of risk
response measure to our regulation and system, structural planning and
operating process.
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According to the risk management project completed in 2017, the

Group proposes countermeasures against the top five risks as detailed

below:

1. INFORMATION RISK

1.1

1.2

Definitions:

The risk of operation interrupted due to the failure
of IT safety, operation and back-up system, such as
prevention and handling of system disorder, system
crash, safety protection or computer virus.

Risk of out-of-control information systems caused
by external threats such as theft of equipment/data,
computer fraud, unauthorized access, and vandalism.

Failure to effectively integrate business information
among IT systems.

Employee awareness of information protection is
weak, there is the risk of information leakage.

Coping strategies:

Clearly define the division of responsibilities for trade
secret protection, improve the operation procedures
and raise the awareness of employees on the risk
protection of business secrets. Effectively reduce
the risks of the Group’s core technology, strategic
planning, operation and management, human
resources, financial reports, and company-related
information, thereby avoiding company losses and
safeguarding shareholders’ rights and interests.

Cross-functional collaboration promotes the feasibility
assessment of information systems, and reviews and
coordinates cross-enterprise needs on a regular basis,
so as to avoid risks such as repeated establishment
or lack of synergies and inability of system data
integration.
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Improve the information security management system
based on PDCA:

[Plan] Determines the control objectives and control
measures based on risk assessments and laws and
regulations to measure organizational needs.

[Do] Implement the selected security controls.

[Check] To conduct compliance check on safety
measures based on the strategy, procedures and laws
and regulations.

[Action] Take corrective and preventive measures and
follow the improvement based on the internal control
and management review results.

Full staff training to raise awareness of information
security management. The Information Department
and the Internal Control Department work together
to carry out information security training through the
online system and offline teaching activities.

2. STRATEGICRISK

2.1

2.2

Definitions:

The risk of lost in market share or poor handling of
core product due to unable to implement response
policy under the highly competitive environment.

Coping strategies:

Strengthen industrial analysis and market research to
timely grasp consumer demand and lead the Group's
innovation and R & D direction.

The establishment of new product knowledge
base: continuous study of international or localized
products, effectively shorten the listing period of new
products.

Continuous optimization of senior executive incentive
programs to exert long-term retention results. Let
senior executives pay attention to the short-term
performance and long-term development of the

group.
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3.

CHANNEL RISK

3.1 Definition

With the rise of urbanization, there is a huge business
opportunity for entertainment consumption, and it is
yet to be improved.

Rapid development of channels, and the cost control
measures are not adjusted accordingly, which may
lead to a decrease in profitability.

The rise of the Internet affects the business model of
the traditional channels and the access to traditional
channels and the lack of enforcement.

3.2 Coping strategies:

Go To Market Innovation Center enabled, scientific
data analysis to understand consumer needs.
Strengthen cooperation with channel partners and
pursue mutual benefits and win-win results.

S&OP pilot optimized the coordination between
production and sales, accurately manufacturing
and marketing for modern trade, small multi-meal
production, enhancing order satisfaction.

Strengthen OP operation and develop indoor beverage
to increase utilization rate: turnover rate from hotel/
restaurant/cinema/milk station continued to improve.

Focus on the development of chain store or
special access to enter the EC channel, deepen the
development of B2B, B2C, 020 national/regional
e-commerce, combining the specific brand of
e-commerce and packaging/anniversary big promotion
period to enhance e-commerce channel sales.
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FOOD SAFETY RISK

4.1 Definition

Insufficient efforts are being made to guide positive
public opinion, and the response mechanism to the
food safety crisis is not agile enough.

Consumer’s trust in the product may be affected due
to unsmooth operation of quality management or
food safety systems.

4.2 Coping strategies

Fine food safety management system, strict control of
production quality processes, the implementation of
traceability management mechanism.

Crisis management process was established and
the crisis public relations knowledge base was
continuously updated and optimized. Improve crisis
management early warning mechanism.

Call center is established, 100% customer information
is received, establish a good brand image and
consumer services.

COMPETITIVE RISKS

5.1 Definitions

Consumer market is gradually shrinking, leading to the
risk of surging competition. The packaging and taste
between competing products are highly qualitative
and the products are easily replaced.

5.2 Coping strategies

Technical exchanges with international partners
to master global trends and innovations. Analyze
new products on the market promptly, improve
the frequency and intensity of product innovation,
cultivate professional sensory evaluation team and
promote innovation and sustainable development.
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e  Based on demand space to ensure that product sales
strategy is accurate. The Group continue to implement
the pre-production mechanism to stabilize the
production efficiency of equipment and ensure the
supply and tracking of the production and marketing
progress of new products.

e Raising gross margin revenue management: high/low
gross margin portfolio.

To ensure the sustainable operation of the Group and showing gratitude
to the social responsibility of stakeholders, the Group initiates the
enhancing risk management and internal for control plan. Through the
support by external professional independent consultant, adhering to
the operating idea and CIS spirit of the Group to specify and formulate
the three stages objective of optimization of risk management and
internal control system.

The first stage of the work focuses on the overall construction of the
internal control self-assessment system and the improvement of the
operational structure of the internal control department in each district
to more clearly define the responsibilities of the three lines of defense
for risk management. The Group continue to optimize the Group's
operating efficiency and simultaneously reduce the Group’s operational
risk and enhance its awareness of risk management.

The second stage of work focuses on refining system controls and
making good use of data analysis to strengthen internal control reviews
based on the significant risks of the risk management project in 2017
and the results of internal control self-assessment. The Group set up a
risk-based smart platform to carry out a systematic analysis of recurring
internal control problems with the holding company and business units
functions, and completed the management system of online and offline
recycling of the top ten risks.

The focus of the third phase is mainly on promoting the internal
control self-evaluation mechanism of the whole group, designing and
implementing the internal control assessment mechanism of the group,
so as to establish a normal and stable internal control assessment
system combining reward and punishment. Through time series analysis,
trend analysis, structure analysis, decision tree analysis, regression
analysis, compliance analysis and so on. Through the automated analysis
and continuous monitoring of risk data, we can achieve the goal of
positioning and management from the source of risk, in order to reduce
the possibility of risk occurrence from the root.
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The internal audit department is independent of the management and
reports to the Audit Committee. It is responsible for conducting risk-
oriented internal audits of the Group’s significant operational risks
and conducting independent internal audits or investigations on the
effectiveness of risk management and related monitoring systems and
whistleblowing matters. The Company strives to promote a probable
operation environment and corporate culture, and formulates relevant
policy and measure of whistleblowing.

The Company plans to perfect the self-assessment mechanism for
internal control of the Group in 2018 and assist the management in the
implementation of risk assessment and supervision, and establish sound
risk management policies and risk management procedures. Through
the steady implementation of the above steps, we can effectively
ensure that the Company’s corporate reputation and brand image
maintenance, value creation and risk management mechanism are in
line with the expectations of stakeholders.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDER INFORMATION

In respect of the procedure of dealing with and disseminating insider
information as well as the internal control measure:

. The Group strictly complies with the disclosure requirements
of the Listing Rules and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information published by the Securities and Futures Commission in
June 2012 for dealing with and disseminating insider information;

° The Group discloses broad and non-exclusive information to
the public through financial report, announcement and official
website;

° The Group has established the internal confidential rules, which
directing against the senior management and general staff who
can access insider information due to their rankings or duties,
providing education and training of confidential regulations,
requiring the aforesaid staff to sign the confidential commitment.
In respect of result announcement or material transaction, strictly
controlling and limiting the scope of staff who can accessing
information, the material sensitive information is concealed by
confidential code (including electronic, written and verbal), and
giving a written notice about the lock-up period and other matters
required for special attention to avoid insider information.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited is the Independent Auditor of the Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2017, total fees paid/payable in
connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services to Mazars
CPA Limited amounted to RMB9,962,000 and RMB Nil respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ip Pui Sum of Sum, Arthur & Co., Certified Public Accountants,
an external service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its
company secretary. Mr. Ip’s primary contact person at the Company is
Mr. Liu Kuo Wei, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Ip has taken no less
than 20 hours of relevant professional trainings to update his skills and
knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. Details of
shareholders’ rights have been set out in the Company's article of
association.

CONVENING EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF THE
COMPANY

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than 25% of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall all time have the
right, by written requisition to the Board to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition pursuant to Article 57 of the
Company's articles of association. Such requisition must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the office of the Company. If
within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the shareholder(s) making the requisition may do so in
accordance with the provision of Article 57 of the Company’s articles of
association.

The written requisition requiring an extraordinary general meeting called
can be sent to the principal place of business of the Company as set
out in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual report for the
attention of the Company Secretary.
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SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
of the Group to shareholders through the publication of notices,
announcements, circulars, quarterly, interim and annual reports.
Moreover, additional information is also available to shareholders
through the Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The
Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting
the Group and encourages them to attend shareholder’s meetings
to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or
management directly.

Shareholders could also send email directly through the Investors section
in the Company'’s website www.masterkong.com.cn for any enquiries.

CHANGES IN THE COMPANY’S CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional documents for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group disseminates the latest information to investors and the
public in strict compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules in an open, fair and transparent manner. To facilitate
communication between senior management and the public, the Group
regularly hosts shareholder meetings, investor and analyst briefings and
company visits. In addition, the Group organises road show and attends
investor conferences to meet with global Investors and shareholders
in an effort to gather suggestions and comments. In 2017, the Group
conducted more than 265 meetings with approximately 1,300 analysts
and fund managers. Investors can also obtain useful information and
updates on the Group’s business development from our websites. The
Group is committed to enhance corporate transparency and the quality
of disclosures.

The Company is a constituent stock of Morgan Stanley Capital
International (MSCI) China Index and Hang Seng China (Hong Kong-
listed) 100 Index. In July, Institutional Investor magazine released the
results of the 2017 All Asia Executive Team rankings. In the consumer
sector, Tingyi Holding was awarded the third place for the Best Analyst
Days, and Mr. Liu Kuo-Wei was awarded top three of the Best CFO.
In December, IR Magazine Awards Greater China 2017 awarded the
Certificate for Excellence in Investor Relations to Tingyi Holding. Being
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recognized by the international investors, in addition to providing
confirmation to the investor relations work of the Company, it also
provides a lot of encouragement to the investor relations team of the
Company. The Group is currently covered by 25 investment banks
and securities firms, which shows our investment and development
potential.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, following specific
enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the review period.
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WEI Ing-Chou, aged 64, Chairman of the Group, joined the Group in
1991 and is responsible for the supervision and the management of the
Group as well as the formulation of the overall strategy of the Group.
He has over 30 years’ experience in factory construction, production
management and research in relation to food production. In September
2010, Mr. Wei Ing-Chou, was awarded an honorary doctorate degree
by Waseda University of Japan in recognition of his outstanding
contributions in areas such as business operations and corporate social
responsibility over the years.

Junichiro IDA, aged 56, was appointed as Vice-Chairman of the
Group on 15 November 2013 and appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group in May 2002, is the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.
After graduating from Rikkyo University in 1985, he joined The Fuji
Bank, Limited and worked there for six years. In 1992, he joined Sanyo
Foods Co., Ltd. He became the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd in
June 1998. Mr. Ida is currently the Director of Sanyo Foods Corp. of
America as well as the Director of Caraway Pte Ltd (J/V of package
foods business between Olam International Limited and Sanyo Foods
Co., Ltd in Africa). He is also the Representative Director of Sanyo Foods
Scholarship Foundation, the Representative Director of Sanyo Foods
Culture and Sports Foundation, the President of Japan Convenience
Foods Industry Association and the Chairman of the Board of Save the
Children Japan.

Mr. LIN Chin-Tang, aged 68, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group on 4 August 2017, is the senior executive assistant to the
Chairman and the director of Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Co., Ltd. He joined
the group in October 1995 as the Vice President of the Hangzhou
Comely Foods International. Prior to his current appointment, he was
the General Manager of Hangzhou Tingyi International Food Co., Ltd.,
General Manager of Hangzhou Tingjin International Food Co., Ltd.,
President of the beverage business, the Group’s Chief Financial Officer
and Vice President of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, he was
the Manager of the Accounting Department of Nestle Taiwan Group,
Director of Management Department and Chief Accountant for General
Food, Taiwan and Guangzhou. Mr. Lin graduated from Soochow
University in Taiwan in 1972, majoring in accounting.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Teruo NAGANO, aged 69, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Group on 19 September 2013. Mr. Nagano has been employed by
Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd. (“Sanyo Foods”) since January 2000 and joined
the Company in March 2000 as the Senior Advisor to the office of the
Chief Financial Officer. In July 2007 he returned to Sanyo Foods as the
Deputy General Manager of the Oversea Division and then joined the
Company again in November 2010 as the Senior Advisor to the office
of the Chief Financial Officer. He is currently Consultant of Sanyo Foods.
After graduating from Hitotsubashi University of Economics in 1972, he
worked in The Fuji Bank, Limited for over 29 years. He has substantial
working experience in the financial industry and has comprehensive
knowledge of the international financial markets.

WEI Hong-Ming, aged 40, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Group on 4 February 2015. Mr. Wei joined the Group as project
manager of the CEQ’s office in 2006. Mr. Wei holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Mathematics from King's College, the University
of London, a Master of Science degree in Mathematics from Brunel
University in the UK, and a Master of Science degree in Management
from the Graduate School of Business at Stanford University in the USA.
Mr. Wei is the son of Mr. Wei Ing-Chou, the Chairman of the Group.

Koji SHINOHARA, aged 50, appointed as an Executive Director of the
Group on 28 May 2015. Mr. Shinohara joined Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.
in August 2014 as the executive director and Head of Marketing. After
graduating from Keio University of Economics in 1990, he worked in
Coca-Cola (Japan) for brand marketing, sales and business management.
In 2007, he was the Vice President of brand marketing of Coca-Cola
(Japan). In 2008, he was the Global Senior Director of ready-to-drink
(RTD) coffee and RTD tea section of Coca-Cola Atlanta headquarter. In
2010, Mr. Shinohara was the Senior Vice President of brand marketing
of Coca-Cola (Japan). He has more than 20 years working experience in
the brand marketing industry.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

HSU Shin-Chun, aged 62, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group in October 1999. He received a
bachelor degree in Business Administration and EMBA degree from
National Taiwan University in 1979 and 2006 respectively. He has more
than 17 years working experience in the financial industry and has
comprehensive knowledge in securities investments, corporate finance
and financial engineering. He is also a Certified Financial Analyst in
Taiwan.

LEE Tiong-Hock, aged 78, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since September 2004. Mr. Lee
has over 28 years of experience in commercial and investment banking.
From 1977 to 1987, he served as the senior manager of marketing
department of an international bank in Hong Kong and, concurrently,
as general manager of its two deposit-taking subsidiaries. During 1989
to 1997, he was engaged in corporate finance advisory business, and
since then in private financial consultancy business in Hong Kong. He
is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and the Hong Kong
Securities Institute and fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Director.

Hiromu FUKADA, aged 88, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since 3 January 2012. After
graduation from University of Tokyo, he went to University of Oxford,
and specialized in politics and economics. He held important positions
in Japanese Ministry of Foreign Affairs from 1951. He had worked as
counselor of America Bureau, ambassador in OECD, Singapore and
Australia, and director of Economic Affairs Mr. Fukada had been the
Auditor of Ueno Fine Chemicals Industry, Ltd. from 2006 to 2016, and
he is currently the Advisor of the same company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

IP Pui-Sum, aged 58, graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic with
a Higher Diploma in Accountancy in 1982. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (United Kingdom) and
an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors, the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and the ordinary member of Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. He also obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration in 1996. Mr. Ip has over 20 years of experience in public
accounting and company secretarial practices. He is also a certified
public accountant (practising) in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in
September 1995.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

James Chun-Hsien WEI, aged 60, was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer of the Group on 1 January 2015. Prior to that Mr. Wei was
appointed as CEO of Food Business of the Group on 1 January 2013.
Prior to joining the Group, he was a senior advisor of CVC Capital Asia
Pacific. From 2009 to 2011, he was the Executive Board Member and
the President of the Asian region of Beiersdorf Aktiengesellschaft Group.
From 2003 to 2009, he served as the Senior Vice President of Asia
Pacific region of Avon Products Inc., where he was responsible for the
operations in 10 markets, including Japan, Taiwan, Australia, Philippines
and India. Before that, Mr. Wei spent 19 years at Procter & Gamble
where he rose to become the Vice President and General Manager of
Great China,overseeing the company’s health and beauty care business
in that region. Mr. Wei built P&G Pantene PRO-V and SK || business
model with global turnover in multibillion-dollar, and based on Taiwan's
success models. Mr. Wei holds a B.S.E.E from National Taiwan University
and an M.B.A from the University of Chicago Booth School of Business
in USA.

KuoWei LIU, aged 47, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
He joined the Group in 2006, has been the Manager, Assistant Vice
President and Vice President of Finance and Accounting Department.
Prior to joining the Group, he was the Assistant Manager of Finance
Department, General Manager’s Office of Taiwan Mobile Co., Ltd. Mr.
Liu holds a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering of Taiwan
National Cheng Kung University, Master of Computer Science of
Imperial College, University of London and an M.B.A. from Wharton
School at the University of Pennsylvania. During his study in Wharton
School, he was awarded the Fulbright Scholarship, Mr. Felix Chang'’s
Memorial Scholarship, Dr. CF Koo's Scholarship, Wharton MBA
Graduate Grant and First Year Honor. At the end of 2014, he was
invited to be State Alumni by Bureau of Educational and Cultural Affairs,
Department of State of USA.

Jammy XU, aged 59, is the chief of Administrative Officer, joined
the Group in March 1997. Mr. Xu used to be the executive of IT
Department and SM&A Department. He graduated from Applied
Mathematics Department of Chinese Culture University in Taiwan. Prior
to joining the Group, he worked for Rongdian Company, Qiaoju Trading
Company, Nanchow Chemical Industrial Company. Mr. Xu is familiar
with IT business, good at communication and coordination. Also skilled
in organization and management.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Walt WU, aged 57, Chief Human Resources Officer. He graduated from
the Institute of Human Resource Management, National San Yat Sen
University (Taiwan). Mr. Wu joined the Group in November 2005 as the
Senior Assistant Vice President and Senior Vice President of Beverages
Business. He was the Chief of Staff of CEO office in September 2014
and in November 2014 was appointed as the Chief of Human Resources.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked in Twinhead International Corp.
as an Assistant Manager of Human Resources, Tsrc Corporation and
The Home World Group as an Vice President of Human Resources.
Mr. Wu has 27 years of experience in human resources management,
with expertise in strategic human resource management, human
development. He endeavors to build the sustainable development talent
team, to promote organizational change and make full advantage of
human resources benefits, realizing the organizational transformation.

Richard CHEN, Chief R&D Officer, aged 55, joined the Group
in February 2013. He graduated from the Chemical Engineering
Department, National Taiwan University. Prior to joining the Group, he
had 25 years of global R&D experience in Procter & Gamble. Mr. Chen
is trilingual and worked in Taiwan, US, Japan and China for leading
Consumer Product Innovation and R&D Capability Building.

Max HUANG, aged 54, is the Executive President of the Group's Instant
Noodle Business. He holds a BBA from National Taiwan University
of Technology. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 2010 and
successively served as Supervisor of Sales Department, General Manager
of Northwestern District, General Manager of East China District,
Regional Executive Vice President of North District, and Executive Vice
President of Instant Noodle Business. Prior to joining the Group, in a
total of 22 years, Mr. Huang served for DaChan Group and business
planning department of the Lucky Royal Co., Ltd, which is the related
company of Nanchow Chemical Industrial Co., Ltd. Mr. Huang has over
29 years' extensive management experience in sales and marketing.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

George HUANG, aged 60, is the Executive President of the Group's
Beverage Business. He joined the Group in June 2001 as Head of
Sales Department of the Group's Instant Noodle Business, General
Manager of Hangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. in April 2002 and was the
President of the Group’s Beverage Business in January 2005. Mr. Huang
graduated from Tourism Department of Chinese Culture University
in Taiwan. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for a British Trading
Company TAIT CO. and was the Sales Director of Swire Coca-Cola,
Taiwan. Mr. Huang is particularly familiar in sales & marketing and
business strategy, familiar with the China market. And especially skilled
in figure sense, detailed management and strong executive force.

Vincent LIU, aged 58, was appointed as the President of the Pepsi
Beverage Business in December 2014. He joined the Group in 2000
and has served as General Manager or Regional General Manager of
Chong Qing Tingyi, Chong Qing Tingjin, Wuhan Tingjin and Hangzhou
Tingjin. Prior to joining the group, he has worked for British Trading
Company TAIT CO. Mr. Liu is particularly familiar management in sales
and marketing, and has over 20 years extensive experience.

Bob CHEN, aged 59, is the Executive Vice President of the Group’s
Instant Food Business. Mr. Chen holds a BBA from Fu Jen Catholic
University and an EMBA from National Taiwan University. He joined the
Group in August 2014. Mr. Chen has an intensive experience of more
than 30 years in the field of marketing and strategic management. He
worked for NamChow Chemical Industrial Co., Modern Home Products
(@ JV of P&G and NamChow), P&G Singapore/Malaysia, P&G Taiwan,
Great Wall Co., Hwa Wei & Grey Advertising Agency (a subsidiary of
WPP group), Nirvana Brand Consulting Group and DaChan Foods (Asia)
Limited.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 49 to the
financial statements.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of
instant noodles, beverages and instant food in the PRC.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit (loss) attributable to
owners of the Company by major segments is set out below:

PR R PE (LSBT (B518)
Profit (loss)
U &5 attributable to
Revenue owners of the Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
AR¥TFr ARBFT AR¥ T ABEFIT
(#=EZI) (A= E5l)
(Restated) (Restated)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
e i Instant noodles 22,620,155 21,562,404 1,490,544 1,170,525
/) Beverages 34,754,288 32,493,464 425,971 176,203
HERM Instant food 859,011 914,860 (2,306) (71,541)
Hftb Others 720,334 608,121 (95,132) (113,488)
&a&t Total 58,953,788 55,578,849 1,819,077 1,161,699
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A review of the business of the Group during the year under review and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing and important events
affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31 December
2017 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
page 6, the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 10 to 23, the section headed “Prospects” on pages 24 to 25 and
in the section headed “Risk management and Internal control” of the
Corporate governance report on pages 58 to 74 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31
December 2017 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the “Financial Summary” on pages 3 to page 5 and in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 23 of
this annual report.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 107.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of US2.49
cents per ordinary share, totalling US$139.6 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB909.5 million).

The final dividend will be paid on or before 11 July 2018. Shareholders
registered under the Hong Kong branch register of members on 11 June
2018 will receive their dividends in Hong Kong dollars.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 112 to 113.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the investment properties of the Group are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company's
shares by the Company or any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 20 March
2008, the shareholders approved the adoption of the share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The terms of the Share Option
Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the

Listing Rules. Detail arrangement for the Share Option Scheme shown

as below:
Table A
REHBRE
RHEBH Number of share 1THEHA
Date of grant options granted Exercisable period
20084 3 A20H 11,760,000 201343 A21H=E2018%F3 A20H(1)
20 March 2008 21 March 2013 to 20 March 2018 (1)
2009F 4 H22 H 26,688,000 2014F 4 A23HZE2019F4A228(Q2)
22 April 2009 23 April 2014 to 22 April 2019 (2)
2010F4 A1H 15,044,000 20154 A1 HZ2020F3 A31H@3)
1 April 2010 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2020 (3)
2011 F 4 812 H 17,702,000 2016 F4 A12HE2021F4811H4)
12 April 2011 12 April 2016 to 11 April 2021 (4)
2012 4 H26 H 9,700,000 2017F4 H26 HE2022F 4 A25H8(5)
26 April 2012 26 April 2017 to 25 April 2022 (5)
20134 5H27H 11,492,000 201845 A27HZE 202345 A 26 H(6)
27 May 2013 27 May 2018 to 26 May 2023 (6)
201454178 12,718,500 2019F 4 H17822024F 4316 8 (7)
17 April 2014 17 April 2019 to 16 April 2024 (7)
201546 A5H 17,054,000 2020 6 A5 HE2025F6 A4 H(8)
5 June 2015 5 June 2020 to 4 June 2025 (8)
20167 H4H 10,148,000 2021 7H4B=2026F7 A38(9)
4 July 2016 4 July 2021 to 3 July 2026 (9)
20179 4H21H8 11,420,000 2022F4H21BE2027F 4208 (10)
21 April 2017 21 April 2022 to 20 April 2027 (10)

TEE
Exercise price
(Bx)
(HKS)
$9.28
$9.38
$18.57
$19.96
$20.54
$20.16
$22.38
$16.22

$7.54

$10.2
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Name Date of grant

HiTES

Executive Director

BN 200838208

Wei Ing-Chou 20 March 2008
2009548228
22 April 2009
20104818
1 April 2010
N11E4F128
12 April 2011
2012548268
26 April 2012
2013F58278
27 May 2013
014545178
17 April 2014
201556750
5 June 2015

HEZ 2012547268

Lin Chin-Tang 26 April 2012
2013F58278
27 May 2013
014545178
17 April 2014
2015%6A5H
5 June 2015

R 017548218

WeiHong-Ming 21 April 2017

WEARES

Director of a subsidiary

RER 017548218

WeiHong-Chen 21 April 2017

BREBEZERERDR

The summary below sets out the details of movement of the share
options during the twelve months ended 31 December 2017 pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme:

BlZ& B Table B
BREHE
Number of share option
FERTRA
il 337
BFAHZ 20175 WwE
RithmE H2017% ER o FREHH 128318 Weighted
Closing price 181R ik B Vs 2B average
fTft@  of the shares it Granted Exercsed  Cancelled/  Balanceas  dlosing price
Exercise ~ onthedate  Balance as at during during lapsed during at31December  immediately iz
price of grant 1 January 2017 the period the period the period 2017 before exercise  Note
o BT BT
HKS HKS HKS
9.28 8.55 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 - BAW
Table A (1)
9.38 9.37 2,816,000 - - - 2,816,000 - EAQ
Table A (2)
18.57 18.42 2,200,000 - - - 2,200,000 - LE)
Table A(3)
19.96 19.96 2,264,000 - - - 2,264,000 - EAY
Table A (4)
20.54 2054 1,368,000 - - - 1,368,000 - BAD)
Table A (5)
20.16 20.05 1,390,000 - - - 1,390,000 L)
Table A (6)
2238 22.35 1,486,000 - - - 1,486,000 - BAD
Table A (7)
16.22 15.92 1,726,000 - - - 1,726,000 - EA®
Table A (8)
20.54 2054 300,000 - - 300,000 - - BAD)
Table A (5)
20.16 20.05 218,000 - - - 218,000 L)
Table A (6)
2238 22.35 224,000 - - - 224,000 - BAD
Table A (7)
16.22 15.92 334,000 - - - 334,000 - EA®)
Table A (8)
10.20 10.20 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 - [BA(0)
Table A (10)
10.20 10.20 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 - BAn0)
Table A(10)
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Name Date of grant

THEE

Chief Executive Officer

B8 201355278

James Chun-Hsien 27 May 2013

Wei 014548178

17 April 2014
201556 A5A
5June 2015
016F7R4A
4 July 2016
2017548218
21 April 2017

RfbESR

Other employees 200843 5 20 H
inaggregate 20 March 2008

2009645228
22 April 2009
2010647818
1 April 2010
2011545128
12 April 2011
2012645268
26 April 2012
013F5427H
27 May 2013
2014545178
17 April 2014
2015%6 750
5June 2015
216%7R48
41uly 2016
17F4F21H
21 April 2017

@
Total

BB (&)

TiE
Exercise
price
B
HKS

20.16

22.38

16.22

7.54

10.20

9.28

938

18.57

19.96

20.54

20.16

2238

16.22

7.54

10.20

RFE#Z
ReUmE
Closing price
of the shares
on the date
of grant
)

HKS

20.05

22.35

15.92

7.54

10.20

8.55

937

18.42

19.96

20.54

20.05

22.35

15.92

754

10.20

120178
1A1H
28

Balance as at
1 January 2017

904,000

1,148,000

2,006,000

4,300,000

2,564,000

9,884,000

9,651,000

12,694,000

7,230,000

7,744,000

8,886,000

12,368,000

5,848,000

101,553,000

FRRi
Granted
during
the period

4,000,000

5,420,000

11,420,000

Table B (Continued)

BREHE

Number of share option
Fr FRoHE#
Bk /KA
Exercised Cancelled/
during  lapsed during
the period the period
2,264,000 -
5,739,000 -
- 1,848,000
- 2,748,000
- 1,142,000
- 156,000
- 402,000
- 614,000
725,000 -
- 150,000
8,728,000 7,360,000

R2017%
12A318
ki

Balance as

at 31 December
2017

904,000

1,148,000

2,006,000

4,300,000

4,000,000

300,000

4,145,000

7,803,000

9,946,000

6,088,000

7,588,000

8,484,000

11,754,000

5,123,000

5,270,000

96,885,000

SETRA
e
i
Weighted
average
dlosing price
immediately K3
before exercise ~ Note
B
HKS

1)
Table A (6)
- BAD
Table A (7)
)
Table A (8)
- EAO
Table A (9)
- BA10)
Table A(10)

13.08  BA)
Table A (1)
1376 EAQ)
Table A(2)
- BB
Table A (3)
- EA@
Table A (4)
- EAB)
Table A (5)
- EAl)
Table A (6)
- BAD
Table A(7)
- EA®
Table A (8)
1453 EAO9)
Table A (9)
- BEA(0)
Table A(10)
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For the period of twelve months ended 31 December 2017, 8,728,000
options had been exercised by employees under the Share Option
Scheme. Weighted average exercise price was HK$9.2 and the weighted
average market closing price before the date of exercise was HK$13.65.
For details, please refer to note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The directors and chief executive officer of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou

Mr. Junichiro Ida

Mr. Teruo Nagano

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming

Mr. Koji Shinohara

Mr. Lin Chin-Tang (appointed on 4 August 2017)
Mr. Wu Chung-Yi (resigned on 4 August 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock
Mr. Hiromu Fukada

Chief Executive Officer
Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei

None of the directors have a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without the payment
of compensation.

The Company received confirmation of independence from the
Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.
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(a)-1 RO REABEROHNERRE

= Name

BE=E Directors
B Wei Ing-Chou
WER Lin Chin-Tang

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 75 to 80.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to
securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(a)-1 Long position in the shares and the underlying Shares

RHOEE R 1D 4 2
Number of Shares Bt
B A= EEER Percentage
Personal Corporate of the issued
interests interests share capital
(Hiat2) (Kiat1)
(note 2) (note 1)
13,242,000 1,882,927,866 33.78%
554,000 — 0.01%
REMEIZAR
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(a)-2 RAEQARBREFHRE (HEFE2)

e
Bx
M

Name
Director

Wei Ing-Chou

Wei Hong-Ming

Lin Chin-Tang

Chief Executive Officer

James Chun-Hsien Wei

(b) BEZEROZRA

Exps

Name of Directors

)N
Wei Ing-Chou

RMEZERERAA

B imEn

(a)-2 Long position in share options of the Company (note 2)

B RERME
Capacity and
nature of interest

EREAA
Beneficial owner
BE=BA
Beneficial owner
BB A

Beneficial owner

BERBEAA

Beneficial owner

BROEE
Number of
shares
15,250,000

1,000,000

776,000

12,358,000

ERGEE
Bok
Percentage
of the issued
share capital
0.27%

0.02%

0.01%

0.22%

(b) Long position in shares of associated corporation

Name of associated Corporation

FRAME &R AR B R A A
Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd.

88 TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

REE LB 2
BREE
(K17%3)
Number of
shares of

the associated
corporation
(Note 3)

232,645

1ER1D B
ATk
Percentage
of the issued
share capital

22.10%

MY
Nature of
interest

Pz

Corporate
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BHA4T61%  REHEEBRERAR(TE
ﬁD%ﬁ%ﬂmw%'@%ﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁ
I H17.835% © B A EBEZERKS
& 1t 2 B A Bl China Foods Investment
Corp. ¥556.482% KRBV E-ERFBHMB
#70.683% o A{E K& L4z JhER Profit Surplus
Holdings Limited([ Profit Surplus ) 100% %k
A ° Profit Surplus Z B EFEHIZFTA -
A=A A U E BB EFEIRESE LB
#74 ° Lion Trust (Singapore) Limited &t
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BEREA  ZBBEERARRE
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HERO PSR -

BEZIRBEARNAN 200843 A20 A £
TZBRRFRNAS BB AN RERE
512145 41,000,000 1) B8 B #E (F£ 51 N 58
84 H[EIXB) -

B B A IR 554,000 AR5 o 7 B HE
& WIREAAFN 200843 A20H 4
TZBRRERRE @B AN G ERE
181358 776,000 10 BB RS AE (FE 71| 10 55 84
BEB) -

BRBRIBEANAFN 200843 5200 £
T2 BRR BRI R & il 2 KA 7 IR
sTEI# 5 12,358,000 17 B AGHE (F£71 058
85 HE%B) °

It£ 232,645 %2 ATEFT B EIF B RER -
BRATEF BB EBE2EE89E W
’| )

Note:

These 1,882,927,866 shares are held by and registered under the name
of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Hsin”). Ting Hsin is
beneficially owned as to approximately 44.761% by Ho Te Investments
Limited (“Ho Te"), as to approximately 30.239% by Rich Cheer Holdings
Limited (“Rich Cheer”), as to 17.835% by Itochu Corp., and 6.482% by
China Foods Investment Corp., a subsidiary of Asahi Group Holdings, Ltd.,
and as to the remaining 0.683% by unrelated third parties. Ho Te and Rich
Cheer were owned as to 100% by Profit Surplus Holdings Limited (" Profit
Surplus”). Profit Surplus is the trustee of a unit trust, which is in turn held
by four discretionary trusts in equal proportions. Lion Trust (Singapore)
Limited is the trustee of each of the above four discretionary trusts, the
settlors and discretionary objects of the above four discretionary trusts are
as follows:

—  Wei Chang Lu-Yun is the settlor of one of the above discretionary
trusts with Wei Chang Lu-Yun and Wei, Ing-Chou as discretionary
objects;

— Lin Li-Mien is the settlor of one of the above discretionary trusts
with Lin Li-Mien and Wei, Ying-Chiao as discretionary objects;

—  Wei Hsu Hsiu-Mien is the settlor of one of the above discretionary
trusts with Wei Hsu Hsiu-Mien and Wei, Yin-Chun as discretionary
objects; and

—  Wei Tu Miao is the settlor of one of the above discretionary trusts
with Wei Tu Miao and Wei, Yin-Heng as discretionary objects.

Wei Ing-Chou is also personally interested in 13,242,000 shares and holds
15,250,000 share options (details shown as Table B on page 84) under the
share option scheme of the Company passed by an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 20 March 2008. Wei Chang Lu-Yun,
being the spouse of Wei Ing-Chou, is also deemed to be interested in the
shares and the underlying shares held by Wei Ing-Chou.

Wei Hong-Ming holds 1,000,000 share options (details shown as Table B
on page 84) under the share option scheme of the Company passed by an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 20 March 2008.

Lin Chin-Tang is also personally interested in 554,000 shares and holds
776,000 share options (details shown as Table B on page 84) under the
share option scheme of the Company passed by an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 20 March 2008.

James Chun-Hsien Wei holds 12,358,000 share options (details shown
as Table B on page 85) under the share option scheme of the Company
passed by an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 20
March 2008.

These 232,645 shares are held by and registered under the name of Ting
Hsin. Please refer to note 1 on page 89 for the shareholding structure of
Ting Hsin.
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Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2017 there were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors
and Chief Executive Officer had interests in any securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to securities
transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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F12A318 REFHFLHAEKRIE
336 IRATHIFNERMACER(HART
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REOREERONERE

BRE®

Name of shareholders

BRI (R 1)A

Ting Hsin (see note 1)

B AR(ZHFE 1)

Ho Te Investments Limited (see note 1)*
LR BERRR(ZMHE 1)

Rich Cheer Holdings Limited (see note 1)
Profit Surplus Holdings Limited( 2 4 7)4
Profit Surplus Holdings Limited (see note 1)
Lion Trust (Singapore) Limited( £ 4772 1)A
Lion Trust (Singapore) Limited (see note 7)A
WRRE (A1 R2)A

Wei Chang Lu-Yun (see notes 1 & 2)4
MEAR(EMEE 1)

Lin Li-Mien (see note 1)*

BT A RN 1)

Wei Hsu Hsiu-Mien (see note 1)

B (ZME )

Wei Tu Miao (see note 1)~
ZHRmA gt

Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.

A MIsE1 R 22BN AFIRESIH

A Notes 1 & 2 are set out on page 89

B bt ESN - 20174912 318 R
(BELEED)FE B IEBTHENE
affpracss  BImEMATHERARAR
MSABBERGD 2 Em KB o

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS’

INTERESTS IN SHARES

So far as was known to any Directors or Chief Executive Officer of the

Company, as at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions

of substantial shareholders and other persons of the Company, in the

shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

required to the kept under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise

notified to the Company, were as follows:

Long position in the Shares and the underlying Shares

5%
Capacity

EREBA

Beneficial owner
XERAER

Interest of controlled company
XERAER

Interest of controlled company
BUEFRXTA

Trustee of a unit trust
HEGEFEXTA

Trustee of discretionary trusts
MEEFTEETEA

Settlor of a discretionary trust
BEEFTEETEA

Settlor of a discretionary trust
HEGETEELEA

Settlor of a discretionary trust
MEEFTEETEA

Settlor of a discretionary trust
EREBA

Beneficial owner

F:ORE
Note: (L) Long Position

BERGEE
Number of
shares held

1,882,927,866 (L)

1,882,927,866 (L)

1,882,927,866 (L)

1,882,927,866 (L)

1,882,927,866 (L)

1,911,419,866 (L)

1,882,927,866 (L)

1,882,927,866 (L)

1,882,927,866 (L)

1,882,927,866 (L)

HEBRTRE
ZADE %

% of the issued
share capital

33.54

33.54

33.54

33.54

33.54

34.05

33.54

33.54

33.54

33.54

Apart from the above, no other interest or short position in the shares

or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2017.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the printing of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the related party transactions as disclosed in the financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Junichiro Ida, an Executive Director of the Company became the
President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd in June 1998. Mr. Ida is currently
the Director of Sanyo Foods Corp. of America as well as the Director
of Caraway Pte Ltd (J/V of package foods business between Olam
International Limited and Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd in Africa). He is also the
Representative Director of Sanyo Foods Scholarship Foundation, the
Representative Director of Sanyo Foods Culture and Sports Foundation,
the President of Japan Convenience Foods Industry Association and the
Chairman of the Board of Save the Children Japan.

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, an Executive Director of the Company, has not
been a discretionary object of Ting Hsin since 1 December 2017.
Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
DONATIONS

Donation made by the Group during the year amounted to RMB34.440
million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods and
services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less than 30% of its goods
to its 5 largest customers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 15 November 2016, the Company entered into (1) Tingzheng
(Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“TZCI") Supply Agreement, pursuant
to which, TZClI supplies the TZCl materials (flexible plastic packaging
materials and plastic products) to the Group for a term commencing
from 1 January 2017 until 31 December 2019. (2) Tianjin Ting Fung
Starch Development Co., Ltd. (“TFS") Supply Agreement, pursuant
to which, TFS will supply the TFS products (modified potato starch,
modified cassava starch and seasoning flavor products) to the Group
for a term commencing from 1 January 2017 until 31 December 2019.
Both TZCl and TFS are beneficially majority owned by Mr. Wei Ing-Chou,
chairman of the Company, and his associates. The ordinary resolution
approving the continuing connected transactions were duly passed at
the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 29 December 2016. Details
for these transactions may be found at the Company’s announcements
and circular dated 15 November 2016, 8 December 2016 and 29
December 2016 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the amounts totaling
RMB2,592.597 million under the category of purchases of goods from
TZCl of RMB2,361.546 million and TFS of RMB231.051 million as
disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements fall under the definition
of continuing connected transaction in the Listing Rules.

On 29 January 2016, the Company entered into the Supply Agreement
with Ting Chuan (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Chuan”) for
the supply by the subsidiaries of the Group of the Products to Ting
Chuan and its subsidiaries for a term of two financial years ending 31
December 2017. Ting Chuan operates the Family Mart. It is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Ting Hsin. Ting Hsin held approximately 33.61% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the agreement
date. Details for the transaction may be found at the Company's
announcement dated 29 January 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the amounts totaling
RMB145.314 million under the category of sales of goods to Ting Chuan
and accepted relevant sales promotion services from Ting Chuan as
disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements fall under the definition
of continuing connected transaction in the Listing Rules.

On 14 December 2017, the Company entered into the Products Supply
Agreement with Ting Chuan for the supply by the subsidiaries of the
Group of the Products to Ting Chuan and its subsidiaries for a term of
three financial years ending 31 December 2020. Ting Chuan operates
the Family Mart. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ting Hsin. Ting Hsin
held approximately 33.58% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of the agreement date. Details for the transaction may be
found at the Company’s announcement dated 14 December 2017.
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On 4 May 2016, Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Corp. (“TAB")
the Company's indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary and Tingtong
(Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Tingtong”) entered into the Logistics
Agreement which Tingtong and its subsidiaries will provide logistics
services to TAB and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial years
ending 31 December 2018. TAB is held by the Group, Al Beverage
Holding Co., Ltd. and Ting Hsin. Ting Hsin held approximately 33.61%
of the issued share capital of the Company as the date of the agreement
date. The Company and Japanese Itochu Corporation holds 50.01%
and 49.99% shares respectively in Tingtong. As it is reasonably expected
that the annual caps in relation to the transactions under the Logistics
Agreement will be exceeded for 2017 and 2018, TAB and Tingtong
entered into the Supplemental Logistics Agreement on 10 November
2017 to revise the annual caps for the transactions under the Logistics
Agreement for the two financial years of 2017 and 2018. Details for
the transaction may be found at the Company’s announcement dated 5
May 2016, 10 November 2017 and 14 December 2017 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, an aggregate service income
of RMB219.277 million was received by Tingtong from TAB under the
Logistics Agreement.

On 31 December 2014, the Company entered into the Food Supply
Agreement with Shandong Weizhen Food Co., Ltd (“Shandong
Weizhen”) in relation to the Group’s purchase of frozen and dried food
materials, other meat products, dried meat floss and processing services
from Shandong Weizhen for a term commencing from 1 January 2015
until 31 December 2017. Shandong Weizhen is beneficially owned as
to 75% by Great System Holding Limited (“Great System”), a company
which is owned by Mr. Wei Ing-Chou, chairman of the Company, and
his associates, and as to 25% by Sanyo Foods, a substantial shareholder
of the Company. Details for the transaction may be found at the
Company'’s announcement dated 31 December 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the amounts totaling
RMB496.657 million under the category of purchases of goods from
Shandong Weizhen as disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements
fall under the definition of continuing connected transaction in the
Listing Rules.
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On 14 December 2017, the Company entered into the Food Products
Purchase Agreement with Weizhen Investment Limited (“Weizhen
Investment”) in relation to the Group's purchase of frozen and dried
food materials, dried meat floss and other meat products from Weizhen
Investment and its subsidiaries (including Shandong Weizhen) for a term
of three financial years ending 31 December 2020. Weizhen Investment
is beneficially owned as to 75% by Great System, a company which
is owned by Mr. Wei Ing-Chou, chairman of the Company, and his
associates, and as to 25% by Sanyo Foods, a substantial shareholder
of the Company. Details for the transaction may be found at the
Company'’s announcement dated 14 December 2017.

On 31 December 2014, Pepsi (China) Investment Co., Ltd, a subsidiary
of the Group entered into the Beverages Supply Agreement with Tianjin
Ting Qiao Advisory Service Co., Ltd. (“Ting Qiao”) for the supply of
Dicos for a term commencing from 1 January 2015 until 31 December
2017. Ting Qiao operates the Dicos fast food restaurant chain in
the PRC and is beneficially owned as to 88% by Ting Hsin, which
is a substantial shareholder of the Company holding approximately
33.1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
the agreement date. Details for the transaction may be found at the
Company'’s announcement dated 31 December 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the amounts totaling RMB10.955
million under the category of sales of goods to Ting Qiao as disclosed in
note 40 to the financial statements fall under the definition of continuing
connected transaction in the Listing Rules.

On 12 May 2017, the Company entered into the Master Supply
Agreement with Marine Vision Investment Inc. (“Marine Vision”) in
relation to the Group's purchase of carton boxes from Marine Vision
and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial years ending on 31
December 2019. As it is reasonably expected that the annual caps
in relation to the transactions under the Master Supply Agreement
will be exceeded, the Company and Marine Vision entered into the
Supplemental Supply Agreement on 10 November 2017 to revise the
annual caps for the transactions under the Master Supply Agreement
for the three financial years of 2017, 2018 and 2019. Marine Vision
was acquired by Great System, a company beneficially owned by Mr.
Wei Ing-Chou, chairman of the Company, and his associates, in May
2017. Details for the transaction may be found at the Company's
announcements dated 12 May 2017, 10 November 2017 and 14
December 2017 respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017, the amounts totaling
RMB1,973.112 million under the category of purchases of goods from
Marine Vision as disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements fall under
the definition of continuing connected transaction in the Listing Rules.

On 10 February 2017, Xi'an Tingyi Food Co., Ltd (“Xi’an Tingyi"”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Agreement
with Shanghai Long Yu Investment Advisory Co., Ltd (“Shanghai Long
Yu”) pursuant to which Xi'an Tingyi has agreed to dispose of the
properties which consist of the land use rights to the land for industrial
use, and the factory building and ancillary facilities to Shanghai Long Yu
at an aggregate consideration of RMB216.198 million. Shanghai Long
Yu is majority-controlled by an associate of Mr. Wei Ing-Chou, chairman
of the Company. The disposal transaction has not been finalised at the
end of the reporting period. Details for the transaction may be found at
the Company’s announcement dated 12 February 2017.

On 30 June 2017, the Company entered into the Agreement with Al
Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. ("AIB") under which AIB granted to the
Company the Call Option of 214,718 AIB-Held Shares of Tingyi-Asahi
Beverages Holding Co., Ltd. ("TAB"”) and the Company granted to
AIB the Put Option of 214,718 AIB-Held Shares of TAB. The options
under the Agreement represented approximately 20.4% of the issued
share capital of TAB. On 29 November 2017, the Company and AIB
entered into the Supplemental Agreement to the Option Agreement to
grant additional options to each other to expedite the exercise of the
Call Option and the Put Option. On 1 December 2017, the Company
exercised the Expedited Call Option for the acquisition of the AlIB-Held
Shares at the aggregate consideration of US$611.884 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB3,987.036 million). Details for the transaction may
be found at the Company’s announcement dated 30 June 2017, 29
November 2017 and 1 December 2017.
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The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors),
have reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions regarding the purchases of goods from TZCl, TFS,
Shandong Weizhen, Weizhen Investment and Marine Vision, the sales of
goods to Ting Qiao and Ting Chuan, logistics services to TAB have been
entered into:

(@)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(¢) according to the agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report and they have
provided a letter to the Board confirming that the above continuing
connected transactions regarding the purchases of goods from TZCl,
TFS, Shandong Weizhen and Marine Vision, the sales of goods to Ting
Qiao and Ting Chuan, logistics services to TAB have nothing come to
their attention that caused them to believe that:

(@  have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(©)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d) have exceeded the cap.

The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors), have
reviewed and confirmed that, except for the continuing connected
transactions as stated in the prior paragraphs, all other continuing
connected transactions entered by the Group are exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions are exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association although there are no restrictions against such
rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OF BUSINESS REVIEW

Additional information of business review is set out on pages 10 to 23
under “Management Discussion and Analysis” and on pages 24 to 25
under “Prospects” of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Wei Ing-Chou
Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC, 20 March 2018
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group"”) set out on pages 107 to 249, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Key Audit Matter

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB28,015 million at 31 December 2017. Of which,
the carrying value of the Group’s machinery and equipment as at 31
December 2017 was RMB17,452 million and the related depreciation
charge for the year then ended was RMB2,236 million. Any
impairment of those assets identified may have a material impact on
the consolidated financial statements. An impairment loss of RMB224
million has been recognised for certain individual machinery and
equipment for the year ended 31 December 2017.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews internal and
external sources of information, including but not limited to technical
obsolescence to usage, change of useful lives of assets, significant
change in use of assets with adverse effect on the Group, prolonged
period of time being idle and economic performance of an asset which
is expected to be worse than expected, to assess whether there is any
indication that machinery and equipment may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment review will be conducted.
The carrying value of the assets will be written down to their estimated
recoverable amount which is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. The Group has estimated the recoverable
amounts of the machinery and equipment principally based on their
value in use.

We have identified the carrying value of machinery and equipment as a
key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements. The impairment review of machinery and equipment also
involves a significant degree of management judgement in considering
the indicators of impairment and determining the key assumptions
applied in estimating recoverable amounts based on a value in use
model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii) and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures in relation to management'’s impairment assessment
of property, plant and equipment included:

a)  Discussing process and basis used to identify indicators of possible
impairment of machinery and equipment with management and
reviewing utilisation records and profitability of the machinery
and equipment, where such indicators were identified, assessing
whether management performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

b)  Assessing the appropriateness of using value in use model in
estimating the recoverable amounts of the cash generating units
to which the assets belong;

¢)  Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow model used;

d)  Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the food and beverage industry and market; and

e)  Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as future
production plans and approved budgets and assessing the
reasonableness and feasibility of such plans and budgets.

Acquisition of Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd (“HZPS")
and impairment assessment of goodwill

Key Audit Matter

During the year, the Group acquired an additional 25% equity interest
in HZPS from another shareholder of HZPS (the “Vendor”). In addition,
the Vendor also issued an authorisation letter (the “Authorisation
Letter”) to the Group under which the Group shall be entitled
irrevocably all the rights and benefits of the aforesaid 25% equity
interest in HZPS currently held by the Vendor for a period from the date
of the Authorisation Letter to the completion date of the registration of
the equity transfer (the “Equity Transfer”). The registration of the Equity
Transfer with the relevant government authority is currently in progress
and expected to be completed on or before 30 June 2019.

Through the execution of a sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA")
and the Authorisation Letter, the equity interest in HZPS held by the
Group increased from 25% to 50% and the Group holds a majority
of the voting rights of HZPS. The management concluded that the
Group has control over HZPS and this associate became a subsidiary
of the Group from the effective date of the Authorisation Letter on 1
September 2017.
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The accounting for this acquisition required a significant amount of
judgement and estimations, including the determination of the date of
acquisition, the date of obtaining control over HZPS, the measurement
of the acquisition-date values of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed and the estimation of the contingent consideration.

The Group recognised goodwill of RMB98 million from the step
acquisition. Management performs annual impairment test on goodwill.
The goodwill was allocated to related cash generating unit (“CGU"),
and the recoverable amount of CGU was determined by management
based on value-in-use calculation using cash flow projection. The
calculations involved significant judgement and estimations, such as
forecast cash flows, discount rates and growth rates.

Related disclosures are included in notes 19 and 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Our key procedures in relation to the accounting for acquisition included:

a)  Inspecting the SPA and the Authorisation Letter to understand the
terms of acquisition;

b)  Obtaining direct confirmation from the Vendor to ascertain the
existence of rights and benefits entitled by the Group through the
execution of SPA and the Authorisation Letter;

¢)  Obtaining legal opinion from an independent lawyer to ascertain
the legal enforceability of the Authorisation Letter in the PRC;

d)  Checking calculation and testing the valuation of and accounting
for consideration payable and contingent consideration payable;

e)  Assessing the identification of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed and challenging the reasonableness of the assumptions
made in the acquisition-date valuation of the assets and liabilities;
and

f) Considering the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in respect of
the acquisition.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures in relation to the impairment test of goodwill
included:

a)  Assessing the identification of CGU based on the Group’s
accounting policies and our understanding of the Group's
business;

b)  Assessing the value-in-use calculation methodology;

)  Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge and understanding of the business and market;

d)  Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow model used;

e)  Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as approved
budgets and considering the reasonableness of the budgets.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in this annual report
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

REDBEIZAR
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsibility for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities and business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 20 March 2018

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Fung Shiu Hang
Practising Certificate number: P04793



Consolidated Income Statement
HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
st ARET T AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(45 &E31)
(Restated)
Uy #5 Revenue 6 58,953,788 55,578,849
$HEE R AR Cost of sales (41,615,827) (38,200,525)
EH Gross profit 17,337,961 17,378,324
Emligz Other revenue 8 270,786 218,178
HiFBA(ER) Other net income (expenses) 9 719,726 489,131
AR Distribution costs (11,268,583) (12,070,325)
THER Administrative expenses (2,189,111) (2,043,995)
EfbigE & A Other operating expenses (1,124,355) (1,115,639)
B 75 & A Finance costs 10 (454,868) (496,303)
FE(EBt S A Z N TIEE  Share of results of associates
and joint ventures 101,180 74,145
BR B AT R Profit before taxation 10 3,392,736 2,433,516
AL Taxation 12 (1,137,368) (1,051,453)
R B E F Profit for the year 2,255,368 1,382,063
FEARRF Profit attributable to:
PN/} 3 Owners of the Company 1,819,077 1,161,699
DR Non-controlling interests 436,291 220,364
AEERF Profit for the year 2,255,368 1,382,063
BRER Earnings per share 14
HHA Basic RMB32.45 cents | RMB20.73 cents
g Diluted RMB32.42 cents |RMB20.73 cents
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
AR¥TFTT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#ZE3))
(Restated)
R EE F Profit for the year 2,255,368 1,382,063
Ht2mEmk=E(ER) Other comprehensive income (loss):
TEESEE Items that will not be reclassified to
by 3=l profit or loss:
AERMEEZEHE Remeasurement of defined
benefit obligations 52,037 114,892
EAHE &R EHE Items that are or may be reclassified
Ba R ) E A subsequently to profit or loss:
E W ZERH Exchange differences on consolidation 316,324 (610,001)
ARNESHEEAREZEE Fair value changes in available-for-sale
financial assets 95,396 57,458
RAFE T E T E Reclassification adjustments relating to
STREECENERARE available-for-sale financial assets
disposed of during the year (21,080) (45,548)
390,640 (598,091)
REFEHME2EmKE(EE) Other comprehensive income (loss)
for the year 442,677 (483,199)
rEELHKZERE Total comprehensive income
for the year 2,698,045 898,864
EEEEKE : Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
PN/NET S Owners of the Company 2,218,857 692,718
DB R Non-controlling interests 479,188 206,146
2,698,045 898,864
EFBERERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2017412 H31H At 31 December 2017

201745 20164 R2016%F
12A31H 12A318 1A18
At 31 At 31 At 1
December December January
2017 2016 2016
BtaE AR¥FT ARBFIT AREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(#5&E2) (#5E3])
(Restated) (Restated)
BE ASSETS
FREBEE Non-current assets
KEMEEHE Investment properties 15 1,106,000 1,060,000 1,003,200
VI - 22N Property, plant and equipment 16 28,014,779 32,556,784 35,041,574
T FR AR E Prepaid lease payments 17 3,730,767 3,932,435 3,946,771
miEE Intangible asset 18 162,936 179,179 172,404
BES Goodwill 19 97,910 — —
/N Interest in associates 21 120,568 160,538 190,948
AE N AR Interest in joint ventures 22 660,691 676,408 555,405
A ESRIEE  Available-for-sale financial assets 23 638,526 641,619 598,163
HEM3EmBEE Other non-current assets 24 317,964 — 100,000
BEFRIEE E Deferred tax assets 36 308,010 276,291 318,185
35,158,151 39,483,254 41,926,650
REBEE Current assets
rE Inventories 25 2,396,941 2,482,202 2,115,472
JE W BR K Trade receivables 26 1,636,385 1,589,893 1,515,556
AIUg B 718 Tax recoverable 23,393 120,861 95,971
TERT IR & Prepayments and 27
H {th FE Y5k IE other receivables 4,599,397 2,613,009 2,785,990
HEIRIRITFR Pledged bank deposits 28 58,312 42,352 78,231
RITEHR MRS Bank balances and cash 28 10,226,577 10,189,460 6,568,960
18,941,005 17,037,777 13,160,180
HEE Total assets 54,099,156 56,521,031 55,086,830
RETEIER
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FABEARRE | Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
$2017412431H At 31 December 2017

R20174F 20164 #20164F
12A31H 12A331H 1H1H
At 31 At 31 At 1
December December January
2017 2016 2016
et ARMFT AREFT AREEFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(45=E2) (45 E31)
(Restated) (Restated)
BREEEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
IR A 18 Capital and reserves
BTN Issued capital 29 235,053 234,767 234,710
LA 4 (8 Share premium 30 611,736 523,278 505,449
fE Reserves 31 17,565,290 17,365,495 17,971,880
¥ NS Total capital and
EERAR reserves attributable
fRiERE to owners of the Company 18,412,079 18,123,540 18,712,039
DHBRRES Non-controlling interests 3,881,965 5,977,039 6,463,657
RS AT Total equity 22,294,044 24,100,579 25,175,696
FRBAE Non-current liabilities
WARBEYIEK  Financial liabilities at fair value
fri8a= iR IE through profit or loss
memaE 33 5,258 152,650 58,959
REAEEEBE Long-term interest-bearing
borrowings 34 6,608,953 6,880,190 8,612,499
HmIERESAE Other non-current liabilities 41 40,000 — —
BTREMNEE Employee benefit obligations 35 101,226 205,573 278,569
RIERIBRE Deferred tax liabilities 36 1,070,026 1,473,995 1,440,259
7,825,463 8,712,408 10,390,286

EEEERARAT
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B#ARNFR | Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2017512 HA31H At 31 December 2017

201745 20165 20164
12A31H 12A318 1A18
At 31 At 31 At 1
December December January
2017 2016 2016
HiaE AR¥FT AREFIT AREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
(#€ &%) (45 &ES))
(Restated) (Restated)
REEE Current liabilities
FERTER X Trade payables 37 7,119,423 6,595,355 4,690,033
H AR R Other payables and
2R E deposits received 38 7,417,032 6,697,875 6,671,542
BARBEYIIERN  Finandial liabilities at fair value
riE=RRE through profit or loss
NemBE 33 37,448 — —
BEEBE Current portion of interest-
BIVEREB 17 bearing borrowings 34 7,775,320 9,163,746 7,293,262
BRI RIE Advance payments
from customers 1,284,590 1,015,548 799,838
I8 Taxation 345,836 235,520 66,173
23,979,649 23,708,044 19,520,848
wEE Total liabilities 31,805,112 32,420,452 29,911,134
RREZEREEHE Total equity and liabilities 54,099,156 56,521,031 55,086,830
FREBEE(EME)  Net current assets (liabilities) (5,038,644) (6,670,267) (6,360,668)
BWEERREEME  Total assets less
current liabilities 30,119,507 32,812,987 35,565,982

F10722498H 2

REMBBRRCHAES

A=

EMN2018F3 A0 M E RS

WHATALTREKRE

FLFEIN Wei Ing-Chou

ZEZ Director

&

These consolidated financial statements on pages 107 to 249 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20

March 2018 and signed on its behalf by

H# A4 —BB Junichiro Ida

ZFZ Director
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MERRERBEX
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

AATRRER

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREE JERRER KR

HRA Rh&E Total Non- Enls
Issued Share B capital and controlling Total
capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity

NEEFT  AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
(#Z5)) (#Z7)) (#Z7)) (#Z7)) (#Z7)) (#Z7))
(Restateq) (Restateq) (Restateq) (Restateq) (Restateq) (Restateq)

R201651518 At 1 January 2016 234710 505,449 17,971,880 18,712,039 6,463,657 25,175,6%
TERET Profit for the year - - 1,161,699 1,161,699 220,364 1,382,063
B2 mhE (FE) Other comprehensive income (loss)
RERNEMLZERE Remeasrement of defined
benefit obligation - - 83,957 83,957 30,935 114,892
EREE Exchange differences on consolidation - - (564,848) (564,848) (45,153) (610,001)
ARHESREERAEZED  Fairvalue changes in available-for-sale
financial assets - - 57458 57458 - 57,458
FERHETHEESBEE  Reclassification adjustment relating
LENERE 0 available-for-sale finandial
assets disposed of during the year - - (45,548) (45,548) - (45,548)
Rtz mEbiELE Total other comprehensive loss - - (468,981) (468,981) (14218) (483,199)
REERANGAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 692,718 692,718 206,146 898,364
BALARRZRS Transactions with owners
of the Company:
KRELST Contributions and distribution
EREERITHZ A Equity settled share-based transactions - - 55,157 55,157 - 55,157
REBRETERT2BR Shares issuied under share option scheme 57 17829 (4,220) 13,666 - 13,666
EREREE01SERERE 2015 final dividend approved and paid - - (806,485) (806,485) (87,183) (893,668)
57 17829 (755,548) (737,662) (87.183) (824,845)
HEREY Changes in ownershyp interest
EEUHHRHENNELT  Changes in ownership interest in subsiciaries
T E) without change in control - - (543,555) (543,555) (605,587)  (1,149,136)
BARTRRZR AR Total transactions with owners
of the Company 57 17829 (1,299,103) (1,281.217) (692,764) (1,973,981)
R20165 128318 At 31 December 2016 234,767 523,278 17,365,495 18,123,540 5,977,039 24,100,579
EEERERAT
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e REREER | Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BHZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

LNGEY
Attributable to owners of the Company
kARGE HBRRER e
BiRA RHEE Total Non- ERAE
Issued Share fif capital and controlling Total
capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity
ABBTL  AREFT  AREFT ARETL  AREFT AREFZ
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
(£E5) (£E5) (#E5) (£E7)) (£E7)) (£E7))
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
R2017E1 518 (8E5) At 1 January 2017 (Restated) 234,767 523,278 17,365,495 18,123,540 5,977,039 24,100,579
RERRN Profit for the year - - 1,819,077 1,819,077 436,291 2,255,368
2 m (58 ki Other comprehensive (loss) income
AERNEL ERE Remeasurement of defined
benefit obligation — — 41,664 41,664 10,373 52,037
BHES Exchange differences on consolidation - - 283,800 283,800 32,54 316,324
ARNESRAELLECEE  Fairvalue changesin
available-for-sale financial assets — — 95,396 95,396 = 95,396
KERHETHIELHEE  Redassfication adjustment relating
LENERE to available-for-sale finandial assets
disposed of during the year - - (21,080) (21,080) - (21,080)
At 2EREEE Total other comprehensive income - - 399,780 399,780 42,897 4,61
AEERAUEAR Total comprehensive income for the year — — 2,218,857 2,218,857 479,188 2,698,045
HANRRRZRS Transactions with owners
of the Company:
REEST Contributions and distribution
EREEROTHZZA Equity settled share-based transactions - - 44,234 44,234 - 44,234
REBRE ST D Shares issued under share option scheme 286 88,458 (21357) 67,387 - 67,387
ROURER LR RE Put options written to a
non-controlling shareholder - - (4,135,120) (4,135,120) - (4,135,120)
ROURRAER DL Written back of financial liabities
EREmAERE upon cancelltion of put options
MeRaE written to a non-controlling shareholder - - 4,135,120 4,135,120 - 4,135,120
BRERTE16EREARE 2016 final dividend approved and paid - - (580,849) (580,849) (119.876) (700,725)
286 88,458 (557,972) (469,228) (119,876) (589,104)
BEEE Changes in ownershyp interests
EEREHFESEL Non-controlling interest arising from
PERRER () business combination (Note 41) - - - - 171,560 171,560
BRI R R Change in ownership interest
WEAREGEE in subsidiaries without change
in control — — (1,461,090) (1,461,090) (2,625,946) (4,087,036)
= = (1,461,090) (1,461,090) (2,454,386) (3,915,476)
HANRRRZ RS AR Total transactions with owners
of the Company 286 88,458 (2,019,062) (1,930,318) (2,574,262) (4,504,580)
R2017E128318 At 31 December 2017 235,053 611,736 17,565,290 18,412,079 3,881,965 22,294,044
RENSIZAR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Btat ARKFT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(#5EZ)
(Restated)
REES OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REEKFEBESE Cash generated from operations 39 8,499,095 9,312,165
BHEPBEERMSHR The People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
enterprise income tax paid (1,367,551) (831,365)
EBRLE Interest paid (449,626) (486,609)
KEEHAERESFHE Net cash from operating activities 6,681,918 7,994,191
REED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
B B Interest received 270,786 218,178
BUAE & R RIRF Dividend received from a joint venture 93,001 —
BRI EHE SR Dividend received from available-for-sale
BERF financial assets 1,103 —
HEATHLE Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
ERMEE S financial assets 79,484 124,116
BABEBRE Purchase of debt investment (900,000) —
BAHIESRHEE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (16,983) (69,365)
BAKREMEHE Purchase of investment properties — (166,259)
BBAMZE - Has B Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,048,568) (1,539,378)
Up B R — SR ¥ FEEEY)  Deposit paid for acquisition of a commercial
FIZME & building located in Tianjin (190,778) —
B LR E Prepaid lease payments (18,371) (316,541)
MEWZE - W RRE Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
KA E 2 TS equipment and prepaid lease payments 162,575 111,333
HEREEFHEZATS  Proceeds from sale of investment properties 223 —
Uy BE B$ /B8 A B AT 1538 £ 5% 58 Net cash inflow on acquisition subsidiaries 100,027 3,603
L EKT B A RIS IR £ 58 Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries 663,128 —
JE M AT BT /&8 1 R Net movement of amount due from
2B former subsidiaries (11,788) —
BRIETHZEAT Capital contribution to associates (15,605) (6,196)
BRNFETHRERR Capital contribution to joint ventures — (10,255)
RETBHFAREERE Net cash used in investing activities (831,766) (1,650,764)
B EERARA
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HABELRER | Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BHZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Btat AR¥EFT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(#5EZ)
(Restated)
BMEEH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BRARRREEZ S Dividends paid to owners of the Company (598,505) (851,254)
ENLEBEERE#EZR ZKE  Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (114,752) (90,123)
IRIE BB A S 213597 Z IR 1D Issue of shares under share option scheme 67,387 13,666
g mm I E S Net proceeds from issuance of
unsecured notes — 995,999
FIBIRITER Proceeds from bank borrowings 5,944,184 7,316,334
ERBITREMER Repayments of bank and other borrowings (9,085,460) (8,962,313)
HmaeHEE 2 Net movement of other
) FEA short-term borrowings 2,028,635 (67,781)
SAUEE D SR R Payment for acquisition of
non-controlling interests (4,003,636) (1,146,012)
METBHARSFHE Net cash used in financing activities (5,762,147) (2,791,484)
ReRBESZEEYN Net increase in cash and
bl cash equivalents 88,005 3,551,943
FzRERBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 10,231,812 6,647,191
[ R s v & Effect on exchange rate changes (34,928) 32,678
FRZESRRESZEMEY Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year 28 10,284,889 10,231,812
RENSIZAR
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The address of its principal place of business
is No. 1688, Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company and engaged
in trading of spare parts of machineries and raw materials.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant
noodles, beverages and instant food products. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2016 consolidated financial statements except for the change in
presentation currency and the adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs
that are relevant to the Group and effective from the current year
as detailed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RREEE) 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
EEBESEABEEE . REE In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
B ERAEBRHEERRY directors have carefully assessed the working capital and
B EBH ARMKS5,038,644,000 7T financing requirements of the Group in the foreseeable future,
(20164 - AN R ¥6,670,267,000 as the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
o) AEECDEETEAERE RMB5,038,644,000 (2016: RMB6,670,267,000) at the end of the
ARARRzEEES MNEEFRK - reporting period.

EEENAREER B EEZH1T Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group,
ZEEMBRAT RAAEERLEAR the directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources
BB FRMHERTE XIBHB A to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the
o it AV BERRAFTEL foreseeable future. Accordingly, these consolidated financial
g7 EHRE o statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
TESHEE 3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) MRHEEE (a) Basis of measurement

MRBR A M IS IR A RE(E
REERE  REAAEET
RREUERME  AJHES
BMEE  RonBEINERE
BaRRENSTREERTR
BEDUAAEERE - FI18
HN TN ZEFTHE -

(b) HEEE

REMBBRREBBARARE
MBABzMEHmE - BT
REAPBHRERO2HFEELR
AEIER - S BETER—
o

AEBEAFS QR ZHEHETR
DB BERSR X5 W
X RB@RYEHIRE - HEA
AIH) SR AR B AN 5 H BUS 12 il 4
ZHHEEH - XEES G
BAREERHIEEILEAR -

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except
for investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets
at fair value, and financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
“transactions with non-controlling interests reserve” within
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in ownership interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted
for as a financial asset or liability, interest in associate,
interest in joint venture or others as appropriate from the
date when control is lost.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business (including
the acquisition of joint control of a joint operation in which
the activity constitutes a business) is measured at the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the
acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units. An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(d)

Goodwill (Continued)

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income from bargain purchase.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated and stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. All other property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:

— Instant noodles 12 years
— Beverages 10 to 12 years
—Instant food and others 5to 10 years
Electrical appliances and equipment 5 years

Miscellaneous equipment 3to 10 years
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3.

FTESTRRE) 3.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) %3 - BBERREBE) (d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
BEHERNSHETHEETRE An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
HAB e & A {r] R RS R upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
W E - MENEREBER expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
R ER - EME - B LR gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
BHEXEZEREMEZEE - as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
BEHERSFHEEEERT carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
Bl EZEANUFE - WRT the year in which the item is derecognised.
RERER -
B MBENREER—E When property, plant and equipment becomes an
KEHEE  RER®RA investment property, any difference at the date of change in
BHZMENERABERALE use between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
ZENEMEZESKRBRELS property is accounted for in the same way as a revaluation
FHERIZE 16 98,2 ERFIEMER in accordance with HKAS 16.
REMERE -

(e) #EEIR (e) Construction in progress
EREIRELIEZESANBER Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
HIOETF  BENRMEE IR machinery under construction or pending installation and
B EFREBE(E )T is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
BR o AN B IEIERRR M B Ak AR Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition and
RO EBXRLZEERAK - £ capitalised borrowing costs. No depreciation is made on
TEEEZEEBEETKLAE Construction in progress until such time as the relevant
BERGEATIRTE - A assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
EENMHGEEE KA E the assets concerned are available for use, the costs
BAEYE  BWENKE  WiE are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
1B B 3(d) AT &L 2 B R 3R depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in 3(d)
BINE - above.

() REUEHE (f) Investment properties

BEME 0 ER LI A2 S H
A ANSEABRAREREHE
ERE - URBEESBA -5
LEHE it B 45 4 2 AT N RETE HO R
KEAENBMEMEEHEERE
WE - mEREUFSHETEE
WHITAR A BEE

Investment properties are land and building that are held by
owner or lessee under finance lease, to earn rental income.
These include properties held for a currently undetermined
future use and properties that are held under operating
lease, which satisfy the definition of investment property
and carry at fair value.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(9)

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of investment property is based on a valuation by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued. The fair value is based
on market value, being the estimated amount for which
a property could be exchanged on the date of valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s
length transaction after proper marketing wherein the
parties have each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible asset

Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Concession
right has finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life. Both the period and
method of amortisation are reviewed annually.



FAETSIRERMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

3.

TESHBERE) 3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) THEHEE (h) Prepaid lease payments
THHLREANLERLYE Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to acquire
RBAARAAGERHZMERER fixed term interests in lessee-occupied land that are classified
B FE SRR s 2B A - as operating leases. The premiums are stated at cost less
B TY AR AR 0 R R 5 85 AN accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
2 EERB LY - I A E] losses and are amortised over the period of the lease on a
NIABGREB - straight-line basis.

(i) HELR (i) Subsidiaries
MEBAR I AEEES & A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
e AEEAELQREZERER Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
BEAENBE &0 & AR variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has

NEBEENFEE LD RE
BEREHZER - HBEFER
BRBERY bt —TRk % IAE
HIRERHIRE(L - AEEKE
et AT BENPIRE T -

EARBBBHRRERA - KB
DA AR R EE R
FHESRREMER - B
A # a1 2 B 1B 2 13 B HOR =
HAel &5 - MBARIEE
MARAHRD W R YRR &
RPN

the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, which
is presented within these notes, an interest in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying
amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is
an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The Group reassesses whether
it has joint control of an arrangement and whether the type
of joint arrangement in which it is involved has changed, if
facts and circumstances change.

The Group's interest in associate or joint venture is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment or a portion thereof is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the investee.
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FTESTRRE) PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() HMELTANSEQTNE) (j) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)
NEFHBEPZENTMEZ DT Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
EIRGEEZEMARERF between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
EREE HUAEERER are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
KB ZETAREITES investees, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
MR EIREIBERAEESR of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
ELBRBEZEE  £ZBER they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

T BEEEINSTEERE

(k) £®IHE (k) Financial instruments

TR R AL TR Recognition and derecognition

TREERSRABIIRRS
AZEERRAARAEEXS
ZLTEBHRX 2B R =78

EMARERTEEERIUR
KRS REMNE BN B B
(N AREEBETZEREEY
H@ASEEEE tEmTH
SEMEERAEMBEBNET
2 AR B A0 B3R - (b)) AN &
BEEREBENARREZERE
ERBRENERE D E R K E
HENRESREENZES
BE - ERIEBAZBATHME

o

it

ERNEHEANLINAZERE
B AR BR SCEUH B E 2 A

B
B AR IEERZERALE -

TREEXTRABELETNZA
REEIE FEREEID
BAEFEQ R EBEYIRIE
BEREE BN EEEEM
X 58RIk -

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when and only when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments and on a trade
date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially recognised
at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets or
financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial
liabilities.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss include financial assets or financial liabilities
held for trading, financial assets or financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss, and financial assets or financial liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement
in a business combination to which HKFRS applies. They
are carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets or financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are (i) acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; (i) part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or (iii)
derivatives that are not financial guarantee contracts or not
designated and effective hedging instruments.

Financial assets or financial liabilities are designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss only if
(i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on a different basis; or (ii) they are part of a group of
financial assets and/or financial liabilities that are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management strategy;
or (iii) they contain embedded derivatives that would need
to be separately recorded.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated as
a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivative is prohibited
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including bank balances and cash,
pledged bank deposits and trade and other receivables are
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market and
are not held for trading. They are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, except where
receivables are interest-free loans and without any fixed
repayment term or the effect of discounting would be
insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at
cost less impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
over the period to maturity. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or through the amortisation
process are recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
financial assets that are either designated at this category
or not classified in any of the other categories of financial
assets. They are measured at fair value with changes in value
recognised as investment revaluation reserve within equity
until the assets are sold, collected or otherwise disposed of,
or until the assets are determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified to profit or loss
as a reclassification adjustment.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less
impairment loss.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets,
other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between the
assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed in
subsequent periods through profit or loss when an increase
in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired,
a cumulative loss comprising the difference between
its acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any previously
recognised impairment loss in profit or loss, is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value
of available-for-sale equity instrument after recognition of
impairment loss is recognised in equity. Impairment loss
of available-for-sale debt instruments is reversed through
profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of the instrument
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

0]

(m)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at cost,
the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss shall not be reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing borrowings. All financial
liabilities except for derivatives are recognised initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method, unless the effect
of discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably and on the
following bases:

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered and title has been passed.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(n)

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable.

Rental income from commercial properties is recognised
when the commercial properties are let out and on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms while rental income
from car parks are recognised on an accrual basis.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
("functional currency”). The Company's functional currency
is United States Dollar ("US$"”) and majority of its subsidiaries
have Renminbi (“RMB") as their functional currency. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

(b)  Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at the weighted average exchange rates;
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TESHBRE) 3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(n)

(o)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

() All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;

(d)  On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, a partial disposal involving the loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest is no longer
equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to the foreign operation
that is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible asset, interest in associates, interest
in joint ventures and prepaid lease payments may be
impaired or impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised as
income in profit or loss immediately.
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TEEHBEGE) 3.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@ BERE (q) Borrowing costs
ks - BESNAERBEREE Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
(FE—RERMNMEGREES the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
HMTRRNEEZEE)ZH are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
EEGEEKREK  ENRETE production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
EEZERHREWRZEE 5 take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
EEARL W 1E B EE ER AN intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
25 e BWEEEKNE those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
AIEEBER GRS EER - % when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
EEEXABEFEILEERL - use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
FrBEEMEERAET AEE expense in the period in which they are incurred.
MECER -

() EEBHE (r)  Operating leases
BE 2B KE 0 & & E S Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
HEARRBZHEE  BEA and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as
LEMEYER - 2 EHECH operating leases. Rentals payable and receivables under
Y HEEMAEEZHERA operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
NEHEENIERRER - 28 line basis over the lease term of the relevant lease. Lease
HEMEM S MM HEEDEY incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
EERERTHRBEEREF integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use
NREEFERAEK D - SFH of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are recognised
AR EE S HREIAER as expenses in the accounting period in which they are
N incurred.

(s) BEHE (s) Government grants

B B AREESE
R EEEE NBERERMmI
B R BPPIU R 2 R B

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(®)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined benefit plans

The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
ultimate cost of benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods,
which is discounted to determine the present value of those
benefits.

The calculation of the obligation is based on the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method annually. Service cost
and interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognised in profit or loss. Current services cost is measured
as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from employee service in the current
period. Past service cost is measured as the change in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation resulted
from a plan amendment or curtailment and is recognised in
profit or loss. Interest expense for the period is determined
by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the reporting period
to the defined benefit liability. The discount rate is the yield
at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
that have the currency and terms consistent with the
currency and estimated term of the obligations.

Gain or loss on settlement is measured as the difference
between a) the present value of the defined benefit
obligation being settled and b) any payments made by the
Group in connection with the settlement. It is recognised
when the settlement occurs.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are reflected in equity immediately. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(®)

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as a staff cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is determined using the binomial model taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions (“vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

(v)

Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation, with a corresponding
credit to the share-based payment reserve within equity.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax assets and
liabilities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from such
investment properties are measured based on the expected
manner as to how the property will be recovered.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the

Group:

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Has control or joint control over the Group;

Has significant influence over the Group; or

Is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group

and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(¢)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes

subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes

subsidiaries of the joint venture.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision-maker. The Company’s executive directors, who

are responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, have been

identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make

strategic decisions.

Future changes in HKFRSs and accounting policies

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current

year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Annual improvements to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15
HK(FRIC)-nt 22

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

HKFRS 16
HK(FRIC)-nt 23

Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKFRS 9
HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

2014:2016 Cycle: HKFRS 1 and HEAS 2817

Transters of Ivestment Property "

Clssification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions "

Anplying HKFRS 9 Financial nstruments with
HKIRS 4 Insurance Contracts "

Finandial nstruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers!”

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consioeration””

2015-2017 Cyee

Leases ™
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments ®!

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures”

Prepayment Features with Negatie
Compensation ™

Insurance Contracts

Sale or Contribution of Assets betiween an
Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs and accounting policies
(Continued)

t Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

Bl Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

“l The effective date to be determined

Except for HKFRS 9, HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 16 as set out
below, the directors of the Company does not anticipate
that the adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs in future
periods will have any material impact on the Group's
financial information.

HKFRS 9: Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.



=
)

B35k R MI5E | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

3. FESHEE#E)

(y)

ERMBHERAREHABR 2K
R (E)

BBUBREEREIY - o/
THE)

BRI E ERIE SRR E
EEBNEERER

s  FBABNBEMISHELE
AIEIREEARNMNE ER
SREEHRBBIREH
AR AT ETE - B8
mE  EBEAKIEL
RemEnEBEXNRR
BENEBREUARERSR
ReMAREERSFEX
MHAHBEESRENER
BE BERCRBEERRE
RE KA E g5 8
e T—EmEEAPRE
EMERTAE  HEER
BAKEE LR REM
HECREERERM
B EBELGRR - EL
BRBRRERERBES
MRS REEERASM
FEMAS  —BmE
H 2 mEUE((FVTOCL)
WRFERE - FTAHA
EHEEEMBRERER
HMesrtRIEZE QR
BEE - 1IN BRESR
VS B TS SRS SERIZE 955 -
B AL TRl e Ay 3R
B UREMEERZE
2IRAKELIERFA
R S)AFEHEEE
B - R BIRA—RRIE
HEERMER -

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs and accounting policies
(Continued)

HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

o all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"). All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Future changes in HKFRSs and accounting policies
(Continued)

HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued)

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.

The expected impacts relate to the classification and
measurement and the impairment requirements are
summarised as follows:

Classification and measurement

The Group's cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables are currently classified as loan and receivables
and measured at amortised cost. The Group does not
expect the new guidance to affect the classification and
measurement of these financial assets.

The Group's equity securities and investment funds are
currently classified as available-for-sale financial assets and
will be reclassified to financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL) or other comprehensive income (FVOCI),
which the Group is in the process of making the election.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future will not have significant impact on
the Group's net assets and total comprehensive income, but
will increase volatility in profit or loss in 2018.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs and accounting policies
(Continued)

HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9
may result in earlier recognition of credit losses which are
not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised costs and other items that subject to
the impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by
the Group. However, management expects the effect would
not be significant.

HKFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective. The core
principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services.

Specifically, HKFRS 15 introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs and accounting policies
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company preliminarily considers that
the performance obligations that may be identified under
HKFRS 15 are similar to the current identification of revenue
components under the Group's existing revenue recognition
policy developed under HKAS 18 and therefore, the
adoption of HKFRS 15 in the future will have no significant
impact on recognition of revenue. However, the application
of HKFRS 15 in future may result in more disclosures.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs and accounting policies
(Continued)

HKFRS 16: Leases

HKFRS 16 significantly changes the lessee accounting by
replacing the dual model under HKAS 17 with a single
model which requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for the rights and obligations created by leases
unless the exemptions apply. Besides, among other changes,
it requires enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessees
and lessors. Based on the preliminary assessment, the
management is of the opinion that the leases of certain
properties by the Group which are currently classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17 will trigger the recognition
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in accordance
with HKFRS 16. In subsequent measurement, depreciation
(and, if applicable, impairment loss) and interest will be
recognised on the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities
respectively, of which the amount in total for each reporting
period is not expected to be significantly different from
the periodic operating lease expenses recognised under
HKAS 17. Apart from the effects as outlined above, it is not
expected that HKFRS 16 will have a material impact on the
future financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Group upon adoption.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs and accounting policies
(Continued)

HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)

As set out in Note 46(b), at 31 December 2017, the total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases of the Group in respect of office premises
amounted to approximately RMB877,265,000. The
management of the Company does not expect the adoption
of HKFRS 16 as compared with the current accounting
policy would result in significant impact on the Group's
financial performance but it is expected that the Group has
to separately recognise the interest expenses on the lease
liabilities and the depreciation expense on the right-of use
assets, and that certain portion of the future minimum
lease payments under the Group's operating leases will
be required to be recognised in the Group’s combined
statements of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities. The Group will also be required to re-
measure the lease liabilities upon the occurrence of certain
events such as a change in the lease term and recognise
the amount of the re-measurement of the lease liabilities
as an adjustment to the right-of-use assets. In addition,
payments for the principal portion of the lease liabilities
will be presented within financing activities in the Group's
combined statements of cash flows.
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(a)

Change in presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"),
which is different from the presentation currency of United
States dollars ("US$") used in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.
Since most of the Group's transactions are denominated
and settled in RMB, the directors of the Company
considered that the change in presentation currency could
reduce the impact of any fluctuations in the exchange
rate of the US$ against the RMB, which is not due to the
operations and beyond the control of the Group, on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. It enables
the shareholders of the Company to have a more accurate
picture of the Group's financial performance. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company have determined the change
of presentation currency from US$ to RMB effective from 1
January 2017. The comparative figures in the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 1 January 2016
and 31 December 2016, and the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2016 have been restated accordingly to achieve
comparability with the current year.

As aforementioned, the consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is different from the
Company'’s functional currency of US$. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency.
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4.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group. Of these, the changes in accounting policy
relevant to the consolidated financial statements are as
follows:

Amendments to HKAS 7: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The adoption of the amendments results in the additional
disclosures in note 39(a) to the consolidated financial
statements. In accordance with the transitional provisions
therein, the comparative information is not presented in the
first year of adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments clarify, among others, how to account for
deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at
fair value.

The application of these amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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4.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle: HKFRS 12 -
Clarification of the scope

The amendments clarify that except for the summarised
financial information for subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in which the interests are classified or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5, the requirements of HKFRS 12
apply to interests in entities within the scope of HKFRS 5.

The adoption of the amendments did not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements
are made by the management in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. They affect the application
of the Group's accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are
assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.

(i) Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolio and concluded that the
Group's investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group's deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised deferred
taxes on land appreciation taxes in respect of changes in fair
value of investment properties situated in the PRC but has
recognised deferred tax on income tax on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through
use.
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(i)

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as
those earnings are not expected to be distributable in
the foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities
are disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards
to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
directors have to assess whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be determined
by reference to value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. Value in use is determined using the discounted
cash flow method. Owing to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and magnitude of the future cash
flows and fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset may be different from
its actual recoverable amount and profit or loss could be
affected by accuracy of the estimations.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

As described in notes 15 and 45 to the consolidated
financial statements, the valuation techniques applied by
various external parties for the level 2 and level 3 assets or
liabilities have been agreed with the management of the
Company. The management determined whether valuation
techniques and assumptions applied are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Group. The estimation of fair value of
level 3 assets included some assumptions not supported by
observable market prices or rates. Change in assumption
could affect the reported fair value of the assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Deferred tax assets

As at the end of the reporting period, deferred tax asset
of RMB27,782,000 (2076: RMBZ27,782,000) in relation to
unused tax losses had been recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The recognition of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are different from the original estimate, a
material recognition or reversal of deferred tax assets may
arise, after taking into account the utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses, which would be recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which such estimate is changed.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units (“CGUs") to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected cash flows from
the CGU and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Details of
the estimates used to calculate the recoverable amount are
given in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REVENUE

The Group’s revenue represents the sale of goods at invoiced
value to customers, net of returns, discounts and value added tax,
and rental income from investment properties.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s executive directors have been identified as
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the Company's executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s business components
and review of these components’ performance. The Company’s
executive directors consider the business principally from a
product perspective which forms a basis for business segment
information as over 99% of the Group's revenue and business are
conducted in the PRC from a geographical perspective. Business
reportable operating segments identified are instant noodles,
beverages, instant food and others. The segment of others
includes investment holding, properties investment for rental
purpose, logistics and supportive functions.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
segments and allocating resources between segments, the
executive directors assess the performance of reportable segments
based on profit for the year and the profit (loss) before taxation,
share of results of associates and joint ventures and unallocated
income (expenses), net.

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of interest in
associates and joint ventures and unallocated assets which include
available-for-sale financial assets. Segment liabilities include all
liabilities with the exception of employee benefit obligations.

Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as
the Group's accounting policies as described in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The geographical location of the Group’s customers is based on
the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the
revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable to
customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group's
operating entities. Meanwhile, all of the Group’s non-current
assets, other than available-for-sale financial assets, are located in
the PRC.

No revenue from a single external customer amounted to 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information for the years ended 31 December 2017

and 2016 is as follows:
EBIWIN Business segment analysis
2017
A
HEE FERR Inter-
Instant %  Instant Hft  segment i
noodles Beverages food Others elimination Total
ARBTFT ABETT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000
g Revenue
IRE P e Revenue from external customers 2619433 34,752,943 858,648 722,764 — 58,953,788
PR 2 s Inter-segment revenue 722 1,345 363 1,121,347 (1,123,777) —
D Segment revenue 22,620,155 34754288 859,011 1,844,111 (1,123,777) 58,953,788
PREE(CHRHEER)  Segment result after finance costs 2,130,989 1,166,533 5682  (35738) 11,719 3,279,185
EEBENAR Share of results of associates and
AENREE joint ventures 188 104,974 (3,982) - — 101,180
KABZFWA Unallocated income, net - — - 12,371 - 12,371
BB ARR (B8) Profit (Loss) before taxation 2,131,177 1,271,507 1,700 (23,367 11,719 3,392,736
A Taxation (640,633)  (427,135) (4,006) (65,594) —  (1,137,368)
REEZBF(BR) Profit (Loss) for the year 1,490,544 844,372 (2306)  (88,961) 11,719 2,255,368
BE Assets
PEEE Segment assets 19,867,771 28,311,010 886,653 8,267,381 (4,653,444) 52,679,371
BENRER Interest in associates — 119,320 1,248 - — 120,568
RENFIER Interest in joint ventures 188 613,027 47,476 - — 660,691
APEEE Unallocated assets 638,526
wEE Total assets 54,099,156
8f Liabilities
PEEE Segment liabilties 8,637,330 15878922 357,836 11,896,646 (5066,848) 31,703,886
ok ak Unallocated liabilities 101,226
BaE Total liabilities 31,805,112
B EERERAR
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

ERPWAIN(E) Business segment analysis (Continued)
2017
R
HEAE HERR Inter-
Instant gi®  Instant Hftr  segment &it
noodles Beverages food Others elimination Total
ANRETT ARETT ARETT ARETFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
HthER Other information
TEREH Depreciation and amortisation 733276 2720806 47517 123,777 — 3625376
BARY Capital expenditures 334,073 627,596 7,310 364,881 — 1,333,860
FBBA Interest income 217,465 92,990 2439 25889  (67,997) 270,786
MBI Interest expenses 21,020 236,369 25 265451  (67,997) 454,868
REEE Impairment loss 69,518 154,503 - - — 22402
RETEIER

2017 Annual Report £ 157



HFABTSIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

7. 2BER(E)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

ER PN (E) Business segment analysis (Continued)
2016
apiyat
it HEEM Inter-
Instant £ Instant Aft segment &t
noodles  Beverages food Others  elimination Total
NEEFT ANREFT AREFT ANREFT AREFT ARETFT
RMBO00  RMBO0O  RMB000 — RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMB'000
(#E5)) (KE5) (HEF)) (KE5) (£E5)) (#EF))
(Restated) ~ (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restateq)
WE Revenue
REF Mg Revenue from external customers 21,561,757 32,486,524 862,003 668,565 — 55,578,849
PR 2 s Inter-segment revenue 647 6,940 52,857 1,107,039 (1,167,483) -
DEE Segment revenue 21,562,404 32493464 914860 1,775,604 (1,167483) 55,578,849
PHEE(CNBRUEER)  Segment result after finance costs 1691,810 751,988 (34,377)  (88,594) 4661 2,325,488
EEBENFR Share of results of associates and
L UNGIES joint ventures (1000 107,597 (33352) — — 74,145
FAEZFRA Unallocated income, net - - - 33,883 - 33,883
BRHARR (58) Profit (Loss) before taxation 1,691,710 859,585 (67,729 (54,711) 4661  2,433516
i Taxation (521,185)  (478,907) (3,812)  (47,549) — (1,051,453)
KEE R (F8) Profit (Loss) for the year 1170525 380,678 (71,541)  (102,260) 4661 1,382,063
BE Assets
PEEE Segment assets 22,440,591 30,809,377 1,023,107 6,975,755  (6,206,364) 55,042,466
Ba N el Interest in associates — 172,713 (12,175) - — 160,538
RENTER Interest in joint ventures — 626,059 50,349 — — 676,408
FOREE Unallocated assets 641,619
wEE Total assets 56,521,031
& Liabilities
HEHaE Segment liabilties 7125673 19271,095 485,088 11,403,247 (6,070,224) 32,214,879
FAEEE Unallocated liabilities 205,573
BEE Total liabilities 32,420,452
B EERERAR
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7. ABEME) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
EBoHoM(E) Business segment analysis (Continued)
2016
ME A
HEA HERM Inter-
Instant R Instant HH segment =5
noodles  Beverages food Others  elimination Total

ANREFT NRETFT ARETFT NREFT AREFT ARETFT
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB 000
(KE7)) (K7 (KE5) (KF5)) (KEFF)) (KEF))
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated) — (Restated) — (Restated)

Hings Other information
NEREH Depreciation and amortisation 763,876 2,863,866 53,681 117,321 — 3,798,744
BARY Capital expenditures 220,535 1,116,487 8571 186,257 — 1,531,850
FIEHA Interest income 284,550 51,189 1,355 10,735  (129,651) 218,178
FEsH Interest expenses 29230 317,641 — 279,083 (129,651) 496,303
REBR Impairment loss 56,873 53,523 7,754 — — 118,150

8. Hfbzxs 8. OTHER REVENUE

2017 2016
ARETFTT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#&&E%l)
(Restated)
B YA Interest income 270,786 218,178
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9. HtFEBA(EA) 9. OTHER NET INCOME (EXPENSES)
2017 2016
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 &%)
(Restated)
HKiiEmE & Technical consultancy fee — 76,849
i R on 2 W Gain on sales of scrapped materials 145,319 143,725
HEMHEESRMEE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
ZWEs financial assets 21,080 45,548
WEEFSHEARE2EE) Change in fair value of investment properties 46,223 21,728
BRAMREEYENAEZE Changein fair value of financial liabilities
BEESMEBEZARE at fair value through profit or loss, net
HEFER 126,349 (64,614)
HEBA R 2 FEs Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 43,725 —
RS % Bh Government grants 89,241 276,860
BT E —REE QA Gain on re-measurement of an associate to
RWEBBEAREZ fair value at acquisition date (Note41)
Wegs (Bt 41) 7,381 —
HEME  WEREMER  Loss on disposal of property, plant and
B EMAELREEZEE  equipment and prepaid lease payment (15,337) (32,033)
b H 18K F 5 Exchange loss, net (6,619) (85,396)
Hith Others 262,364 106,464
719,726 489,131
10. BRBLATEF 10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
KB (GTA) T 3BE % - This is stated after charging (crediting):
2017 2016
AR¥FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4EEZl)
(Restated)
B%E M Finance costs
AR S FNABEEEZIEIT  Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly
REMEFHZF BT T repayable within five years 421,627 496,618
AR5 F LA _EBEE R 2 $R1T Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly
REMEFH 2 FEZ T repayable over five years 37,750 4,331
459,377 500,949
B FIEZEEAREFIA Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into property,
M - HEE R plant and equipment at weighted average
hniEFEHE AR E capitalisation rate of 3.45% (2016: 2.86%)
#3.45% (2016: 2.86%) (4,509) (4,646)
454,868 496,303
B EERARA
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10. B®ADEF (4 ) 10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)
2017 2016
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 EZS)
(Restated)
Hg g Other items

BTRA(BIEEEMSE) ©  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):

e KR Salaries and wages 6,136,410 5,952,391

BRI E Termination benefits — 115,873

R EE RO SN Equity-settled share-based

2 I8 payment expenses 44,234 55,157

RIKERA Pension costs:

FEMNETE Defined contribution plans 611,476 662,627
FERAETE Defined benefit plans 11,715 30,144
ZEEN £ - Auditor's remuneration:

EZER Audit fee 9,962 9,899
EEFEKA Cost of inventories* 41,615,827 38,200,525
e Depreciation 3,513,679 3,676,512
T AR A R B 2 B Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 106,618 117,217
mEEEE Amortisation of intangible asset

(EBRFERD ) (included in distribution costs) 5,079 5,015
M - WERRE Impairment loss of property,

BWEBE(BER plant and equipment (included

HEmgEBRA) in other operating expenses) 224,021 118,150
REYEEMEDY Minimum lease payments in respect of

SEMEERK operating lease charges for premises 412,579 412,222
AENRIREEATBI 2 Compensation payment to employees of

BENK joint ventures and associates — 24,739

# EEFEKAF &

EARE #
4,832,550,0007C (2016 : A & ¥
3,951,415,0007C ) 81 8 T B K -
HE LT EE iR ESR

EER LB B 1055 5 1% FE T
LA FAEIE B AIAERE A o

amounts disclosed separately above.

Cost of inventories includes RMB4,832,550,000 (2016:
RMB3,951,415,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation,
amortisation of prepaid lease payments and operating lease charges
of premises, which amount is also included in the respective total
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1. EERERESHS 11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS
ANTEERITHERD W R FEK The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or receivable by
ZBe@rEnT the Company's directors and chief executive officer are as follows:
2017
HER HRHXA
Htpie AR
EShe Salaries 4 Share-
Directors’ and other  Discretionary based CHI
fees  emoluments bonuses payments Total

ARBTL  ARETT  ARETZ  ARETT  ARETZ
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000

HITEE - Executive directors:
RN Wei Ing-Chou 1,366 7,045 1,550 = 9,961
FHER—E Junichiro Ida 539 216 = - 755
RSB Wu Chung-Yi 197 2 - - 24
REELE Teruo Nagano 337 108 — = 445
e Wei Hong-Ming 337 1,584 144 - 2,065
hR=) Koj Shinohara 337 216 = = 553
AR Lin Chin-Tang 140 162 = = 302
BUHHTEE ©  Independent non-executive directors:
fRERF Hsu Shin-Chun 337 108 - - 445
KRR Lee Tiong-Hock 337 81 = = 418
REE Hiromu Fukada 337 108 - - 445
1TR## - Chief executive officer:
ERE James Chun-Hsien Wei - 13,227 1457 9,951 24,635
4,264 22,882 3,151 9,951 40,248
REHELEN2017F8F4H B Mr. Wu Chung-Yi resigned as executive director of the Company
EARRBRMITES  MERLER with effect from 4 August 2017 and Mr. Lin Chin-Tang was
20178 H4REZERARRAIH appointed as an executive director of the Company on 4 August
TEF - 2017.
BB RERA
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11. EEREHEEMES(Z) 11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
2016
ek SRG %A
Efhfie PR
ik Salaries bzl Share-
Directors’ andother  Discretionary based asf
fees emoluments bonuses payments Total
ANRETFT ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT ANRETT
RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
(#Z5)) (#Z5)) (#Z5)) (#Z5)) (#Z5))
(Restated)) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
HITEE Executive directors:
R Wei Ing-Chou 1,331 6,870 626 — 8,827
HEgE—5 Junichiro Ida 533 213 - - 746
REE Wu Chung-Yi 333 53 - - 386
REEE Teruo Nagano 333 107 — — 440
Y Wei Hong-Ming 333 107 — — 440
kRER Koji Shinohara 333 213 - - 546
BUHHTEE . Independent non-executive directors:
ThERF Hsu Shin-Chun 333 107 - - 440
FRE Lee Tiong-Hock 333 133 - - 466
iy Hiromu Fukada 333 107 — — 440
T - Chief executive officer:
ERE James Chun-Hsien Wei - 13,27 588 12,897 26,712
4,195 21,137 1,214 12,897 39,443

MN2017E K 20164512 A31 HIEF
S R EARE -

AEBRBERDFEETMALEHE

MAMEREESMATEBEIRN
M AERRERMIEHLRE -

No directors have waived emoluments in respect of the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.
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11. EENEREEMES(£E) 11. DIRECTORS’' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include one director (2076: one director) and
the chief executive officer whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above and three individuals (2076: three).
Details of the emoluments of the remaining three individuals
(2016: three) are as follows:

AREBSUESFTALTEREIMNE
F(2016F 1l EF ) RITH A
HOEMESHFBHEN EXKRIMA
(20164 - 3{f7) - HE8301(2016
F o 3fp) N\ ZBEFBIT

2017 2016

AR¥ T ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(#&&E3)

(Restated)

FehEMmNe Salaries and other emoluments 16,497 16,167
VAR 19 32 4 2 538 Share-based payments 9,190 9,380
TE4T Discretionary bonuses 1,970 1,849
27,657 27,396

X 36L(2016 % : 3f7)&EAmEFAL
2S4BT

The emoluments were paid to the three (2076: three) highest paid
individuals as follows:

EEAE
Number of individuals

< 48 B Emoluments band 2017 2016
AR#6,488,251 T AR RMB6,488,251 to RMB6,920,800
6,920,8007C (7,500,001 L  (HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000)
%8,000,000/87T) — 1
AR#6,920,801 TE AR¥  RMB6,920,801 to RMB7,353,350
7,353,350 (8,000,001 &7t (HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000)
%8,500,000/%7T) 1 —
AR#7,353,351t= AR RMB7,353,351 to RMB7,785,900
7,785,9007T (8,500,001 C  (HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000)
29,000,000/ L) 1 —
AR #9 948,651 TE AR  RMB9,948,651 to RMB10,381,200
10,381,2007T (11,500,001%  (HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000)
JLZ 12,000,000 7T) — 1
AR#10,381,201 t=EARE  RMB10,381,201 to RMB10,813,750
10,813,7507¢ (12,000,0017%  (HK$12,000,001 to HK$12,500,000)
JLZE 12,500,000/ 7T) — 1
AR#12,543,951 7t AR RMB12,543,951 to RMB12,976,500
12,976,5007T (14,500,001  (HK$14,500,001 to HK$15,000,000)
JLZ 15,000,000 7T) 1 —

3 3

EEMEERARA R
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12. BE 12. TAXATION
2017 2016
AR#FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 E3))
(Restated)
REERIE - Current tax - PRC Enterprise income tax
PECEMER
REE Current year 961,470 759,071
LABTEEZ (Z51) Lt  (Over) Under provision in prior year (4,179) 3,908
957,291 762,979
ELEBR Deferred taxation
EAERER 2 Origination and reversal of temporary
iy = E)F5 differences, net 49,243 192,028
RAREBERAPEZ Effect of withholding tax on the net
B 18 22 R AT 55 AL )R distributable earnings of the Group's
FEEZ TAR(HTaF 36) PRC subsidiaries (note 36) 130,834 96,446
180,077 288,474
NEERIABER Total tax charge for the year 1,137,368 1,051,453

REREBY NHARARANEEZ
WA B AT -

HRAEBZ ATREZE2017F &
2016 F W 8 1 o] 5 8 7 15 B FE &R
BMFE - Bt R ABEBFEBE
RS -

REARE B RBIRENFED
EMEBETEME B25%(2016
F25%)  RIBFFHE - BERESE
HERM S BB S B MmN R
AE it 70 50 K 2 B G A A B U
AR RE (B [2011]585%) -
iz B P B K e 78 5P Hb [ ([ 78 26 i
EDHBEREEHEEENIIFRE
T EEBEEEFERAMLD
EERARTO% LA EH) - F£20114F
Z2020FFE - FHIZ15% KMEER
EHWEEMBH - Bt A5 H
PSR 2B RARREAE15%
(20164 : 15%) »

The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company
and the Group.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group’s
entities had no assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The statutory PRC Enterprise income tax for the PRC subsidiaries
is 25% (2076: 25%). According to the Tax Relief Notice (Cai Shui
[2011] no. 58) on the Grand Development of Western Region
jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration
of Taxation and China Customs, foreign investment enterprises
located in the western region of the PRC (the “Western Region”)
with principal revenue of over 70% generated from the
encouraged business activities are entitled to a preferential income
tax rate of 15% for 10 years from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2020. Accordingly, certain subsidiaries located in the Western
Region are entitled to an income tax rate of 15% (2076 15%)).
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12. BIE(E) 12. TAXATION (Continued)
REBE 2R ANE N AR FZ T IE The Group's profit before taxation is reconciled to the tax expense
HERMT - for the year as follows:
BEM Yk Reconciliation of tax expense
2017 2016
AR¥FTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4€ &%)
(Restated)
B # B A Profit before taxation 3,392,736 2,433,516
BHRENEFERE 25% Income tax at statutory tax rate of 25%

ZTHIE (2016 4F : 25%) in the PRC (2016: 25%) 848,184 608,379
JENHGE R AL AT Share of results of associates and joint ventures (25,295) (18,536)
TR Non-deductible expenses 185,940 271,312
SRR Tax exempt revenue (57,609) (88,423)
RNERIERE B Unrecognised tax losses 173,651 236,092
REREHER Unrecognised temporary differences 5,055 (24,777)
HIBBE W AR HERIAEE  Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (58,591) (27,358)
BRAEENTEZMEARF  Effect of withholding tax on the distributable

AT BFIE 2 B profits of the Group's PRC subsidiaries

(Hist36) (note 36) 130,834 96,446
SEEBERY Effect of withholding tax on capital gain

TRIRIEEMIA arising from re-organisation of

group structure 28,000 —
P78 56 3 [ B R Effect of tax relief on PRC subsidiaries

B /B8 X B 2 R UORL SR in Western Region (30,542) (21,889)
ARBIEFE (Z5H) D5t (Over) Under provision in prior years (4,179) 3,908
Hith Others (58,080) 16,299
REERHIA Tax expense for the year 1,137,368 1,051,453

B EERARA
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13. RE 13. DIVIDENDS
(@) ARABREAAFEESZIK (@) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to
B the year:
2017 2016
AR¥ T ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 &%)
(Restated)
EEHZER AR S  Final dividend proposed after the end of the
SRR E@AL 2.49 FA reporting period of US2.49 cents
(2016 4F : &% (2016: US1.58 cents) per ordinary share
AR 1.58 FAl) 909,539 580,849

M2018F3 A20BHEE -
EEZRERAREGHRER
A& 2.49 FE Al - fn itk EE AR B
K EBRNFERRASES
BB - GR%I AEZE 2018412
A BILFEMRBERR - It
BERHRENGE VB
KRR BEMNRE -

(b) RMAFA#ENKERBER L
—HMBEETARABBRRZE

At a meeting held on 20 March 2018, the directors
recommended the payment of a final dividend of US2.49
cents per ordinary share. The proposed dividend will
be accounted for as an appropriation of reserves in the
year ending 31 December 2018 if it is approved at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The proposed final
dividend has not been recognised as dividend payables in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the

FIE - year:
2017 2016
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(#8&E2)
(Restated)
RZAF R R Final dividend in respect of the previous
IRE AR E B financial year, approved and paid during
BIEERHRRE the year, of US1.58 cents
RERE R (2016: US2.29 cents) per ordinary share
1.58 %Al
(2016 F : #fR
HiEAR 2.29 ) 580,849 806,485
RENSIZAR
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14. B8R&F 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
UTAEREREN RS REEE The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is as
Fz5tE - follows:
(a) BREFREA (a) Basic earnings per share
2017 2016
(4 &%)
(Restated)
RABIRRENEML  Profit attributable to ordinary
B (ARETFIT) shareholders (RMB’000) 1,819,077 1,161,699
BETE@AL 2 M Weighted average number of
TR (%) ordinary shares ('000) 5,605,427 5,602,925
FRERLFI(ARES) Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 32.45 20.73
(b) SBREHHEF (b) Diluted earnings per share
2017 2016
(4 &)
(Restated)
RATIRBEERE  Profit attributable to ordinary
B (ARETFIT) equity shareholders (RMB’000) 1,819,077 1,161,699
TR K192 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(#%)(FAR) (diluted) ('000)
EEITE R Ik
TR Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5,605,427 5,602,925
RNA P B RERT 2
a7 Effect of the Company’s share option scheme 5,337 504
AREFTESREE Weighted average number of ordinary shares
A2 AR for the purpose of calculating
Nt F 98 diluted earnings per share 5,610,764 5,603,429
GREE T
(ARESD) Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 32.42 20.73
EEERARAT
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15. REMFEHE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2017 2016
ARMTFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 E3))
(Restated)

ARE At fair value
REH] At beginning of the year 1,060,000 1,003,200
NE —BEESZH Additions - subsequent expenditure — 35,072
HeE Disposal (223) —
DhEZE Change in fair value 46,223 21,728
REEER At the end of the reporting period 1,106,000 1,060,000

—~
Q
~

AEEZREUMFHERRER
RYERIFESAREEN T
WHEAEEHNRPELET

MiTRE R 3816865 2 1678
5 o

NREBEAEMFERE

HEREEEMENAAEE
B REENBRTVERER
BERMGEMETHE - BE
EBEBYEXSERNMGER
ZYAE BUBENMGEER
i fEEELE AR - f(E
B E L BUE R E & NMEE
(ZERE)F/H - REES
BEYEMAAIEHEMHT
BHEEDSENHEEEMES
M EA AT EUENHE
ARG - EFA
AOERELXRTE2EEE
B ot 5% 3 [ ) KR W) S BR AR P
BoRmEE - BEREMGER
PRI E B X BN T
AERFBERER - EHREDE
NFEER  MENRS MR
ERZSEBR AR

(a

The Group's investment properties, which consist of
commercial properties and car parks together with their
respective prepaid lease payments, are situated in No. 1686
and No. 1678 Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai,
the PRC.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair values of investment properties, it is
the Group's policy to engage an independent professional
qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The management
works closely with the independent professional qualified
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation technique and
inputs to the model. The valuations have been arrived at
using income capitalisation approach, or where appropriate,
direct comparison approach. In the valuation, the market
rentals of all lettable units of the commercial properties are
assessed by reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable
units as well as other lettings of similar properties in the
neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is made
by reference to the yield rates observed by the valuer for
similar properties in the locality and adjusted based on the
valuer’s knowledge of the factors specific to the respective
properties. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.
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15. REMEHEE)

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) AAEBEFEMTEREE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
REBZEREEEBMWEN DL The fair value measurements for the Group's investment
BETEIEZEALBEWNE properties are categorised into Level 3 in the fair value
3MB RAEEFEARNREIEE hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used.
BEELRISARER 3 - There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.
EHAREHEHEMEBE T The following table gives information on significant
BREGAESEWT : unobservable inputs to the valuation of investment
properties:
TABAGH S HE
HRERORIEZH EXTTHEABLNZH AREEWBR
REMEHE Valuation Significant Relationship of
Investment techniques and unobservable unobservable inputs
properties key input(s) input(s) to fair value
2017
BRANENEES
Commercial W E Rk
properties and Income capitalisation
Car parks approach
TEH
The key inputs are:
R HERE ZRIMESWABRL MERESS FANEHENLREESR L7
REBNAEMEEESE® eLREMEMENNTERE
e WA EER5.25% K% 4.50% AEATH®  RZIA -
Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account of An increase in the reversion
the capitalisation of the rental yield used would result in
derived from the existing tenancies a decrease in the
with due allowance for reversionary fair value of the
rental potential of the properties and investment properties, and vice
car parks of 5.25% and 4.50% versa.
respectively.
BT ERA =
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BHZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

15. REMEHEE)

(b) AARBEFFEMHEREGE)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

TARAGH SR
HERDRIEEE EATTBIGHNEH ARBENEE
REMEHE Valuation Significant Relationship of
Investment techniques and unobservable unobservable inputs
properties key input(s) input(s) to fair value
M5 AR BAYE

Monthly market rent

ZEIEH - B RERYERYER
FeENENRE - R -
AmGEer ARTEERETETS
KAAREIGTEARKE 282 -

Commercial properties

Monthly market rents, taking
into account the time, location,
and individual factors such as
frontage and size, between the
comparable and the properties,
ranging from RMB198 to
RMB282 per square meter per
month on lettable area basis.

EES

ZRIGH  wERERYER
WMERG 2 EHENEE
mAARFE - BEFEL
BATSHEITRARE 22T

Car parks

Monthly market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties, of RMB722 per
unit for car park spaces.

FRMEATmSHEEEE LT
SCREURHMENATEER
ERLT RZHAR-

An increase in the monthly
market rent used would result
in an increase in the
fair value of the investment
properties, and vice versa.
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15. REMEMEE) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(b) AR EBEFEMTEREE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
AAENBHN SR
HERORETESY BEATTHAISHNEE AAEENBEF
REMEE Valuation Significant Relationship of
Investment techniques and unobservable unobservable inputs
properties key input(s) input(s) to fair value
2016
BRNENEEES  WaEBEAME
Commercial Income capitalisation
properties approach
and car parks
TEFE:
The key inputs are:
MBI E R E EZRIBSMAER L  MEREES FANERENDRERE LA

RARNGEMETHSER
HEWEETER5.5% R4.5% -
Reversion yield, taking into account of

SYREMFHENATER
AEBATHR  RZIA -
Reversion yield An increase in the reversion
the capitalisation of the rental yield used would result in
derived from the existing tenancies a decrease in the
with due allowance for reversionary fair value of the investment
rental potential of the properties and
car parks of 5.5% and 4.5%

respectively.

properties, and vice versa.

EEMEERARA R

mis A

Monthly market rent
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BAYE

ERIER - A RE YRR
NEAG ZRNERER
maAkFE - §AMSES
A RERAHRRESETIK

HAREI19I TEARK 278 °

Commercial properties

Monthly market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and

individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties, ranging from
RMB191 to RMB278 per square

meter per month on
lettable area basis.

FRMEATmSHEEEE LT
eeRENFHENATER
AAEALI RZIA -

An increase in the monthly
market rent used would result
in an increase in the
fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
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15. REMEHEE) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(b) AR EBEFE=EMNTFEREAE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
TARAGH SR
HRERORIEZH EXTTHABLOZH AREEWBER

REMEHE Valuation Significant Relationship of
Investment techniques and unobservable unobservable inputs
properties key input(s) input(s) to fair value

BEZ

ZERIGE LR RE

WmERG cEHENEE

mAEARPE - BEFEEA
BATSHESITRARE 00T ©

Car parks

Monthly market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties, of RMB700 per
unit for car park spaces.

16. Y% - WBERRIE 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
B3 %
RifE &
K2R Machinery Pecrill — HERE  fEIE
1 7 and  appliances  Miscellaneous  Consfruction ait
Freghold land Bulding equipment  and equipment ~~ equipment ~ in progress Total
N\EETT  \REFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETR
AMBO00 AMBO00 RVB 000 AMBO00 AMBO00 AVB 000 AMBO00
(Wie) (Hizn)
Notea) Note b)
REEHE-82 Reconciliation of carrying amount -
016F12A31BEEE  yearended 31 December 2016
(BE7) (Restated)
WEA At beginning of year 103,089 8809724 21804172 98,282 1,530,295 269,012 35041574
hE Additions - 182,964 337,568 25951 410911 483,778 1.446,172
RESEE Impairment logs (Aote ¢/ - - (118.150) - - - (118.150)
EnRER Transfer upon completion - 335330 808,669 2575 121765 (1,268,339) -
HE Disposals - (16,799) (43,836) (3,037) (86,831) - (150,553)
e Depreciation - (529,05%)  (2,270,286) 31 (845,399) - (3676512)
ERER Fuchange differences 9,150 5,103 - - - - 14,053
REER At end of the reporting period 112,239 8787200 20,518,087 92,000 1,130,741 1916451 32,55, 784
RENSIZAR
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16. ¥  HERZEE) 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
EERRA
BERRE  Electrical BERG EEIR
KAEELH BT Machinery appliancesand Miscellaneous  Construction ait
Freehold land Building and equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total

ARETE  AREFL  ARETZ  ARETL  AREFT  ARETR  ARETE
RMB000 RMB00 RMB900 RMB000 RMB00 RMB000 RVB000
(fia) (fizb)
(Note a) (Note b)

FEEHE-82 Reconciliation of carrying amount -

W17F12A31BLEE  yearended 31 December 2017

REN(EET)) Atbeginning of year (Restated) 239 878766 20,518,087 92000 1130741 1916451 32,556,784
HE Additions 65,179 179,083 9,650 37,735 425,731 997,348
RE-WE-FWELT  Adoitions- acquiiion of a subsidary

(fi#41) (Note 41) - 4,887 2,03 788 35,251 - 102,959
REERIH) Impaiment loss (Note ¢ - - (224021) - - - (224021)
EEs Transfer upon completion - 2007 351,122 3833 45,526 (673,188) -
e Disposals - (22,789) (66,633) (2462) (78953) - (170,836)
HE-LENBLT Disposal - disposal of subsidiaries

(W) (Note 42) - (489,693)  (1,093,483) (1683) (85,259) (66402)  (1,736,520)
& Depreciation - (518548)  (236420) (31439)  (721,265) - (3513679)
EREE Buchange differences 1,148 1,039 (26) (1) - - 2,744
REER At end of the reporting period 1397 8138049 17,451,705 70,670 637776 160259 28014779

R2O17E181B(8E5)  At1January 2017 (Restated)

FE Cost 112239 12578412 36,366,968 304,164 5,377,400 1916451 56,655,634
ZHNENRERR Accumulated deprediation and

impaiment losses —  (3,791146)  (15,848,881) (212,164)  (4,246,659) —  (24,098,850)
FEFE Net carrying amount 112,239 8,787,206 20,518,087 92,000 1,130,741 1,916,451 32,556,784
R2017E12A318 At 31 December 2017
& Cost 113,987 12317100 3434757 298,737 5,199,758 1,602,592 53,879,754
EHENREEE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (4,179,060)  (16,395,866) (228,067)  (4,561,982) — (25,864,975
RAFE Net carrying amount 113,987 8,138,049 17,451,705 70,670 637,776 160259 28,014,779

B EERERAR

174 TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



W

AN
=

7

5 ERZRMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE201

712 A3181EFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

16. 1% - WBERRB(E

17.

TR E B AN S
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REER  AEEETHRENEE
BEREANEERFEERTZ
T3 FEE T R ES  IREDSE
“@rE A AR S51,379,0007T(2016
F: ARW57,772,0007T) - EF
R AEBEEEANRERE
LEFZERY) o

FA-- AREHEBEMEITA
B RUER#ERENEEDS
2 A AR #224,021,0007C(2016
F: AKK118150,000C) B &
ERE o AN AR S EHE A
ELMBRREHE FTBEEELEBT
AR E o St R maiRE st

FR - FEARKEEBE D E
mBSELSEM])NEERE
RIEAZE - BERKABEBEERD
e ek Rl Bl (E - B EETT
TREES BEEEREELS
Uk cERAEFERERS
&g - FIRFTHNRESREETEA -
BEGEREENE  SARSEE
B {37 1 7] Uy 01 & B = AR B A %
FEHREBE - Bt - BIEER
EOBLZE2017F12A318 EF
& RBRSEEEN AR
HRE °

i 40EE

TR AE E BRI BRI AR LY
TAE T HIAAS o 5% PR AN 1R T & BB
He REERNREARNERESE
A AN R 104,748,000 7T(2016 4 -
A E#107,301,0007T) B 5t A a8
FRIE R H A E WRIE o

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

17.

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The land represents the freehold land located outside Hong Kong.

At the end of the reporting period, the building ownership
certificates of the Group's certain premises with aggregate net
carrying amount of RMB51,379,000 (2076: RMB57,772,000) have
not been obtained due to application for the changes of granted
land use purpose is still in process. In the opinion of directors, the
Group validly occupies and uses these buildings.

During the year, certain individual machinery and equipment with
carrying amount of RMB224,021,000 (2076: RMB118,150,000)
were fully impaired due to prolonged period of being idle and
technical obsolescence. The Group has no plan to re-use these
machinery and equipment and all those assets are prepared to be
disposed of. The residue values of these machinery and equipment
were estimated to be nil.

During the year, the economic performances of certain products
(the "Cash Generating Units”) in Instant Noodles and Beverages
segments were worse than expected and therefore there was
an indication that the machinery and equipment of the related
products might be impaired. The management has performed
impairment review and the recoverable amount for each of the
Cash Generating Units has been determined based on value in use
model by using discounted cash flow projection. According to the
value in use calculation, the recoverable amount for each of the
Cash Generating Units is higher than the carrying amount of related
machinery and equipment. Therefore, the management determined
that no impairment of the Cash Generating Units containing the
machinery and equipment for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Prepaid lease payments represent cost paid for leasehold land

in the PRC. The cost is amortised over the leasehold period. The

amount to be amortised within twelve months after the end
of the reporting period amounted to RMB104,748,000 (2076:
RMB107,301,000) and is included in prepayments and other
receivables.

RENEIZAR
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18. EFEE 18. INTANGIBLE ASSET
BRTRE R
Concession right
2017 2016
ARETFT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#BZ3)
(Restated)
IREEHER Reconciliation of carrying amount
REH] At beginning of the year 179,179 172,404
5 Amortisation (5,079) (5,015)
PE & A% Exchange realignment (11,164) 11,790
REER At end of the reporting period 162,936 179,179
REEHR At end of the reporting period
AN Cost 191,122 204,038
RETEESH Accumulated amortisation (28,186) (24,859)
162,936 179,179
I AERIEN2012E3 LKA The intangible asset represents a concession right acquired as
BIRSFRE A TS Ir QA o a result of a business combination taken place in March 2012.
MR T OREB AR B B The concession right granted to the Group for manufacturing,
o DR E RSB S NE bottling, packaging, distributing and selling PepsiCo’s carbonated
Bes D mmE o K E R R A RE soft drink and Gatorade branded products on a royalty free basis
WETEEEm K ERE - EER under a specific trademark in the Mainland China is amortised on
WMAWEIBR Y 413948 - BESE the straight-line basis over the contract period of approximately
ETIREEEN o 39 years.
EREERERAER ST E R Intangible asset is measured using cost model and is tested for
(EF51E 10 B 1T R (E B S o impairment where an indicator of impairment appears.
ERBERERAT
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19. HE 19. GOODWILL
RMB’000
RARREE Cost and carrying amount
R20165F 12 A31 B R
20171 H1H At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 —
WS —RM B AR (Mt 41) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 41) 97,910
M2017F12H831H At 31 December 2017 97,910

FEEANRER REREBMNEH
REERLBATHREALZER - K
KmiGERMEEEEEOER S
BHMRENKE - EENETERE
BoRER BASEMTTEAH
MENEENERFE - BB
BB A EMAEH o

BAEREERBEXEBUEEIEER
SERELEN(REELE
2 DETRERR

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the acquisition
effectively included amount in relation to the benefits originated
from revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of the acquired business. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the Group's
cash-generating unit (“CGU") identified according to the nature
of business as follows for impairment test:

2017 2016

AR¥FT ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Ko Beverages 97,910 —

HEREFEENTE((RRES
EAEM)IER2017F9 ANEAR
& A R # 183,690,000 5T 4 &8 71 M
BEALHEHERARA(MMNES
A1) 25% k- FFBFRRETHE
BIPTEE41 7R - FTEEE R ERIBATIR
B EERFAEAENAA
R#97,910,000 TH B B H A F
BERRBAEE - RN2017F12 A 31
B AEEZEMMNEEATLHE
e BERFMEHNRAeELSE
MHATKRE ¢ STERAERE
ZeHAEANTFHUBEENRS
METER - BBESFHNE2RED
LAY REEREEHE LR - 5
M REEENBAMNITEERTE
Al WA BBARITEN TR
BRE .

Goodwill arising from the beverages business (the “Beverages
CGU") represented the acquisition of 25% equity interests in
Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Limited (“HZPS") at an
aggregate consideration of RMB183,690,000 in September
2017 as further detailed in note 41 below. The excess of the
consideration transferred over the acquisition-date fair values
of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of
approximately RMB97,910,000 is recognised as goodwill. At 31
December 2017, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of
the Beverages CGU with reference to the cash flow projection
of HZPS. The calculation uses cash flow projection based on
financial budgets approved by the board of directors covering a
5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period have been
extrapolated using a 2% long-term growth rate. This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry.
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19.

20.

& (&)

KmReELEMREEMREET
FwrEeEBaEKREE B
SR E IR BORE -

AR EEAEENIZRENE
NI

EME 38%
TR R 5%
REERE 2%
IEEES 9%

EEERBAERRLEY MG H
EROEMETREENER - IEM
BT IR R R TAT - I S R R R A 3R
TELEUABNSERR

B b T BRI B A BB A U
B&WE2HRIN ARAEREL
TAEAEARBTEREETRE
BRI 2D -

HEAR

MR2017F12A3MB T EHE A A
BRI A SRR M40 o

BREEAMBRRRNANEEHALE
HABEES -

EANHEMBRR

MR CHI R4 TRl AEEE
EOMMBEETELNBRER2%
EAZES% AEBERBREHERE
HYHAALZH  BRARATEERZ
([BEEHHED 2R RES —EZ
MEETERRIT Iz EEE(®
EZ]) - AREMINE B0 R R
FEAZENHBAETSHHNMNE S
MAEESUEELHERTE A
LWEEERAAEEHMMEEA
LRSI BERRBERR
2017F9R1H ZBEREKA
AEBRHWBRA - Bt iME
EALEGAANREUBRENA °

BRMEZERERAA
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19.

20.

GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU based on the
value-in-use calculation exceeded its carrying amount. Accordingly,
goodwill was not impaired.

Key assumptions and inputs used for the value-in-use calculation
are as follows:

Gross profit margin 38%
Average growth rate 5%
Long-term growth rate 2%
Discount rate 9%

Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin based
on past performance and its expectation of market development.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
to the Beverages CGU.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU, the Company'’s
management is not aware of any other probable changes that
would necessitate changes in the key assumptions.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2017 are shown in
note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
during the year or at the end of the reporting period.

Significant judgements and assumptions

As further detailed in note 41 below, the equity interest in
HZPS held by the Group increased from 25% to 50% and the
Group holds a majority of the voting rights of HZPS through the
execution of a sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA") and
an authorisation Letter (the “Authorisation Letter”) entered into
with another shareholder of HZPS. Since the relevant activities
which significantly affect HZPS's return are determined by the
board of directors of HZPS based on a simple majority vote, the
management concluded that the Group has control over HZPS and
this associate became a subsidiary of the Group from the effective
date of the Authorisation Letter on 1 September 2017. As a result,
HZPS is consolidated in these consolidated financial statements.
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20.

MEAR(E)

SEMNERIBERREZZHBLTN

MBER

TRINRASEE-FEBEERIH
PRI AOME AR - FRADE KA
EERMER - WM BERBMERR
NEPE R RIEEIHAT Z 28

20. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

material non-controlling interests (“NCI”)

inter-company eliminations.

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

The following table shows the information relating to TAB,
the only subsidiary of the Group which has material NCI. The
summarised financial information represents amounts before

M12A31H
At 31 December
2017 2016
DEMERIR 2 AL Proportion of NCI's ownership interests 27.09% 47.49%
DERESIR 2 W ERE L] Proportion of NCI's voting rights 33% 50%
AR¥TFT ARBFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#Efs5T)
(Restated)
MENEE Current assets 8,515,988 6,978,248
FERBEE Non-current assets 20,527,369 24,543,088
mEAE Current liabilities (13,034,715) (17,187,333)
ERBERG Non-current liabilities (2,844,208) (1,996,953)
FEE Net assets 13,164,434 12,337,050
VEERRRAREE Carrying amount of NC| 3,750,926 5,845,163
REDEIZER
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20. MBATEE)

BENEALBRRES ZHMELRH

20. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

BRER(E) material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) (Continued)
BZ12A31H
Year ended 31 December
2017 2016
AR¥FT AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#€E3)
(Restated)
W= Revenue 34,754,288 32,493,464
IE Z A Profit for the year 844,372 380,678
HEmzmhls=s(EE) Other comprehensive income (loss) 96,114 (29,377)
2HENRETE Total comprehensive income 940,486 351,301
DR EREE R T Profit attributable to NCI 418,376 204,406
DEREREREEEEIE  Total comprehensive income
attributable to NCI 464,021 188,986
B ERRERRE Dividends paid to NCI (103,875) (78,224)
s (B) RensF58 Net cash flows from (used in):
EEES) Operating activities 3,525,921 4,434,687
BEEH Investing activities 302,813 (913,683)
BB R Financing activities (3,530,256) (1,824,023)
B EERERAR
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20. BAR(E) 20. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

FEEEMBARAMERERNEE

20179678 FEEN & &K AT R
LA #2818 A % 100,000,000 5T 4k
BREESEHEMERARKEE
EREBEBESEALHKEERA A
([EERAEEATLE ) EEIN30 % Rt
BYAREERKBEERERESE
AN EREZH36.76%EMNE
5251% - RIEE R KA F K
EPBEMLEI0%REMNERRE
B R EE AR®10,206,0007T -
Bt PERRERBADARE
42,134,000 7T * 2 % B4 a5 4 00
MeFEEINNRSREZHENE
% & A R #57,866,0007T ¢ i %
RIEIERIEZZSHHEE TS
MEIRRARPEREZR - BRELR
B MRTAREKET EMER
mIERHMEEF QA o

M2017F12H » AEBEFRIRE
BREDZERBRBRTEMNRR
BHE RETAEERS—ERE
201796 5308 K20174F11 A8
29B A RIET L W RESMNEE AR + BASR
©H1E611,884,000 €T (HHERH
A B #3,987,036,000 7T ) H) FE Al (&
HMPERD BITRMN204% - B
NEBTFEMERDZERSEBRR
REHE52.51 %IEINET2.91%  RU
B 0 ERERAM (8 AR i AR 20.4 % Ix 4
BARE(EE A AR 2,583,812,000
Lo At - LEBREREETHT A
R ¥2,583,812,0007T © 1 4 &A%
RERRSSHEEINNESHE
< ErZEE R/ ANRE1,403,224,000
T EET AT D HAR R 2 A 5 R
R e MR R ERA

Change in the Group’s ownership interest in subsidiaries

In July 2017, TAB acquired additional 30% equity interest in
Chengdu PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited (“CDPS”) and
Kunming Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited (“KMPS") at
an aggregate consideration of RMB100,000,000, resulting in
an increase in the Group’s effective equity interests in both
CDPS and KMPS from 36.76% to 52.51%. On the acquisition
date, total carrying amount of the 30% equity interests in CDPS
and KMPS amounted to RMB10,206,000 in deficit. As a result,
the NCI was decreased by RMB42,134,000, and the difference
of RMB57,866,000 between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests have increased and the cash consideration
paid was recorded in “Transactions with non-controlling interest
reserve” within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position. As a result of these acquisitions, both subsidiaries
become wholly-owned subsidiaries of TAB.

In December 2017, the Group, through the exercise of a
call option in accordance with an option agreement and a
supplementary agreement entered into by the Group and another
shareholder of TAB dated 30 June 2017 and 29 November 2017
respectively, acquired additional 20.4% of the issued shares in
TAB at a cash consideration of US$611,884,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,987,036,000), resulting in an increase in
the Group's effective equity interests in TAB from 52.51% to
72.91%. The carrying amount of the 20.4% equity interest in TAB
on the date of acquisition was RMB2,583,812,000. As a result,
the NCI was decreased by RMB2,583,812,000, and the difference
of RMB1,403,224,000 between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests have decreased and the cash consideration
paid was recorded in “Transactions with non-controlling interest
reserve” within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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21, BN TRERS 21. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES
2017 2016
AR¥TFTT AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4€ &%)
(Restated)
JEEMES - REAE Unlisted shares, at cost 96,696 149,357
FERIE B 2 4A Share of post-acquisition results 28,041 15,350
B U iEZ B W F Dividend received since acquisition (4,169) (4,169)
120,568 160,538

REERBE QR ZAMAFIIT

Details of the associates at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:
TEEE/
Bk
Principal AEERER
place of EREARESLE
business FEMEAR  Proportion of effective
BEATER and place of Registered  ownership interest ~ FE£%K
Name of associates incorporation capital held by the Group Principal activities
2017 2016
MNBETEARBRAF HhE US$10,400,000 — | 13.12% HEREERM
Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and
sale of beverages
ERBFUEAHERAR i US$16,000,000  36.46% | 2625% HEREEHRM
Nanjing Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and
sale of beverages
Fr(MREERAT h US$8,850,000 49% 49% BHEREERR
Kongguan (Hangzhou) Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacturing and
sales of candies
MER(LEB)BHEERAR hE US$7,300,000 — 45% HENERERAR
Wakodo (Shanghai) Trading Co., Ltd. * PRC Sales of milk product and
commodity for babies
# AR EE L R # English translation for identification purposes only.

WA R A B R R YR s D BR
B PBHRERS ©

EEMEERARA R

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.
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21. BENTRR(E) 21. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
EBIEEAKE AT HEER Financial information of individually immaterial associates
TR RN EFIZERSEZRY 2@ The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and
RIIEEREE NRIMNAFTEREEK the Group's share of results of associates that are not individually
REBFE(FEELE - material and accounted for using the equity method.
R12A31H
At 31 December
2017 2016
ARETFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(45 =E21)
(Restated)
EHREE Carrying amount of interests 120,568 160,538
BZ12A31H
Year ended 31 December
2017 2016
ARETFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(45 =E51)
(Restated)
REEFEL Group's share of:
AEL&H (E5E) Profit (Loss) for the year 23,896 (36,550)
Hib 2 mIES Other comprehensive income — —
FEE (FE) B3 Total comprehensive income (loss) 23,896 (36,550)
EEFRR AEEREEMNERD In the opinion of the directors, no associates are individually
B nm] o material to the Group.
RENEIZAR
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22. S¥ATIER 22. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES
2017 2016
AR¥ T ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(A5EZ)
(Restated)
JEEMES - REAE Unlisted shares, at cost 472,812 472,812
FEML RS R 2 4E Share of post-acquisition results 408,523 331,239
B Uk EE 1 B B IR R Dividend received since acquisition (220,644) (127,643)
660,691 676,408
REEREL AT ZRMAFEN T - Details of the joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
FTERE/
Bk
Principal AEBEREZ
place of EREEEERLA
operation/ FMEA  Proportion of effective
EI-UNCEA ] Place of Registered  ownership interest ~ FTEEH
Name of joint ventures incorporation capital held by the Group Principal activities
2017 2016
RERRYRMABRAR hE US$11,000,000  31.82% | 31.82% MIRKEEREER
Fujian Weizhen Foods Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of
agricultural products
FE (BN RRAERAF i US$24,000,000 60% 60% MIRHENEER
Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale
of meat products
LEBETESHBRRR h US$28,120,000  36.46% | 2625% BiEREESRSR
Shanghai Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and
sale of beverages
EEOEUESHERAR(EEEE]) +E RMB150,000,000  58.33% 42% BEERHEERM
Jinan Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. (“JNPS") ~ PRC Manufacture and
sale of beverages
RE(LE)RHBRAR h US$7,000,000  32.81% | 23.62% MIREESRS
Kagome (Shanghai) Beverages Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of beverages
TRERBEEBRAF th RMB400,000 25% 5% Rt BHERKEES
Beijing Zhengben Advertising Ltd. PRC Design, production and
agency of advertising
LA EFrBAE QAR DIREREY R All of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
iR e M mERSF - method in the consolidated financial statements.
B EERERAR
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22,

REQREEE)

BEANHERBR

AEEFB—H2EMNBRAFER
E (EM) RMBRAF6E0%HNERE
o AT BREZEZEMBARES
—REEZRANARWZ - HRERE
EHREERTENREEBELHE
REE-ZORE - Bt - AEERR
LR BRI EAEMEERA KRR
il -

rEEEBE—HEEREEEHES
BONRAER I EHMAMNER
RIMiEEEM B $58.33% 2 R
BigtEsm o R - RBZIEREHRE
B AR HEMITE R ZBHNE R
# o HRERRAEERNTENERE
BEARBSEME S LB BERAR
EEQHBBIONMIREERA—H -
BEEHEN  AEEEEEBEEN
SEEENHAIMIZES  BLS
K B A F 2 A SRR R B S
RENEERRBNAZZIIEZER
BHEB AR MEAIEEFEIS —BUR
E - ARAEERRAERNBEEA S
MEER A S RIS -

22,

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Significant judgements and assumptions

The Group has 60% voting rights in Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co.,
Ltd. through a wholly owned subsidiary. However, based on a
contractual agreement between the wholly owned subsidiary
and another investor, the relevant activities which significantly
affect the investee’s return require the unanimous consent of all
investors. Therefore, the Group determined that it has no control
but joint control over this entity.

The Group has 58.33% effective ownership interest in JNPS
through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, which holds 80% direct
equity interests in JNPS. However, based on the contractual
agreement between the non-wholly owned subsidiary and other
investor of JNPS, the relevant activities which significantly affect
the JNPS's return require over 80% votes of the board of directors
of JNPS. By virtue of the Group’s contractual right to appoint 4
out of 5 directors to the board of directors of JNPS, the Group
has determined that it has no control but joint control over JNPS
as the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
economic activities of JNPS require the unanimous consent of the
non-wholly owned subsidiary and the other investor.
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22. RELNRIER(E) 22. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
BRIEEAREGE QAR 2HBRER Financial information of individually immaterial joint
ventures
TRV RAEBIigiES E 2 ERI3E The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the
BARELARINAREELEKE Group's share of results of joint ventures that are not individually
EE(E A4S - material and accounted for using the equity method.
R12A31H
At 31 December
2017 2016
AR TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(4 ZE2))
(Restated)
R AREE Carrying amount of interests 660,691 676,408
BZ12A31H
Year ended 31 December
2017 2016
AR TF T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 ZE2))
(Restated)
NEEFEL Group's share of:
AFE WS Profit for the year 77.284 110,695
HAth 2 E Y ER Other comprehensive income — —
FHEHREERE Total comprehensive income 77,284 110,695
EERE ANEBEXAERBEARD In the opinion of the directors, no joint ventures are individually
AT o material to the Group.
B EERERAR

186 TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



FAETSIRERMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

23. AtEELREE 23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
2017 2016
i3 ARMTFT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 E3))
(Restated)
REES Investment funds (a), (b)
NRE At fair value 504,359 487,054
FELHMRAES Equity securities, unlisted (b)
NRE At fair value 110,722 130,757
FELHRAES Equity securities, unlisted (c)
R1E At costs 25,678 26,188
B B8 Impairment losses (2,233) (2,380)
23,445 23,808
638,526 641,619
et - Note:
(@) HEESARME0I6E - 19 (@  The investment funds represent investments in four (2076: four)

) EeZRE DR BKIINFH
SEEMAEREFABEE UM
BN AEREFABEERKIN
RERAEE (KBRS DN
BOBREEAR - LEEERA
SERBEESURIAEERMER
BH) o AKR¥E16,983,0007T(2076
F: ARK67,521,0007T ) EREF
NEBEWEREES -

funds which were set up as limited partnership in the Cayman
Islands, limited partnership in Jersey and company with liability
limited by shares incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
"BVI") respectively, aiming at allocating idle funds reasonably and
increasing return on asset. During the year, RMB16,983,000 (2076:
RMB67,521,000) was paid to acquire the investment funds.
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23. AHHESHEEE)

Hist
(b)

(#)

REER  REESHRARBERIE
ITTRARERHBBEDSKRE
S EAEBAGE - DAEE

EERR R UES ARRIE
BEHERFRERN @BEAARE
95,396,000 7C(2016 FF « A K %
57,458,000) - HEE &N A AE
SERNATAZHEBERNTREZRR
BRI REAR A WIS MR FE45 ©

BEIE EHEARFE ST ZFHERUK
FTRER —HEREZEEBAR
BEEE BB AnBEZE
BEAEZMmEHENSEMGEH
BERTESENE  BEFER/FEL
mHkEZ R BETERNFEME
B AKERBHEFLI LT
REFNER °

AfHESREEDATIEET

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

The fair values of the investment funds and unlisted equity
investments were valued by the respective investment managers or
trust administrator at the end of the reporting period. Changes in
fair value of RMB95,396,000 (2076: RMB57,458,000) were credited
to investment revaluation reserve. The valuation techniques and
significant inputs used in the measurement of the fair values of the
investment funds are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

These unlisted equity securities are measured at cost less impairment
loss at the end of each reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed. The directors are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably. The Group has no intention to dispose
of these unlisted equity securities.

The available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the

(= following currencies:

2017 2016

AR¥FT AR TFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(45 E5lf)
(Restated)

ETT us$ 621,690 624,855
AR RMB 5,000 5,000
ek New Taiwan dollar (“NTD") 10,362 10,193
) Others 1,474 1,571
638,526 641,619
B EERERAR
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24. HMFERBEE

MR2017F2R  A&EBEHE=TFTFH
R Bt AEBREBEUARKE
635,929,000 TR R REBEE MR RE
B—iEREREY  RN&EER - Hifh
RE—¥2T& ARM317,964,000LE
F EBREBRE T BEERNENETE
¥REITAERRIN -BFPERNLERE
EEEEET  BHIREHEN2018F8 A
T BEEBFETERBEBRERE
o

MR2017F12 8310 INFEHFHORE
A AR 317,964,000 7T 2 50 8% A H At IF
MEBEE -

24. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

In February 2017, the Group entered into an agreement with a
third party vendor pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase
a commercial building located in Tianjin for a cash consideration
of RMB635,929,000, of which 50% deposit of the consideration
amounting to RMB317,964,000 was paid up to the end of the reporting
period and the remaining consideration will be paid when the vendor
transfers the legal title of the commercial building to the Group. The
commercial building is currently under construction by the vendor and
it is expected that the construction works will be completed and the
legal title of the commercial building will be transferred to the Group in
August 2018.

At 31 December 2017, the consideration of RMB317,964,000 paid to
the vendor was recorded as other non-current assets.

25. EE 25. INVENTORIES
2017 2016
AR¥ETFT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#&E3)
(Restated)
R Raw materials 1,027,595 1,127,420
EERS Work in progress 70,167 74,070
2K Finished goods 1,299,179 1,280,712
2,396,941 2,482,202
26. FEUBEZR 26. TRADE RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
AR¥TFT AREFITT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&)
(Restated)
JFE W BR =X Trade receivables

—%£=h — From third parties 1,591,378 1,556,089

—ERRBIZEERR — From companies controlled by a substantial
2zl 2 ZEAF] shareholder of the Company 12,673 3,675
/NS — From associates 2,107 6,566
—BENE — From joint ventures 30,227 23,563
1,636,385 1,589,893
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26. EUWERR (&) 26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
REB ZHEXRIH AED IR - The majority of the Group's sales are cash-on-delivery. The
HBTINHEZEEHRETER3I0EW remaining balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging from
Ko ﬁﬁaﬁlﬁzﬁ% L(FIB IR R R B 30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of
/)EMEJESTE IR B REZAMRS impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts), based on invoice
B DB RGN - date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2017 2016
AREFTT ABWEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#&E3l)
(Restated)
0-90X 0 - 90 days 1,517,678 1,460,298
90 KA E Over 90 days 118,707 129,595
1,636,385 1,589,893
BB K FE 2 FEWBE TR The ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired is as follows:
2017 2016
AR FTT ABRETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(#ZE5)
(Restated)
B Past due:
30 KA Within 30 days 98,074 113,397
31 290K 31-90 days 83,822 120,400
i 90K Over 90 days 44,699 52,740
226,595 286,537
ELWIBHERRENEKESR 2 The trade receivables that are past due but not impaired related
KERNEBESLLESBITLSNTE to a number of independent customers that have a good track
YEF - ARESEVEE ANE record with the Group. The Group has not impaired these debtors
{t » ANEEHEI ES ]‘Lﬁbﬁﬁ,TAﬁgégE{/E as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
WE TEEEERRELERRA the directors believe that the amounts are recoverable. The Group
W E o 7 & B jﬁ;ﬂq AT E does not hold any collateral over these balances.
IRPMEERER S -
33 b 3 3 A 5k o SR (B By FE Uk BE 248 Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate to a
7 BT EA EEHE N BR 2R S0 4% o wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.
JEURBE R =B LAARKIIE - The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.
BT ERA R
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27. BNERREMEWRS 27. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2017 2016

i3 ARMTFT ARBFT

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

(4 E3))
(Restated)

BIIER Prepayments to suppliers for purchase of

goods 170,648 30,875

BITERER Prepayments for purchase of equipment 9,929 26,260
BREETR Prepaid value-added taxes 632,636 586,466
BREERY Prepaid operating expenses 923,200 1,139,661
HHBOEERETH  Current portion of prepaid lease payments 17 104,748 107,301
EAER Loan receivables 27(a) 60,000 60,000
EBRE Debt investment 27(b) 900,000 —
FEURIHTB AR ZA Amount due from former subsidiaries 27(c) 1,347,253 —
FEl—HEEaEHIE Amount due from a subcontractor — 101,518
At Others 450,983 560,928
4,599,397 2,613,009

27(a) B ER

27(a) Loan receivables

ERERTEAEE 2 HEA
AERTEETREMEfER
HEELBERG ZHIE - Ib5E
ERERSEER AR —
FAEERWFEH32%
E6.15%(2016%F: 3.92% =
6.15% )MV EFK -

ARAEERMLZFETHR
BEBRT _EARZHEK
B W EEREEERZDA
EBEEEAHEEERT -

27(b) BB IR E

BEHERERELAGBEAARK
900,000,000 JC AL 5 = 77 fE U
FIE REEARETFENEA
5.66% - TEHIR R EHRAR T =
BARNER, -

Loan receivables represent the advances made by wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company to certain raw materials
suppliers of the Group for their operating use. The loan
receivables are unsecured, repayable within 12 months from
the date of the reporting period and bear interest ranging
from 3.92% to 6.15% (20716 from 3.92% to 6.15%) per
annum.

The directors expected the amounts will be realised in the
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting
period approximates their corresponding carrying amount.

27(b) Debt Investment

Debt investment represents receivable from an independent
third party company with an aggregate principal amount
RMB900,000,000, which is unsecured, carries a fixed
interest rate of 5.66% per annum and is expected to be
realised in the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.
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27. ANERRHEMERRE) 27. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
27(c) FEUR AT B A T 28 27(c) Amount due from former subsidiaries
HaEAKENKAIHBAT - The balance represents the advances made to four former
A HEE EMESH TS subsidiaries namely CDTJ, MKKB, NCTJ and JMTJ as
TBRRIMTER(R T XK 42 defined in note 42 below. At the end of the reporting
TE)VHZB NEER . L period, the amounts due are unsecured, bearing interest
U 2R A R AR R N T ranging from 3.91% to 4.70% per annum, out of which
AR AR 1A M=
3.91% FA4.70% FE  Hd AR RMB1,ZOQ,F)00,000 are repayable within four months and
y N the remaining amount of RMB147,253,000 are repayable
#:1,200,000,000 7T Z 7RI AT o
e y within one year.
BAANESRE MHRTZARE
147,253,000 THRERBN —FR(E
E o
RERR  EFXDRSERBABEZ The directors assessed the collectability of loan receivables, debt
BREHE BRZEEBRARERE investment and amount due from former subsidiaries at the end
FRg - UFHERER  BBRER of the reporting period individually with reference to the debtors’
FEURTH B A R ZIER) AT YR [l 1 - K15 past collection history, current creditworthiness and subsequent
EMENTEHER  RETAEKER settlement record. No receivables were determined to be impaired
WHETAEERME EERA BAY as a result of the assessment for both years. In the opinion of
S 78 o 77 U [B) 27 2 i M 208 05 T S R S the directors, there was no indication of deterioration in the
% . R E B K S A ER B Y collectability of the receivables and thus no provision had been
B8 - made for non-repayment of the amount dues.
28. HEeRZERHEEIER 28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2017 2016
AR FT ABWEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#&E3l)
(Restated)
RITEEB NI S Bank balances and cash 10,226,577 10,189,460
EIRRITIF R Pledged bank deposits 58,312 42,352
REERESRERIIT As stated in the consolidated
statement of cash flows 10,284,889 10,231,812
WITERE FHEM - EaEMiAs The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
BT RE DA (A ERTE trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance
HEZHEITIREZIERSD - bills, granted to the Group by banks.
BT ERA R
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28. BARZEBLIER(£E) 28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS(Continued)
HEEERIKRSBEHIUTY EES The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following
B : currencies:

2017 2016
AR¥FT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 E )
(Restated)
AR RMB 9,578,395 8,933,103
ESI us$ 590,781 1,238,263
Er T EUR 4,264 4,631
e NTD 41,097 44,246
Efh Others 70,352 11,569
10,284,889 10,231,812
BEAEEHZIINERK MIEERR Details of the Group's foreign currency risk and credit risk
B4R A BTSRRI s 44 56l - discussion are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements.
29. BITRA 29. ISSUED CAPITAL
2017 2016
RER AER
Equivalent to Equivalent o
BUEE £ AREFI k%8 i AKEFT
No. of shares Uss o0 RMBD00  No. of shares Us§000 AIBO00
EE Authorised:
BR0.005FT Ordinary shares of US§0.005 each
LEER 7,000,000,000 35,000 7,000,000,000 35,000
BETRAR - Issuedt and fully paic:
RET] At the beginning of the year 5,604,501,360 803 234,767 5,602,871,360 28,014 84710
REERETE Shares issued under share option scheme
Ay 8,728,000 4 86 1630000 9 57
REER At the end of the reporting period 5,613,229,360 28,067 235,053 5,604,501,360 28013 234767

AR E R - 8,728,000 B IR & 1T
1# LA 22 B8 7K A 7] 8,728,000 & i A%
- BRERARYKE67,387,000
7T+ Heh AR 286,000 STEF A B 2
FTRRAS - mases A R 67,101,000
TLEF AR EER - B AR
21,357,000t B EFEERS
BRDEER - ZERERSHTEE
HERMNZERSEZ -

During the year, 8,728,000 options were exercised to subscribe
for 8,728,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration
of RMB67,387,000, of which RMB286,000 was credited to issued
capital and the balance of RMB67,101,000 was credited to the
share premium account. In addition, RMB21,357,000 has been
transferred from the share-based payment reserve to the share
premium account. These shares rank pari passu with all existing
shares in all respects.
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30. RBE 30. SHARE PREMIUM

2017 2016

AR¥FIT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(4EEZ))

(Restated)

NG At the beginning of the year 523,278 505,449
RIEEE IR 213877 Z %D  Shares issued under share option scheme 88,458 17,829
R&EER At the end of the reporting period 611,736 523,278

REMESE QRGN  ERF KAiE
BRERIRNDE  THEURREHE
A BT ERTRDEAEH
R BHERERMNEER

B aERZERRREMSES
RANEZIRTE

ERARARERREZB/AT AR
Bl Z Bt E B A IR T BGR - HEAR
RARDIKRBINEENERERER
KRB 2B

EEEERARAT
194 TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.
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31. & 31. RESERVES
BOHHR
ERRARE
Transactons REER  NEER
RABERE EREEEE  wihnon- JBEERE  ERE GRE Bk
Copitdl ~ Remeasu-  contoling  Exchange  Ivestment~ Poperty k& Sharebased  FEEH
redemption ement inferests  translation  revaluation  revaluation General  payment  Retained e
resenve resenve resenve resenve resenve resenve resenve resenve profis Total

ANEETL AREFL ARETT AREFT AREFL ARETT AREFT AREFL ARETT AREFR
AMBO00  AMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBOGO  RMBOMO
(g7)  (485) (#&5) (mE5))  (gER))  (@E) (@) (BEA)  (MER)  (HE3)
(Restated) ~ (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)

R20165151A At 1 January 2016 400 (12553)  1,017412 109,169 72,382 9869 3340835 38254 13164803 17,971,880
REFT Profitfor the year - - - - - - - — 1161699 1,161,699
A2E(EE S Other comprehensive (loss) income
REBHERZERE Remeasurement of defined
bengfits obligations - 83957 - - - - - - - 83,957
ENZE Exchange difference on consolidation - - - (564848) - - - - - (564,848)
AERELHEELLEZED  Fairvalue changes in avallablefor-
sale finandial assets - - - - 57,458 - - - - 57458
RERHETHNE Reclassifcation adjustment relating
SREEL o available-forsale financial
EREER assets disposed of during the year - - - - (55 - - - - (554
A2 ECRE(ER) Total other comprehensive
WEEE (Ioss) income - 83,957 - (564,848) 11,910 - — - - (468,981)

RERRH(BR UEEE Total comprehensive

(loss) income for the year - 83,957 - (564849) 11,910 - - = 1161699 692,718
BALARRZRS Transactions with owners
of the Company:
REEHT Contributions and ditrbution
BRLER A Fquity sttled share-based transactions - - - - - - - 55,157 - 55,157
REERE HE TR Shares issued under share option scheme - - - - - - - 4220 - 420
BhRigxi Share option lapsed - - - - - - - (3387) 3387 -
BIREREE 01 ERGRE 2015 final dividend approved and paid - - - - - - - — (806485 (806,485)
ERERTER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - 30433 - (3043 -

230433 47550 (1033531 (795549)

AEEED Changes i ownership interests
ESYYSEHENNELT  Changes inownership inerest n
EREED subsidiares without change in control - - (4355 - - - - - - (4355
BALARFRHAE Total transactions with owners

of the Company - — (43555 - - - 230433 47550 (1,033531)  (1,299,103)
R2016512831A At 31 December 2016 400 (#1575 473857 (455,679) 84,292 9869 3571208 430092 13292971 17365495

RENEIZAR
2017 Annual Report £ 195



HFABTSIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

31. ®REE) 31. RESERVES (Continued)
EHURR
RERARR
Transactions REER  hEEH
REGEGRE ERERE  withoo HEERR E&E ERE EhEak
Capitl ~ Remeasur-  controlling  Exchange Investment  Propety  —REE Sharebased  RBEA
redemption ement  interests  translation revaluation  revaluation General  payment  Retained 45
feserve  fesene resenve lesee  resene resenve  fesee  resene profits Total

ARETR  ARBFL  ARETR  ARBFZ  ARETR  ARBFZ  ARETL  ARBFT  ARETL ABBZ
RMBY00D  RMBYU0O  RMBU0O  RMBUO  RMBUO  RMBUO  RMBURO  RMBU®O  RMBORO  RMBUM

ROTEIIAEEN) Aty 200 Restte) WM M USEY) WM 9 M B0 B 1355
KERAT Proft for the year - - - - - - - — 181007 18190
At2ERE(ER) Other comprehensive income (loss)
RERHEF BRHE Remeasurement of defined
benefts obligations - 41,664 - - - - - - - 41,664
EXEE Exchange diference on consoldation - - - 2880 - - - - - 2380
THEESHERLAEZEE  Fainvalue changes in avalable-for
sale financia assets = = = = 95,3% = = = = 95,39
RERHETHLE Redasficaton adjustment relting
EHEEZ to avalable-forsae financial
Eny assets disposed of during the year - - - - (21,080) - - - - (21,080)
Ef2EYE4E Total other comprehensive income - 1,664 -0 74316 - - - - 39780
KEELANELE Total comprehensive
income for the year = 41,664 = 283,800 74316 = = = 18190 2218857
ERDARRLRS Transactions with owners of the Company:
REESE Contributons and ditrbution
EREERRTNE Equitysetled share-based transactons - - - - - - - 14234 - w234
RERREERT RN Shes ssed Under share opton scheme - - - - - - - (21.357) - (1.350)
EfExH Share option apsed - - - - - - - (24852 18 -
mIEHE Put options writen to
RitmAGE a non-controling shareolder - - (413510 - - - - - - (13510
RghEsES Written back of financial liabilies
DEHERTE upon cancellation of put options
MHHEENLRER wiitlen to a non-controling shareholder - - 413510 - - - - - - 413550
BIERER 0165758 RE 2016 finaldividend approved and paid - - - - - - - - (0849  (580,849)

EROREEH Tranfer from retaned profis - - - - =

588,259 - (88259 =

= = = = = = 588,259 (1979) (1144256 (557.972)

FEEES Changes in onnersh interests
EEYNEEE Change n ownership interest
HHEAT in subsidiaries without change
EEEY incontrol - = (1461,090) - - - - - = (14610%)
ERLNARRRAEE Total transactions with owners
of the Company = - (1461,000) = = = 588,259 (1,975) (1144250 (2,01,062)
R0TENENA At 31 December 2017 400 89 (%87233)  (171879) 158,608 9869 4159527 8117 1397792 17565290
HEmzm(BHE)WESsEXEE T No income tax effect arose from each component of other
2016 F K 2017 F ¥R BEFERE comprehensive (loss) income in 2016 and 2017.
2 .

REEZERERA R
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31.

REE)

Bt e f#

BhBECFEDIREREREZA
EEABE B LRFHEARRRD 2

KM RL ©

EfhERE

EfEFEDRES BB RF
RERMBEZEMRE  FBIR
KRB M IEHRERMEE ()

ROBRRESZRZHE

HOPRREEXZIREEDRES
AHERBBEAEBHNE QR NE
S E NGB REEGMRT - &
IBINRRERE M5 KR EE 3(b) ©

R B 8 A2017F6H308 &
2017 F 11 A298 M BR B 1 a8 &
Wrha(mB BEERE]D  —
HREAMERRIER 2 IEER R E
([3 7 DRARAGETREBEZE
FEARRINERZALEEMESR
214,718 B B 2517 2 R A& 81 R 12 A%
B (T&ZARER]) - MAREINE
ZABEREEEAFEZ A AT EK
KAFIBEZIFER  BEEZEH
BEMITEERRE THEENITES
PR 9 M IE HARE 17 2 N 2 IR SR 7T ©
At - AR HEERRL A’
LR AfEARMA4135120,0007T
MEME G A#EZ - 12017
F128  RRBRE EXWiE20#
—PHAZITERELRE  mMAS
B 5 5 R A R @I R B R AR AR
B A52.51% EAET72.91% - &
It - BB BB BN S 3 EUH M AR B &
R EE AR 4,135,120,000 JT b 1%
FREH o

SNEBRE B

SNEE R B 2 RN BRI TR IR
ARREBRBINERE 2 GFTER -
FHIBEIIRRER A IS HMKRMEE3(n) °

31.

RESERVES (Continued)

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.

Remeasurement reserve

Remeasurement reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as set out in
note 3(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary which do not result in a loss of control as set out in
note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with an option agreement and a supplementary
agreement dated 30 June 2017 and 29 November 2017
(collectively the “Option Agreements”), a non-controlling
shareholder of TAB (the “Party”) granted to the Company a call
option to require the Party to sell 214,718 issued shares of TAB (the
“Party-Held Shares”) to the Company and the Company granted
to the Party a put option to require the Company to purchase
from the Party the Party-Held Shares at a fixed exercise price
within certain specified exercisable periods in accordance with the
terms of the Option Agreements. Accordingly, a financial liability
under put option of RMB4,135,120,000 was recognised at the
grant date with the corresponding debited to equity. In December
2017, the Company exercised the call option as further detailed
in note 20 above and the effective equity interest in TAB held
by the Group increased from 52.51% to 72.91%. Therefore, a
written back of financial liability of RMB4,135,120,000 was made
immediately upon cancellation of put option written to the Party.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency translation as set out in note 3(n) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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31.

32.

REGE)

REEMGERE

REEHERBIRESTESR
AL ENEREEAAEE
MR H B RN G M E#REK
BIEE3(k) ©

MEELERE

ZOERERERBOEIZER TR
BEHYWERLHWHEONEEZEGLR
BB WREEGHOME - ¥
BN HRE BRNRA TR E
3(d) R IK ©

— KA

RETFEBERG - FEKERA
AR —FENPREBRRE N (RR
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31.

32.

RESERVES (Continued)

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
changes of fair value in available-for-sale financial assets as set out
in note 3(k) to the consolidated financial statements.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve was set up to deal with the
surplus or deficit arising from the revaluation of properties and
prepaid lease payment in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for property, plant and equipment as set out in note 3(d)
to the consolidated financial statements.

General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve an
amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation
(as reported in the respective statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries, the
subsidiary may not be required to make any further appropriation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant
date of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3(u) to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 20 March 2008. The Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants (as defined
below) had or may have made to the Group.



FAETSIRERMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

32. UREREERBZNZRE(E) 32. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
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(Continued)

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option to:-

(i)  any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and under any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue at the time the Scheme
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 20 March
2008). At the end of reporting period, the total number of shares
in respect of which options had been granted to its employees
and directors was 143,726,500 (2016: 132,306,500), representing
2.57% (2016: 2.36 %) of the shares of the Company in issue at the
time the Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised
and outstanding options) to an individual in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue
as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of
this 1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

REDBEIZAR

2017 Annual Report £ 199



AN
:éﬁ/T\I:l

B R FRMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

32. UREREERBIZNZRE(E) 32. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)
TEERESEENEERT  M1T The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board of
FEEEHENLDRORDEBRER T Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
HREESSFT&E W& (i) IRIDE price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the
BN T HAIS A% A REBERT AT average closing price of the shares for the five business days
B U THE R Gi)RMDEEES immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
2EEEE - value of the Company's shares.
EREAZNTTEHAEST 2R The period during which an option may be exercised will be
FOMBEREZITEHTIZAE T determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that no
%Z10F BREBRIEFHSE option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
B A EEIEEE T ENKRE granted. The options will be vested either after five years from the
HBEVEGREB SEREEEET date of grant or immediate upon attainment of the retirement
JEH-WEREREE BB age as specified in the Scheme. A nominal consideration of HK$1
T B —HEIRERETEEREENL is paid by each option holder for each lot of share option granted.
BARDN T — IR BIRHFET] o Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.
EETAARILRERBATIZEE Details of share options granted by the Company to the employees
DEEZEREFBLENR2017F R and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to the
2016 F 12 A3MBHEEARZEE M Scheme and the share options outstanding as at 31 December
T 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
il
REHE
Number of RITENBERESR
EFHH share options Number of share THEE THEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price  Exercisable period
2017 2016 HK$

200843 H20H 11,760,000 2,300,000 4,564,000 9.28 2013%3A21HZ
20 March 2008 201843 H20H

21 March 2013 to

20 March 2018
200954 H22H 26,688,000 6,961,000 12,700,000 9.38 2014%4A23HZ
22 April 2009 201994 H22H

23 April 2014 to

22 April 2019
201054 A1H 15,044,000 10,003,000 11,851,000 18.57 201554A1HZE
1 April 2010 202043 H31H

1 April 2015 to

31 March 2020

BT ERA =
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32.

DESEEROXGZXE (E)

BEEFZEREFBRN2017F R
2016 12 A3MBEFEERZE &M

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

(Continued)

Details of share options granted by the Company to the employees

and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to the

T (&) Scheme and the share options outstanding as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 are as follows: (Continued)
il
REHE
Number of RITENEREEE
El=p share options Number of share I1EE THEE
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price  Exercisable period
2017 2016 HK$

2011 F4 4128 17,702,000 12,210,000 14,958,000 19.96 2016F4°128=
12 April 2011 20214 H118

12 April 2016 to

11 April 2021
2012F 4 A26H 9,700,000 7,456,000 8,898,000 20.54 2017F4H268 %
26 April 2012 2022F4H25H

26 April 2017 to

25 April 2022
20139 5H27H 11,492,000 10,100,000 10,256,000 20.16 2018F5H27H=
27 May 2013 2023F5H26H

27 May 2018 to

26 May 2023
2014544171 12,718,500 11,342,000 11,744,000 22.38 2019%F4H17RZE
17 April 2014 20244 H16H

17 April 2019 to

16 April 2024
20156 A5H 17,054,000 15,820,000 16,434,000 16.22 202056 H5HZE
5 June 2015 202556 H4H

5 June 2020 to

4 June 2025
201647 H4H 10,148,000 9,423,000 10,148,000 754 2021%7H4RZE
4 July 2016 2026F7H3H

4 July 2021 to

3 July 2026
2017F4H218 11,420,000 11,270,000 — 10.20 2022F4R21H=
21 April 2017 20274 H20H

21 April 2022 to

20 April 2027
as 143,726,500 96,885,000 101,553,000
Total
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32. LESHEERBIGZRE(E) 32.

R R AT 50 2 8 A B L A P 19 77

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)

Movements in the number of options outstanding and their

BB E&nT : weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
2017 2016
ntEFEH g
TEE ITEME
Weighted Weighted
average HEREHA average MEIRIEZE
exercise Number of exercise ~ Number of
price options price options
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
REH] At the beginning of year 16.50 101,553 17.36 94,351
RERITEE Exercised during the year 9.20 (8,728) 9.36 (1,630)
R AE I Forfeited during the year 17.88 (1,322) 17.64 (806)
RERKK Lapsed during the year 19.67 (6,038) 19.34 (510)
RE AR Granted during the year 10.20 11,420 7.54 10,148
REEHR At the end of the
reporting period 16.20 96,885 16.50 101,553

RITER - FRITENBRES M
B RE B 13.658 (2016 F -
9538 )  EEBMA - BRFA
16 1 /9 B8 AR B AR 20 & 10,111,000
(2016 F : 7,850,000) »

2017F 128318 kT EE
RENMETAHBRTELOHA5.50
F(2016F 562F)  WEHER -
A 17 {50 B A% 4 /9 AR B2 54,037,000
(2016 % : 58,686,000) - K # &
H A 77(E 858 AR BE A I 4 F 15 77
& 18 517.66& 7L (2016 4F : 16.54
JBIL) °

REEZERERA R
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The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share
options exercised during the year was HK$13.65 (2076: HK$9.53).
The number of share options vested during the reporting period
was 10,111,000 (2016: 7,850,000).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2017 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 5.50 years (2076: 5.62
years). At the end of the reporting period, the number of
exercisable options was 54,037,000 (2076. 58,686,000) with
weighted average exercise price of HK$17.66 (2016: HK$16.54).
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32.

DESEEROXGZXE (E)
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32.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted is measured at the
date of grant, using the binomial option pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions of the share-based
arrangement. The fair value calculated is inherently subjective and
uncertain due to the assumptions made and the limitations of the

T TEEREALEEFERZ model used. The inputs into the model are as follows:
BRI :
B¥H B¥H
ZRAE ZWHE
Bk B gk Er TEER SEBRER AHREXR
Fairvalue  Shareprice =~ &R/ /#7% ZRE  FEHRE BHTEH  Expected
£FBH atgrantdate atgrantdate Exercise price  Risk-free  Expected  Expected  dividend
Grant date HK$/share HK$/share HK$/share interestrate  volatility life yield
200843 A20H 374 8.55 9.28 4.37% 40% 106 2.0%
20 March 2008 10 years
2009F4H22H 3.34 9.37 9.38 2.51% 36% 106 2.0%
22 April 2009 10 years
2010F4H18 7.24 18.42 18.57 4.10% 33% 104 2.0%
1 April 2010 10 years
2011647128 761 19.96 19.96 4.30% 31% 106 2.0%
12 April 2011 10 years
20124 A26H 7.75 20.54 20.54 4.21% 34% 104 2.0%
26 April 2012 10 years
2013F5H278 717 20.05 20.16 4.12% 26% 1046 1.5%
27 May 2013 10 years
20145 4R178 8.30 22.35 2238 4.93% 29% 104 2.0%
17 April 2014 10 years
20156 A5H 4.90 15.92 16.22 4.00% 25% 104 2.0%
5 June 2015 10 years
201657748 2.47 7.54 7.54 3.52% 30% 105 2.5%
4 July 2016 10 years
2017F4A216 328 10.20 10.20 3.46% 28% 104 2.3%
21 April 2017 10 years

HFHREESEBE - FHREARQF
Befn W E B A K IR - sTEBR
BARERERZEHRREIE
EREHEZMHE -

The expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company'’s share price over the last one year of
share option granted. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate.
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33. BAAREBEIEREEEREERERE 33. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

NEmas PROFIT OR LOSS
2017 2016
Wi AREFT | ARKFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(45 E2)
(Restated)
cRAE-EN Financial liabilities - Contingent
RERE consideration payable 41 (5,258) —
EREE (B8F) - Financial asset (liabilities) -
FEERETIAN Derivatives not designated as
$THETH hedging instruments 33(a)
M ZE 1 HY Interest rate swap (“IRS") 1,545 466
R X EHEF| %42 B Cross currency interest rate swaps (“CCS") (38,993) (153,116)
(37,448) (152,650)
(42,706) (152,650)
W WO BERIERE
BEHH Less: Amount classified as non-current portion 5,258 152,650
mENER R Current portion (37,448) —
33(a) FEEERHHIAMNITETIA 33(a) Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
m & E H R K E ECCS The notional principal amount of the outstanding CCS and
MIRSH) R @M < % 5 5l IRS at the end of the reporting period was US$160,803,000
#/160,803,000% st M and US$80,000,000 respectively. The maturities of the
80,000,000 7L » STHET AR derivatives are expiring within one year at the end of the
FEHIREEE B RI1FEA - reporting period. The objective of these derivatives entered
REEF T EETETAME into by the Group is to mitigate the foreign exchange
R A RNFETHARE and interest rate exposure arising from the RMB Notes
ZR(AWE34FTER)EED (as defined in note 34) issued by the Company but do
SNEFNF R @ B O - (B not qualify for hedge accounting and their corresponding
AEHRTEMNTS - MHARE changes in fair values have been recognised in profit or loss.
MAREBEEEEERETRE During the year, gain on change in fair value of CCS and IRS
R AFEARBRBRBEAAR arrangements in an aggregate amount of RMB125,917,000
#5125,917,0007C(2016 % - (2016 loss of RMB64,614,000) was credited/charged to
A R #64,614,000T .2 #8 %) profit or loss.

Eﬁccsfumsﬁﬁts’]ﬁmﬁ@
FEZE T A RRIBE -

ARFtERAnBEIEES The valuation techniques and significant inputs used in the
MEEMNHERMMEZGA measurement of the financial liabilities at fair value through
HRRER A BSARRMIFE 45 © profit or loss are set out in note 45 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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34. BERRE 34. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
2017 2016
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#c=E51)
(Restated)
RITEN - Bank loans:
1R Secured 732,679 635,000
A Unsecured 12,457,870 9,739,388
13,190,549 10,374,388
EARRR Unsecured notes 1,193,724 5,669,548
14,384,273 16,043,936
BEREE The maturity of the interest-bearing
e EE borrowings is as follows:
195N Within one year 7,775,320 9,163,746
F2F In the second year 3,506,766 2,454,080
FEIFRESHF In the third to fifth years, inclusive 2,635,937 3,983,876
(BIEERE2F)
AFUE Over five years 466,250 442,234
14,384,273 16,043,936
WoEARSEBESN Portion classified as current liabilities (7,775,320) (9,163,746)
JEREE D Non-current portion 6,608,953 6,880,190
RIBEE W HTE] R Analysis of the amount due based on scheduled
BEfZ ZIHEA DT payment dates set out in the loan agreements
(W 2B IR E K (ignoring the effect of any repayment on
BB EBIERN T E demand clause) is as follow:
1FER Within one year 6,773,720 8,469,196
FE2F In the second year 4,508,366 2,454,079
FIFEFSF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BHEERE2F) 2,635,937 4,678,429
AFUE Over five years 466,250 442,232
14,384,273 16,043,936
BT
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34.

BREE(E)

BEBEEEH ARKA4,178,790,0007T
(2016 %F : A & #1,379,272,0007T )
BE—GKEEKRLETEEAER
ERBEMBAXIN T ZEAB
MEWBERT  ERKREERE - &
EESUITEREEASITHELRE
MEXEE HHEBENTEREAR
MENAE o

nHEF B F RN K E3T71%(2016
F:305%)

BEBERBHERAIR -

FITHEIRER RN EEREERE
HOEE SN ERERAE T AR AR (E
T & D Bl A4 A R ®1,106,000,000
7T A R#657,0030007T & A R
1,593,667,000 75(2016 : 7 RIAARE
1,060,000,0007T * A IR # 672,387,000
TCR AR 1,784,209,0007T) © B B
HIRER P IER TRERER R AR
BT 2 IR EIRAARAR o R AT IRIR
TERBEZERNEETRE 2 X XIERE
PRz -
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34.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

Interest-bearing borrowings of RMB4,178,790,000 (2076.
RMB1,379,272,000), with a clause in their terms that gives the
lender an overriding right to demand repayment without notice
or with notice period of less than 12 months at its sole discretion,
are classified as current liabilities even though the directors do
not expect that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand
repayment.

The weighted average effective interest rate on the interest-
bearing borrowings is 3.71% (2076 3.05%) per annum.

Interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost.

The Group's secured bank loans are pledged by certain investment
properties, property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
with net carrying amount of approximately RMB1,106,000,000,
RMB657,003,000 and RMB1,593,667,000 (2076: RMB1,060,000,000,
RMB672,387,000 and RMB1,784,209,000 respectively) respectively.
The unsecured bank loans are not pledged and certain of the
unsecured bank loans are covered by several cross guarantee
arrangements amongst the Group's entities.
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3. EEBE(E) 34. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

20158 A6 H & 1 A # 17
1,000,000,000 7Tt A R ¥ 2 K 1R 2
BIARBZEE®R])  -REER - =
B2 EREEARARI98,244,000
TL(2016 % - A K #995,313,000
o) WBRER—FN2016F : &
ZF)ZHBEEN ARBER
EETFEFEBA4375%EFE
20158 H6 R E - (N EBH
ABE2016F8 6 HRMEFRNS A
68 ' WH2018F 8 A6 HEIH -

ARBEERIFTINEESFZZMBR
RNAELET - AREEBREZE2017F
1AM BREMSRENA R EE
A N R 999,330,000 7t(2076 4 -
A B #991,050,000C) - NRHEZE
BARATMERFZAEELMIRE
EAREERRGREETZERE
AL o

ARARR2012F6 2088172 E
BIETEB DRI MBESLRZS
FrERAR LT RWESRA - x
TEECIHE  AFEREELRS
AR 3,383,600,000 7T °

TREBNETERL Y — L
RITEEERAKEERE TG
RS T o INRANEEE R R
EBRNRER AR ERFERE

RERX Y TRASENEEES
BTEERLY - HBARTEERIE
EMER - ARENRDERRE
B - TFBTHING AP HR
KM 44 REEBMR REE
FEBSREERENRLY (2016
FoE)

On 6 August 2015, the Company issued unsecured notes with
an aggregate principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000 (the “RMB
Notes"”). The carrying amount of the RMB Notes at the end of
reporting period is RMB998,244,000 (2016: RMB995,313,000)
and is included in the interest-bearing borrowings with maturity
within one year (2016: in the second year). The RMB Notes bear
interest from 6 August 2015 at the rate of 4.375% per annum,
payable annually in arrear on 6 August in each year, commencing
on 6 August 2016 and will mature on 6 August 2018.

The RMB Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. The fair value of the RMB Notes as at 31
December 2017, based on the quoted market price, was
RMB999,330,000 (2076: RMB 991,050,000) respectively. The
RMB Notes are the unsecured obligations of the Company and
they rank at least equally with other present and future unsecured
and unsubordinated obligations.

The notes issued by the Company on 20 June 2012 (the “"US$
Notes”) was listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited. During the reporting period, the US$ Notes were matured
and the principal amount of RMB3,383,600,000 were fully repaid.

Some of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain of the ratios of consolidated financial
position, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants
and the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does
not consider it probable that the relevant banks will exercise
its discretion to demand for repayment so long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group's financial management of liquidity risk are set out in note
44 to the consolidated financial statements. Throughout the
reporting period, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (2076: None).
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34, BEEEE(E) 34. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)
AEBZBERE S 2 ATERER An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group's total
B2AWIRET - borrowings by type are as follows:

2017 2016
AR%FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(45 E2)
(Restated)
(& E A & At fixed rates 1,543,724 5,789,548
F BRI R At floating rates 12,840,549 10,254,388
14,384,273 16,043,936
BEBEUTIE®SIE The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies:
2017 2016
ARH¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#5E%1)
(Restated)
AR RMB 4,479,953 4,435,940
e us$ 9,904,320 11,607,996
14,384,273 16,043,936
B 78 & B HNE R f K B 2 & B f Details of the Group's foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
FEE - NEEVBmERMT44 discussion are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
ﬁ it o statements.

35. BEIRAEMR 35. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
REMNEE Defined contribution plans
ZKE EAMERE  FELEEE The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
BE2N5RB+PE EERAES by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC, Hong
75 BURT 48 A ) ROE G E o & Kong and Taiwan for its PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees
IAEBZTARLESHEZES respectively, whereby the Group is required to make monthly
HFEGE ETAEOIELRHR - K contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant
SEBRIMN LT AR T portion of the payroll of these employees to the pension scheme
Z\E,\ﬁﬁqj B - HELKAEBTL to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the

RIKE R EBZEH - payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the
PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees other than the monthly
contributions described above.
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208 TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



FAETSIRERMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

35.

BIRAERE)

35. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

RERMEE

REBNAMBRERBRERTE
BAETEl - REBIRERFEM
EIEEWAEREFEEND 2
AR ot K 5 8 = LAE B AR 75 4 5
REiE6EANTEHERER - K
EEHATREMFENEAERHSE
UREERMEREE RN AES QA
([EHBEBEEVWDFTE - BB
HilhRHENEEERNN 20175
12 A 31 BLATERT B AL TR A VA #E
77 °
REBHEATRMNGTEIMEELEZ

BEEW T ALRE BB R K 2 FKIE
LEBEZZESHNOT

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit plan for its Taiwan employees.
The Group has not maintained any plan asset and bears the full
cost of all the plan benefits. The benefits are calculated based
on the length of service and average monthly salary for the final
six months of employment. The Group's obligation in respect of
the defined benefit plan is calculated by an independent actuary,
Messrs. Willis Towers Watson, Taiwan Branch (“Willis Towers
Watson”). The latest actuarial valuation was performed by Willis
Towers Watson as at 31 December 2017 using the projected unit
credit method.

The amounts included in the consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the obligation of the Group in respect of its
defined benefit plan and their movements in the present value of
defined benefit obligations are as follows:

2017 2016
AR¥TFTT AEHTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4= &%)
(Restated)
REH] At beginning of year 205,573 278,569
RFE R A Current service cost 6,210 22,275
NSNS N Interest expense 5,505 7,869
11,715 30,144
HHE Remeasurements:
MBREBEFABEE Actuarial gains arising from changes
BE W in financial assumptions (44,935) (41,513)
RERAEEE Actuarial gains arising from
BE W= experience adjustments (7,102) (73,379)
(52,037) (114,892)
[=ENE=R Benefit payment (53,168) —
M ERR Exchange differences (10,857) 11,752
(64,025) 11,752
REER At end of the reporting period 101,226 205,573
RENEIZER

2017 Annual Report £ 209



AN
:éﬁ/T\I:I

BT§3RRMI=E | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

35. EIRBAERERE) 35. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
RERRTE &) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
BEMENEEZRER The significant assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were:
2017 2016
% %
Prif & Discount rate 3.85 3.00
T8 B % B 78 Expected rate of salary increases 3.00 8.00
REEH SETERHEREZNA The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to reasonable
IR e B E R TR M E 2 UK possible changes for each significant actuarial assumption as at
ERUB NN the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2017 2016
RERMERL REBMEL
ol -3l idla
GETE 2 Change in REME Change in
Change in  defined benefit Changein  defined benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation
ERS Discount rate +-0.5%  -2.71%/+2.86% +-0.5%  -3.20%/+3.41%
EHEMA R Expected rate of salary increases +-05%  +3.22%/-3.08% +-05%  +3.47%/-3.30%
LUiERESMERESREER The above sensitivity analyse is prepared based on a reasonable
LA ALEEEER  MEMRB possible change in each actuarial assumption used, with other
R R o H b BB R th AT AL assumptions held constant. Other actuarial assumptions may
BiE P Bk Sy also change with the above assumptions. Such change is not
KR EDWEFA - FBEFBEAIA R accounted for in the above analyses. The projected unit credit
RASEEREEATENSEHNIE method is used to determine the present value of the defined
BEREBEY S EREKAMNBER benefit obligations and the related current service cost and where
ERA(ER) - AN ENE applicable the past service cost. The same method and the type
EEHEBSEND AREREARNE R FE of actuarial assumptions were used in preparing the sensitivity
BB E DT o analyses for the current and previous year.
BEMERERA T
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35. BIRAERE) 35. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
RERRTE &) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
AERMNEERMEFHERARZ The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
5734 (20164 : 6.73%) » is 5.73 years (2016 6.73 years).

REBLENE A2 EEBRNE Under the plan, the Taiwan employees can be entitled to
360 pris = HRIKIEAH] o retirement benefits on the attainment of a retirement age of 60.
AERAMAELZAERFFEE The Group has no funding arrangement and expects no
E AEETEINERLZHERD contribution to be paid in respect of the defined benefit plan as
TEHFEEZMHER - LARBIRAR the defined benefit plan does not maintain any plan assets. The
REF BB BB ST - expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted pension benefits is
as follows:
2017 2016
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(45 &)
(Restated)
16R Within 1 year 10,426 32,470
BRI FER2FR More than 1 year but within 2 years 5,715 10,161
HBiE2 FERSFA More than 2 years but within 5 years 44,133 64,739
HB3A 5 F Over 5 years 126,326 305,949
186,600 413,319
36. EEHE 36. DEFERRED TAXATION

AEBFELCHARERZIOT

liabilities are as follows:

The movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax

2017 2016

AR¥TTT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(#=&E%l)

(Restated)

NG At beginning of year 1,197,704 1,122,078
MEARMNED B2 Withholding tax paid on distributions of

2 TEIRR earnings by subsidiaries (625,607) (212,848)

=G Additions - business combination 9,842 —

AL WERA Charge to consolidated income statement 180,077 288,474

REER At end of the reporting period 762,016 1,197,704

RENSIZAR
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36. ELBIA(E)

36. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

REER PHEAZELCEHEBEEE Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the
EKEBEWT reporting period represent the following:
2017 2016
BE =L BE afE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
ANRMFT ARETRT | AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(#cE51) (#c=E51)
(Restated) (Restated)
IRFR IS E Accelerated depreciation allowance — (596,205) — (527,105)
RS ITE Decelerated depreciation allowance 2,052 — 2,052 —
NRAERE Fair value adjustment on:
— AR Y — Prepaid lease payments and — (72,094) — (65,211)
g - property, plant and equipment
E
B
—\mEEE — Intangible asset — (43,525) — (44,795)
— B MEME - Investment properties — (17,072) — (5,517)
BB 1B Impairment losses 81,174 — 58,440 —
REBERE Un-invoiced accrual 115,257 — 92,941 —
ZIEIRER
HEWE - 22  Unrealised profit on property, 81,353 — 91,080 —
B3 plant and equipment
RERAE
MEBARZ Undistributed earnings of — (307,178) — (801,951)
R ELFE subsidiaries
T 18 Tax losses 27,782 — 27,782 —
Ht Others 392 (33,952) 3,996 (29,416)
EAEBIHEE Deferred tax assets (liabilities) 308,010 (1,070,026) 276,291 (1,473,995)
(8fE)

RIBCERMBEE  INEREER
MRPEMIINEREDEFESY
BB ZBIEBR10% 8 B R ik 78 1R
Tio 3Z# FEMN2008F1 A1 HEAE
e @ AR 2007F 12 A31H % 1A
2Fr Al D EADE o WP B BT R
ZHNE 1 & 2 TR B SR 3 R IR
BN ZEE - pIERABERE -

REEZERERA R
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Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
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36.

ELEBR ()

NEBERAHREEHE10% - KEER
BE R BB A B 5 2007 F 18 BREY
I 8 BB AT A] R SR AR A9 F AT it 5 R
FERN 2T 252 50% matiRiE 6
MELEHBEE EHAEESS
Bl B B~ &) BT F 82 50% 2 2007
& BRE 2 FFE 2 Rt @ B TE E
T 7] R 2R R s T B 2 0% F)E
(TTFMBDBOERSE
G EREZREIINAT - AAEBR 2
BB ARMBEZHE A ARNE
ENARITNHRSITEIRTIIE ©

ZERBRNB AR ZH T FN BN
TR B TER A AR 1,501,528,000
TL(20164F = A K& #1,370,694,000
L) BEERBBABIEZEHRTF
FEERESHENBRARIZEESR
& WA A R RAOTEDE -
1P 3 fB 4 R MBI 4 o

REEHRN AEBE AR
111,128,000 7T(2016 4 : A K #
111,128,000 7T ) i T4 EHEER RIE
ERIEEE - MEE BN BIERT
HZEBEEELERTARAFRZ
sk - REZER AHEREL

36. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

For the Group's PRC subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the
applicable rate is 10%. Deferred tax liability is provided on 50% of
aggregate amount of post-2007 net earnings of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries that are expected to be distributed in the foreseeable
future. The remaining 50% aggregate amount of post-2007 net
earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries that are not expected
to be distributed in the foreseeable future (the “Remaining Net
Earnings”) would be subject to additional taxation when they are
distributed. Undistributed earnings of the Group’s PRC associates
and joint ventures are not subject to withholding tax as these
companies are held by a PRC subsidiary.

The estimated withholding tax effects on the distribution of the
Remaining Net Earnings were approximately RMB1,501,528,000
(2016: RMB1,370,694,000). In the opinion of the directors, the
Remaining Net Earnings, at the present time, are required for
financing the continuing operations of these entities and no
distribution to foreign investors would be made in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, no provisions for additional deferred taxation
have been made.

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of RMB111,128,000
(2016: RMB111,128,000) were recognised as at the end of
reporting period. The tax losses can be carried forward for five
years from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting against
future taxable income. The expiry years of tax losses with no
deferred tax assets recognised at the end of the reporting date are

MIBEE BB EEIHRFHOAT as follows:

2017 2016

BREERIHR ARE T ARETT
Tax loss expiring in: RMB’000 RMB’000
(A EZ))
(Restated)

2017 — 344,770
2018 478,504 552,458
2019 911,136 957,771
2020 666,887 958,518
2021 589,923 978,400
2022 693,845 —
3,340,295 3,791,917
FREDEIZER
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37. ERERR

37. TRADE PAYABLES

2017 2016
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#c=E51)
(Restated)
P BRX Trade payables
B=5 To third parties 5,836,747 5,702,765
BEAEEA T To related parties
—ARRNBZEER — A group of companies jointly controlled
HiRE by the Company's directors and
< —HRFA their dependents 1,066,154 672,917
—ARRBIZES — Companies jointly controlled by
HEES 2 AT the Company’s directors 201,710 216,009
ER-WNE] To joint ventures 14,812 3,664
7,119,423 6,595,355

ENE=)  EBBALRAKA
AZENERRASERM - B K&K

B30FEQQKERE -

ERNEFRNEEARERBRHEZ

to 90 days.

The trade payables to third parties, related parties and joint
ventures are unsecured, interest-free and with credit period of 30

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at

BRSO T the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2017 2016
ARETFTT AR®ETT
RMB’000 RMB000
(#BE2)
(Restated)
0-90H 0 -90 days 6,335,339 5,938,123
90 B E Over 90 days 784,084 657,232
7,119,423 6,595,355

EAEERERAT
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37. BEHRR(E) 37. TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)
JEMBRFUAT I EEETIE The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:
2017 2016
ARETFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(42 &%)
(Restated)
AR RMB 7,119,050 6,583,730
ET uss$ 254 11,539
e NTD 119 86
7,119,423 6,595,355
38. HiEMRERDKHES 38. OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED
2017 2016
AR¥TTT ARMFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#=&E%l)
(Restated)
Bl Deposits received in advance 2,171,708 2,027,762
B EERESEHR Accruals for transportation, promoting and
2 TERR advertising expenses 2,615,470 2,539,317
THERRAMKEER Accruals for administrative expenses and
TR other operating expenses 440,360 435,921
B TE REF & Salaries and welfare payables 972,444 873,629
ANE RN Payables for purchase of equipment 42,753 82,156
FET H A R IR Other tax payables 671,158 450,940
HAitb Others 503,139 288,150
7,417,032 6,697,875
RENSIZAR
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39. REXBHBHR=Z

39. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

2017 2016
AR%FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 EZ)
(Restated)
B B B g A Profit before taxation 3,392,736 2,433,516
MEER Interest expenses 454,868 496,303
B U A Interest income (270,786) (218,178)
e Depreciation 3,513,679 3,676,512
AEHESREEL Dividend income from available-for-sale
A& T HA financial assets (1,103) —
0 FH 490k (B 2 5 5 Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 106,618 117,217
B EE 2 EHE Amortisation of intangible asset 5,079 5,015
HEME - Kk Loss on disposal of property, plant and
BER AL EE equipment and prepaid lease payments
&8 15,337 32,033
Y - IR REE Impairment loss on property,
BEEE plant and equipment 224,021 118,150
BEARBEYER Change in fair value of financial
FEESEEEMNSMAERE  liabilities at fair value through
NRBEZBEFEE profit or loss, net (126,349) 67,614
HREMEEAAEEE Change in fair value of investment properties (46,223) (21,728)
BEE—KBEQT Gain on re-measurement of an associate to
RWEBZAAEE fair value at acquisition date (7.381) —
HEMB QR Z WS Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (43,725) —
HEMHEESHEE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
W= financial assets (21,080) (45,548)
FEMREE R E R Share of results of associates and
B NRIEE joint ventures (101,180) (74,145)
fEREB) & Effect on exchange rate changes (150,117) 125,907
RINARE R EE RS Recognition of equity-settled
X2 FRIE share-based payment 44,234 55,157
HFE 2R (Em) Decrease (Increase) in inventories 60,037 (525,515)
JEUS BR FX 2 1N Increase in trade receivables (329,939) (74,337)
FENFBREMBEWFIE  Decrease in prepayments and
Z other receivables 127,762 440,382
FERTARFR 235 N Increase in trade payables 747,846 1,898,100
E fth B 5RIE K Increase in other payables and
B USRS 2 50 deposits received 676,916 559,879
B P TE FRIE 218 Increase in advance payments
from customers 269,298 215,687
FHME T BAEMEIE  (Decrease)increase in present value of
2 OB A ) 18 unfunded employee benefit obligations (41,453) 30,144
REXBRBRE Cash generated from operations 8,499,095 9,312,165
B EERARA
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39, RELEHMBRE(E)

39(a) MEEBELNEBEHIR

TRADAEERABMEETH
MEEZEE  BFERE MR
THY METHELNAR
REZREFIARKRRSRE
BEASBEGZERSRERT
DEABREERHELNRER

39. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Continued)

39(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

% °
E3LET |
Non-cash changes

R20175 e B R20175
1818 Beifk FEXH ERZE  12A31H
At Amortised At
1January  Financing interest ~ Exchange 31 December
2017  cashflows  expenses realignment 2017
ARETT ANRBMTIT AREFT AREFT ARETT
RMB000 ~ RMBO00  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000

K& ()

Note (i)
EEMZE(M3734)  Unsecured notes (Note 34) 5,669,548  (4,383,600) 9,751 (101,975 1,193,724
SRITERM34) Banks loans (Note 34) 10,374,388 3,270,959 —  (454,798) 13,190,549
16,043,936  (1,112,641) 9,751 (556,773) 14,384,273

(iy SRITERAER
KB MR FRIEE R

%S HRE FOF

P IR 2 98 R

MIRERE -

18 - 8R1T 0)
ARE
£

e

TTEMK

The cash flows used in unsecured notes and bank

loans make up the net amount of proceeds from bank

borrowings, repayments of bank and other borrowings

and net movement of other short-term borrowings.

RENEIZAR
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40. EBERBALIEARS 40. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BRI ARGEREEMIBODBEE X In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
SRERTEIAN ANy AREBEA the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
BHMATETZEARIBE 1k following material related party transactions in the ordinary course
EXGTIAARNEB T BEEKRE of the Group's business.
17 °
2017 2016
Hist AR¥TFT AREFr
Note RMB000 RMB’000
(A Z3)
(Restated)
(a) BBALTZRZ (a) Related party transactions
BT AREEER ! Sales of goods to:
ERARIZEERR Companies controlled by a substantial
124l ZF R 7] shareholder of the Company 0] 146,871 135,189
i e/N Associates 110,068 128,200
EUNG| Joint ventures 276,903 294,263
BT ARBEEM ! Purchases of goods from:
RRRICEER A group of companies jointly controlled
H B RS by the Company's directors and
7 — 4N F their dependents (i) 5,062,366 2,907,648
EX-VNG Joint ventures 89,641 57,088
R IFAGEZN Promotional expenses paid to:
RHER
ERARZEERR Companies controlled by a substantial
ok e AN shareholder of the Company 0] 30,670 22,920
BT ARRBR Administrative expenses paid
WEMTHER : on behalf and received from:
SN Joint ventures 15,263 7,19
|5 A RKERE K Rental income from investment
EERME - #eE properties and property, plant and
LAk equipment:
RARIZEERE Companies controlled by a substantial
=2 % B AF shareholder of the Company 38,818 34,117
KRRIZEERERE A group of companies jointly controlled by
HEES 2 — AR the Company's directors and their
dependents 3,263 2,095
M) BE ETRBE4AE  ZEH Note (i) These related party transactions also constitute continuing
BB AT 2R S ARKERE connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
R o Rules.
BEERERAT
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40. BEREBALZERRZ(E) 40. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) BEREEAEZHE (b) Key management personnel remuneration
AEBBEBEEEAEZHE Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
(BHEFREMIEHRRMZT 1100 including amounts paid to the Company's directors, chief
WERAQRNRES  THRAEH executive officer and certain of the highest paid employees
YNZREERBE TR E as disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated financial
EXYftzZE)WET - statements, is as follows:

2017 2016
ARB¥FT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#=E )
(Restated)
E==wiokey Directors’ fees 4,265 4,228
FekEMME Salaries and other emoluments 55,793 55,600
VARG 2 1+ 2 5RIE Share-based payments 24,444 27,939
TE4T Discretionary bonuses 6,651 3,042
91,153 90,809

41. WEKHEBAF 41. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

2017F58108 A Q& k2
EMBEARBE(FEDREARA
AEEREDERERENE QA
MMBEEAE s —2RRTER D)
FIVBERZ Bt BERER
EME AU D KEINE B
LEEWINS S M HE WO BRI
MEEREELEESE  BEZE
BE BEREBREZRESEE
(TP wEed sz |) =2 52 Ak B 89 AT A9 81
MR FEEN =8 B A& 7P
BLEM25%INMNE B RN —
TR RFE o Z R 5 IFTEAER R
IR EEEERIL AR
20194 6 A 30 Ak Z AT5EAK °

On 10 May 2017, PepsiCo Investment (China) Limited (“PICL"),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the SPA with one of the shareholders (the “Vendor”) of HZPS,
an associate of the Group, pursuant to which PICL agreed to
acquire an additional 25% equity interest in HZPS from the
Vendor (the “Acquisition”). In addition, the Vendor also issued
the Authorisation Letter to PICL under which PICL shall be entitled
irrevocably all the rights and benefits of the aforesaid 25% equity
interest in HZPS currently held by the Vendor for a period up to
the completion date of the registration of the equity transfer (the
“Equity Transfer”). The registration of the Equity Transfer with
the relevant government authority is currently in the progress and
expected to be completed on or before 30 June 2019.

REDBEIZAR
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41.

WEEHE AR (&)

BBNTZEEREAEESE &
MERRITEREEMMNE 4N
MEHER25%EMES0% » MAEE
BEMMNE ST LRLREE - B
BERT BEREBEEMH2017F
9OR1 A  REBHING A4
WA E BZBEARERKRA
AEBOKBAR -

KWHEEENBRERERSREA
R # 178,000,000 7T R AUk EE B i~
TEFHER B R E AR 5,690,000
T BEBeBENIREEBEREMR
EHARBHMAMMBE ETLNE
—HoEALFNMET BB A
R2019F7 A8 2 AT B B4 E ©
FREZNIFPAESARBARYE
138,000,0007T - E&f N Mo R &
KB AR 40,000,000 7T 38 5 15 7
20194 6 A30 B 2 RI&E * Bt
2017F 12 A31BEF AE M IE
MEAE -

R2017F9 8 1HKX 201712 A
318 ERNSERENAAEBES
Bl A& AN R #5,690,000 7T & A R #
5,258,000 7T * EFt AR AR EET
EREERRRENSREENIE
mEE D o At - BARBEZEFT
EEz s AR 432,000 TE A
KREE 218 o
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41.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Through the execution of the SPA and Authorisation Letter, the
equity interest in HZPS held by TAB increased from 25% to 50%
and the Group holds more than a majority of the voting rights of
HZPS. The management concluded that the Group has control
over HZPS and this associate became a subsidiary of the Group
from the effective of the Authorisation Letter on 1 September
2017.

Total consideration of the Acquisition comprised cash
consideration of RMB178,000,000 and contingent consideration
payable estimated to be RMB5,690,000 at the acquisition date
which was determined based on a certain portion of projected
net profit of HZPS for a specified period as defined in the SPA
and is expected to be fully settled in or before July 2019. During
the year, cash consideration amounting to RMB138,000,000
was paid and the remaining portion of the cash consideration of
RMB40,000,000 is expected to be settled on or before 30 June
2019 and is therefore recorded in other non-current liabilities at
31 December 2017.

At 1 September 2017 and at 31 December 2017, the fair value
of the contingent consideration payable was RMB5,690,000 and
RMB5,258,000 respectively, which was recorded in the non-
current portion of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss. As a result, gain on change in fair value of RMB432,000 was
credited to profit or loss for the year.
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41.

WEEM B AR (&)

AT Bt S B B B E T R R A AR
EBMMEBEEMMAZAGN S
B ARMHERLBIRRERESRE

41. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

The following summarises the consideration paid and payable and

the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as well

as the amount of non-controlling interest recognised at the date

of acquisition:

AREFIT
RMB’000
RE Consideration:
ERRENRE Consideration paid in cash 138,000
JENRAE Consideration payable 40,000
JERSARE Contingent consideration payable 5,690
wEE o RE Total consideration transferred 183,690
ARBFT
RMB’000
FrUs S Y AT 8 B B E R PRI Recognised amounts of identified asset
EECERESE: acquired and liabilities assumed:
M - ARG Property, plant and equipment 102,959
TR AR E Prepaid lease payments 46,837
RITHEB MRS Bank balances and cash 237,194
JFE W AR 3K Trade receivables 40,887
TE A5 R IE I E P UK IE Prepayments and other receivables 99,971
FE Inventories 29,492
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities (9,842)
JEFER IR Trade payables (84,075)
AL Taxation (5,888)
HMERFRIERE YRS Other payables and deposit received (114,415)
A EEREAE Total identifiable net assets 343,120
DERRER Non-controlling interest (171,560)
171,560
S0k (Less)/Add:
EREENFEL S BRI E Transferred from interest previously held and
NAIER classified as an associate (78,399)
EMETEBE AT EWERS Gain on re-measurement of an associate to
A EEMRE(FEE) fair value at acquisition date (Note 9) (7,381)
DREBRBEEEERNEE (M 19) Goodwill arising from step acquisition (Note 19) 97,910
wEZE s RE Total consideration transferred 183,690
RENSIZAR
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4. WBHEAR(E) 41. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)
ARETFr
RMB’000
WERBARZRESRAEE ! Net cash flow on acquisition of the subsidiary:
BENRERE Consideration paid in cash (138,000)
R E N AU S 2 RITAEBR KRR S Bank balances and cash acquired from the subsidiary 237,194
99,194

SECEBRENRKE T ATERE
ERAE L PIEt 8 D BRRE

N

e

REBREBREHRIENMINE S 2R
BATEAESERIAKEARSE
7,381,000 2 Wz o Wamméra U
IR N EAFURA R RER

WEEREENEEANTME S
MEBAFEARRIER R ENERE
15 RIBUEFTER © T RERERR
BREVEENRARE  ALTE
REB SRR - BETERNEE
TEWMBRAEN - ARREEEH
ZWEEENAEERMES TS
0%8 °

o

UL EE B B 2 FE MR R B AN 3R IE
HtnEWHEN AR ERBEN SR
DRI A ARYEA0,887,0007T A R
99,971,000 ° R A F ¢ &E 2 TEH
#EIRE -

BEBAMHE  MNESAAEEE
Ef U %5 A R #134,292,0007T - i ¥
NEBFERNFE RN ESBXER -

WFREBREHER2017F1 818
LT A RNEEEZE2017F12H31
H IEFE AU A MR TR % A #S 9 B
A ANR#59,458,010,0007T M A R
2,290,837,0007T ° ARFIEERHE #
HPEZH T —ERBASEER
2017F1R1BEEER B ER I EE
WE e RS 2 AE -
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The Group has selected to measure the non-controlling interests
at its proportionate interest in the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the acquiree.

The Group recognised a gain on step acquisition of RMB7,381,000
as a result of measuring at fair value of its equity interest in HZPS
before the business combination. The gain was recognised in
other net income in the consolidated income statement.

The goodwill arising from the Acquisition is attributable to the
synergies expected to arise from the business combination and
future growth and profitability of HZPS. The benefits are not
recognised separately from goodwill because they do not meet
the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets. None of
the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income
tax purposes. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
acquisition would increase the market share of the Group's
beverage business.

The fair value and gross contractual amount of the trade
receivables and prepayments and other receivables at the date of
acquisition amounted to RMB40,887,000 and RMB99,971,000
respectively. No amounts were expected to be uncollectible.

Since the business combination, HZPS has contributed revenue
of RMB134,292,000 to the Group while it made no significant
contribution to the Group's profit after tax for the year.

If the business combinations effected during the year had been
taken place on 1 January 2017, the Group's revenue and profit
after tax for the year ended 31 December 2017 would have been
RMB59,458,010,000 and RMB2,290,837,000 respectively. This
proforma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017.
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42, HEHEART 42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

RERN NEEBEHE—-ZEILE = During the year, the Group entered into various sales and
FHEvZBEEHREAEENKW purchase agreements with an independent third party for the
BAA KEEZESLBRA A disposal of entire equity interests in four subsidiaries namely
(TRCEBTE E |) » AN E(E /)& & Chengdu Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. (“CDTJ"), Master Kong (Kunming)
BRAB([EMMERRE]) F‘j%]ﬁ Beverage Co., Ltd. (“MKKB"), Nanchang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd
ERERARAR(IEEER] KR ("NCTJ") and Jiangmen Tinglin Food Co., Ltd. ("JMTJ") at an
FIEEREmARAR(T F'ﬁ]ﬁiJ) aggregate consideration of approximately RMB707,553,000. All
MEIRE ARENAEARE the disposals were completed in or before early September 2017.

707,553,000 ° FTEHESFHEER
2017 F9 A¥IK 2RI B ©

AT RERB LN EEB The following summarises the consideration received and the
EERBEMNERDE carrying amount of the assets and liabilities at the date of disposal:
K#EE ERERS EEIE): IMER ek
CDT) MKKB NCT) JMTJ Total

NEBTL  AEBTT ARETT ARETLT ARETT
RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO

FUEnFEE Net assets disposed of
mE  BRREE Property, plant & equipment 807,460 339,263 419,374 170,423 1,736,520
THESHE Premium for land lease 23,932 — 48 684 83,120 155,736
RE Inventories 27,940 9,757 12,943 4,076 54,716
FWER Trade receivables 84,234 83,631 63,916 92,553 324,334
A eI E Tax recoverable - 2,648 - - 2,648
TERFIERAMEINGUE Prepayments and other receivables 17314 16,467 1,168 1,852 36,801
BRRITRER Pledged bank deposits 1328 — 5,1 19 — 6,447
ROTEBREAE Bank balance and cash 12,244 6 23,17 2,557 37,978
ENER Trade payables (145,856) (38,486) (93, 079) (30432  (307,8%3)
EHEAFEREUIESE Other payables and deposit received (605,063) (294,199) (277,075) (191,160)  (1,367,497)
RPERFA Advance payments from customers (149) 23) (53) (31) (256)
ME Taxation (5,941) — (5,127) (4,678) (15,746)
217,443 119,064 199,041 128,280 663,828

LEHBLAN Gain (Loss) on disposal of subsidiaries

Wz (B8) (22,443) 936 70,512 (5,280) 43,725

195,000 120,000 269,553 123,000 707,553

BYRE Consideration received
HeRE Cash consideration 195,000 120,000 269,553 123,000 707,553
LEMBLRRL Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries

BemAFE:
AeRE Cash consideration 195,000 120,000 269,553 123,000 707,553
BHE RS RS SEN Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (13,572) 6) (28,290) (2,557) (44,425)

BeRBLZEN 2 Netinflow of cash and cash equivalents
RAFE 181,428 119,994 241,263 120,443 663,128
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43, EXREE 43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

REMe A AR R
i EAE R ARRIRGE
R AR B R -

AEEERARBESFEMNBRERES
EReEBYNEEE)FENE
ERELERUWERARRER AEIS
RENLE)AEREER(BIERR

The Group's objectives on managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the basis
of net debt (interest-bearing borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents) as a ratio of the equity attributable to owners of the

BREBID) - MEARBEIEIREL Company. The debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the reporting
FanT period was as follows:
2017 2016
AR% T ABRBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(4€EZ))
(Restated)
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 14,384,273 16,043,936
B RekBEe Less: Cash and cash equivalents
ZEY (10,284,889) (10,231,812)
FAEE Net debt 4,099,384 5,812,124
RNA TR PELS Total equity attributable to owners of
B the Company 18,412,079 18,123,540
FREEEARL X Gearing ratio 22.26% 32.07%

AEEERBEBCEHMEREE

BB E SR MEEE RS %'ﬂ
ﬂﬁ%@#ﬂ%ﬁkﬂ%éﬁ%
B BARERE BEERAR
% BITHEBRALRERAN LI
MPEMLE  ZERMEBEENX
BE) o RRERHMEERS -

R2017F » KNE B MK 2016
FHEE - ‘éﬁﬂé’ri‘%%%m ﬁ%%ﬁ °
AEEBHRITHMEZ FLIRITE

BT B ROBRKZE -

EEEERARAT
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The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according
to changes in economic conditions for achieving its objectives
through payment of dividends, retire of existing debts, issue of
new debts and sales of lands and properties not in use. Changing
of borrowing rate in the market, future capital expenditures and
investment opportunities are taken into consideration.

During 2017, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2016, aims at minimising the net debt approximately to nil
balance.

Some of the Group's banking facilities are subject to financial
covenants requirements imposed by certain banks.
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TRERREE

AREFFENS T ARLIE
mB - FIERR - EERRERD
AemM - ARERESSHA
% EFERBRTOMRERY
% EFERNUATRAZAR
EEHEMT

SNERRR

AEBNNBAREIEZERBERK
2 TEUARBERZEE - K
£ B P T 4 19 51 B L B AR BR AR R A
HEWMBRAZREEE AN - A
HMEEEXFORNERFAX -
R RUTAESK HEEE AR
HESMEE  BRAOAEIKRLE
ERFREENERAEREBAL
PRER

ARBEHETHEBAEBTHHEA
RE1TH M 2 5MNEE B 48 B R 1K
Ble AEBZHBARAELEE
BEESENIEEEBEITINE
RBRTE - MERETERNERE
FERBEINERR - NEBARKE
METEENZEBERAEES
FIER AEBDHAERERE
B 201559 A BASK - 30 B &Y Fft
B A B7E = A& & b 1 30 R A S E
BE o Br T A EiE M X E K F
TR EEN  AEBERBETT
BRI EN AR INER R o

44,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's financial instruments expose it to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board
of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a
minimum. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in the
PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
payable on capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
interest-bearing borrowings, available-for-sale financial assets
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and related
party balances that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Company on its subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure
to foreign exchange risk arising from daily operating activities
of the subsidiaries because their main operations are conducted
in their functional currency. Considered the diverged trends of
the exchange rates between RMB and the US dollars and the
Group itself, the Group has adjusted its financing strategy since
September 2015 to increase the PRC subsidiaries’ proportion
of onshore financing and to reduce their foreign currencies
financing. Apart from the CCS and IRS arrangements, the Group
has not entered into significant hedging activities to hedge against
the exposure to foreign currency risk.
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cHERRE(E)

SNERBR(E)

REBER2017F %20164 12 A 31
HUANE(FEARE ) SHERN A H T
EeREE RekReSEY -
BRARBEIEMMEEEEEN
THBE FEEERENERGF
&9 B E 4R & BF 7 3R MY 31 23,
28, 33,3437 °

REEH WABEMEHRFT
B mMARBHBRET - AR
BB RARELBETY BIFHE B
B4.1% - 3.2% N88% (2016 F - 7
B B45% - 08%%4.3%) KFE
S BEFI AR B & Mg 00, B A
R 45,287,0007L(2016 FF : A B
140,073,000 7T)

BREESMBRIIELBRENGEE
BHBREZH Y EARAEBHAAR
ZERGE 2SR TENEER
% M ET A E A # E (BRI R %K)
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FEINE R IBERRARET—FE
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HAEE 2016 FHF °
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44,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Details of the Group's available-for-sale financial assets, cash and
cash equivalents, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables denominated
in currencies other than RMB as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
are set out in notes 23, 28, 33, 34 and 37 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of RMB/
US$, RMB/NTD and RMB/EUR had strengthened/weakened by
4.1%, 3.2% and 8.8% respectively (2016: 4.5%, 0.8% and
4.3% respectively) with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit for the year and retained profits would have been
RMB45,287,000 (2016:RMB140,073,000) higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to Group's exposure
to currency risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. The stated changes in foreign currency represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the next annual end
of the reporting period. The analysis was performed on the same
basis for 2016.
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cHERRE(E)
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RUTEHRLRBEEESASETY
MEREE - RITEHRIEEEEZ
FRHANERESNEDFSAEE
HHRSREN KRR LD AEN
XERk- - HRABEE  ~AEEH
REG R RB B IRIE MR B RS E
EEEERIBEERBEEE L
]~

REBEH A —LCCSKIRSZ &
o WEAEAEG TR SRS
AR 1,000,000,000 7T (A L8B4
8 7160,803,000 % 7T ) B 7F FI| &
ZHEREBEAETZEE  REEH
F5+80,000,000% T 2 ¥ BIEE A
EBMEE  E—EBEEHIR LA
T34 - BFIRIBHIFIRZ X S F| R
HIMZHEIN - REBRBETERD
RS W HRIRERENARE
BF R - REEH - £EEIRS
MCCSHEZEE  AEEEETEH
R7EHRB11% (20164 : 36 % )&
ET7%(20164F : 33%) °

REEH KEEEIRSKCCSEEZ
B MABEMEERFTE
BITEREE EEBRFEAAH
1£100(20164F : 75) &2 » KREE
BRI RRBEF AR 18
AR #64,212,0007T(2016 % : &
A I A R 38,186,000T) °

BREESMBREMNERFENRNT IR
EHWERARTEEAERFEA
Gz T AMFEEPR 100
(2016 - 75) ZH B 2 AFA HAEREK
EEENENERBAEZET —FE
EERAZAREMIEZEE - o
EAEE 016 EAEE

44,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank balances and interest-
bearing borrowings. Bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates and fixed interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively. For interest-bearing borrowings,
the Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of
fixed and floating rate debts, monitor closely its interest rate
exposure and the level of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings
in consideration of economic atmosphere and the strategies of the
Group.

The Group has entered into a number of CCS and IRS
arrangements which have the economic effect of converting
certain fixed rate interest bearing notes with notional amounts
totaling RMB1,000,000,000 (equivalent to US$160,803,000 at the
date of arrangements) into floating rate borrowings denominated
in US$ and simultaneously converting notional amounts totaling
UsS$80,000,000 into fixed rate borrowings as further detailed in
note 34 above. Apart from the CCS and IRS arrangements, the
Group has not entered into significant hedging activities to hedge
against the exposure to cash flow and fair value interest rate risk.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s borrowings at
fixed rate of interest was 11% (2016: 36%), and reduced to 7%
(2016: 33%) upon taken into consideration the effects of the IRS
and CCS.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been 100
(2016: 75) basis point higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits
would decrease/increase by RMB64,212,000 (2016: decrease/
increase by RMB38,186,000) upon taken into consideration the
effects of the IRS and CCS.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the year
and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for all
financial instruments in existence during the year. The 100 (2016:
75) basis point increase or decrease represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual end of the reporting period. The
analysis was performed on the same basis for 2016.
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44, SRERREZE(E) 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
EERK Credit risk

AEENEERRIEZEREREAS
RESEFEY BURERREME
WERK - REBAR D B HEART
FRMRERBEEENHFRE
AEERNBERSREERRBERE
BEOMBEHEE AHEEERR
BY T FEEANERERR -

REBZHEHEANFNDABESHE -
AEBARRBERUNEEHEZE
LTERERINEELEILIFE
HEE - ERFPERZERTHER
B-RIBER - BETEIEEN
i o NEBEGTEEZERUKIER
B2 B ERNRZREAR

RNEEZ HEKFERNEERR
RERRZHFTEN  HER2ZE
ERBESHAHEEEZEREME-
REWAHZEEEEG UEM KK
o EEREREMEREZR -
ENBTERCHEEE  EFR
BRHSHHFLRBEERNEHR
e REER ASEERERZK
BEHEARAKERAZBUERE
B R FEWATHAM B A R SR IBE A5
ZEERBEHREH R R40.05%
(20164 : # ) & 100% (2016 FF :
/) o
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The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and cash
equivalent, trade and other receivables. Substantially all of the
Group's pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
were deposited in the creditworthy global financial institutions
and state-controlled financial institutions in the PRC, which
management considers they are without significant credit risk.

The majority of the Group’s sales are conducted on a cash
basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that sales
of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade on
credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject to
periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. Receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other receivables arises from default
of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these receivables. The credit quality of the
counterparties is assessed by taking into account their financial
position, credit history and other factors. Individual credit limits
are set based on the assessment of the credit quality. Given the
repayment history, the directors are of the opinion that the risk of
default by these counterparties is not significant. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group had a concentration of credit risk as
40.05% (2016: Nil) of the total debt investment and amount due
from former subsidiaries which was due from the Group’s largest
debtor, and 100% (2016: Nil) of the total debt investment and
amount due from former subsidiaries which was due from the
Group's five largest debtors.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objectives when managing liquidity risk are to
maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
credit facilities. Also, the Group's policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements, in particular those
relating to capital expenditure and repayments of debts. At the
end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected
that the Group had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.
Details of the preparation of consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis are set out in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments
is summarised below:

LN
153 1§50 BESER
REXER BE2ER  More than
Within More than 2 years
1 year 1 year but
oron  butwithin less than SENL it
demand 2 years Syears  Over5years Total
ARRTR  AREFT  ARETR  AREFT ARETZ
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000
R2017% At 31 December 2017
124318
ERER Tradle payables 7119423 - - - 7119423
EBERR Other payables and deposits received
Bl 5,748,430 - - - 5,748,430
BE[RE Interest-bearing horrowings 8,064,896 3,669,015 2,819,589 565253 15118753
CCSRIRS 2% CCSand RS arrangements
(FEER) (net settled) (5174) - - - (5,174)
20,927,575 3,669,015 2,819,589 565,253 27,981,432
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44. SREREZEE) 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
REELEREZ) Liquidity risk (Continued)

1ERE, 1B F VRN E
BELER {BE2ER [B%E5ER
Within More than More than

1 year 1 year 2 years
oron but within but less SEE H
demand 2years  thanSyears  Over5years Total

ANEEFT  AREFT  AREFT AREFT ARETT
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
(#27)) (#27)) (#27)) (#E7)) (#27))
(Restateq) (Restateq) (Restateq) (Restateq) (Restateq)

#0165 At 31 December 2016
124318
AR Trade payables 6,595,355 - - — 659535
HfEARR Other payables and deposits received
Bl 5373310 - - - 5373310
EREE Interest-bearing borrowings 9,347,303 2521197 4,055,352 541346 16471198
CCSRIRSZZH(FHEEE)  CCSand RS arangements (net settled) (21,100 (6,654) - - (27,761)
21,294,861 2,520,543 4,055,352 541,346 28,412,102
ERREeEE IRE TERATEK The amounts repayable under loan agreements that include a
1B S T A B R E skl B B 2 clause that gives the lenders the unconditional right to call the
B HEEESBEREWEEA loan at any time are classified under the “on demand” bracket.
[REJoER ER - BEEEW T8 In this regard, interest-bearing borrowings of RMB4,178,790,000
HEGASTFEESERER (2016: RMB1,379,272,000) as at the end of the financial period
A R #4,178,790,0007T(2016 - A have been so classified even though the directors do not expect
K 1,379,272,000C ) REEE BE % that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand repayment
Pt FRERE - AEEEWNEKRRBER and thus these borrowings would be repaid according to the
HEEREEERAOT following schedule as set out in the loan agreements:
2017 2016
AREFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(4 ZE2))
(Restated)
BEREE Interest-bearing borrowings
196K Within 1 year 3,247,212 706,941
F25F In the second year 1,007,808 14,912
EIFEFESF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BEER2F) — 695,696
4,255,020 1,417,549
B EERERAR
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45. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

S
=
|
[
EI‘—P
]

(@) UAAEBHEIBENEREERS (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

&

™ & 2 % 7R2017F 12 A 31 The following table presents the financial assets and

H B(EEGEUBREE liabilities measured at fair value or required to disclose their

ANEBRI A BESEIM fair value in these consolidated financial statements on a

BTN ALBESHEEEN= recurring basis at 31 December 2017 across the three levels

BERT - LAABE= of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value

BEHRTERREEAALE Measurement, with the fair value measurement categorised

ENeREENRBE  AnE in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is

FTENDREHINEREER significant to the entire measurement. The levels are defined

AEREAXEZHANRE as follows:

& BEASHFEOT -

- F1H(EEAR) A% —  Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
Eo 2 A EEEER active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
TS LEREENEER Group can access at the measurement date;
WEOCRERE)

- E2f%BREEEE—R - Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
RERESN - A EE A within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
BEREERBENEG liability, either directly or indirectly;

A

—  F3IF(HEALR) X —  Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset

BRvEERAENR or liability.
Ao
RENSIZAR
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45. AREEFEE) 45. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
@) UAAEBHEIENEREERSA (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
&E(E) (Continued)
2017 2016
&1 &2 @3 @t fih 332 RA3 o)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARBTL AREFL ARETR ARETL UREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMBO00  RMBO0O0  RMB000  RMB000 | RMBOOO — RMBOOO  RMBUO0  RMB0O0
(&27) (427) (425) (4Z5)
(Restated)  (Restated) — (Restateq) — (Restateq)
BE Assets
JHHE? Available-for-sale
2BEE fiancial assets
-REEs - Investment funds - — 504359 504359 - — 48705 487,054
—EEMRAES - Unlisted equity securities - - M2 12 - — 130757 130757
= — 615081 615081 - — 617811 61781
B Liabilities
KA EENER  Fnancal Lisbilties at fai vale
FERFEES  thoughprofitor foss
2HEE
-Ef5ERE - Contingent consideration payable - - 5,258 5,258 - - - -
~JHERALHA - Derivatives not
IEm designated as
fETE hedging instruments — 37448 - 37448 — 152,65 — 152650
= 37,448 5,258 42,706 — 152,650 — 152,650
MR2017ER2016FEE RN » 38 During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there
EHEBERAI1ELLR2 2 were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
B S EEERBREZELR measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair
3skAR/RIIEH o value measurements.
B EERERAR

232 TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



FAETSIRERMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHZE2017F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

BETE(E)

DAREBEIERNEREERE
B#E)
M2017F K 2016 F N FE E H

IERR B EHEABIIZM
HEEBMT

45. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

The details of the movements of the recurring fair value
measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016
are shown as follows:

217 2016
&g af BE 8f8
FLT F )
kad%s  BAAEERE kAEs  EAUERE
REES Unlisted  Contingent REES Unlisted ~ Contingent
Investment equity  consideration Investment equity  consideration
funds securities payable funds securities payable

ABETL  ARETT  AREFZ | ABFFT  AREFT  ARETT

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RIB000 RVB000 RVB000
(427)) (427)) (427))
(Restateq) (Restateq) (Restateq)

RER Atbeginning of the year 487,054 130,757 - 391,429 101,29 -
N Purchases 16,983 - - 67,521 - -
PSR A At completion day of acquisition - - (5,690) - - -
e Disposal (79,484) - - (35,243) - -
Bi5lz BhE Total gains or (lsses)
¥ (5%) recognised:
-B& ~in profit or loss - - 32 - - -
- B2 ARG ~in other comprehensive income 107,346 (11,949) - 35,436 22,406 -
ERER Exchange difference (27,540) (8,086) - 27911 7,056
REER At the end of the
reporting period 504,359 110,722 (5.258) 487,054 130,757 -
REEEHELH Total gain or (losses) for
Et2ENEER the year reclassified from
B80S (B%)  other comprehensive
income on disposals 21,080 - - 2,132 - -
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45. DREEFEE)

(@) HUAABEEIIRNEREENRSE
&%)

ERERB2RARBIZZDN
BEAEZGERMNE S
A

() FARLHE REEE

HZE2017F12A318 -
AEBEBFNETHEE S
REEMREESBER
DERANEBEERNS3
BILEES(2016F - 1
B4R 5 3) °

ERB3ER—IHEER
THARERZERNKE
KEREERREES
MEZHREESHEF
REfhET - RAISEB =
(2016 %F : ={E) 2 EE
S ZRRERBEESHT
WENRENAREBS
e FTEHRBI3ZIHER
SHREEMEREMIE L
TRE - EWIRENDR
BHETRLEZEMISME -
MIELTIRENRARBEZ
HEBESKIEN A
MEREAR - HigRER
MITRBE & RERTEANLN
HERMIERE - FHH3E
ETRARNAAEREE
— U IER AR T IS ES
S ETRZBE  BE
FEBHERELXH-18%
F29% (20164 - 0%
F29%) AR AFZ
FHWAEERI66EE
47 A1 (20164F - 13115
F4861F) ~ Al LB A A
ZEFHWHEER21EE
10415 (2016 4F : 1.5
F761%) e
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45,

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and significant inputs used in
Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurement

(i)

Available-for-sale: Investment funds

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s available-for-
sale financial assets comprise four investment funds
which are categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (20716 four Level 3).

The fair value of one of the investment funds in
Level 3 is estimated based on the net asset value
of the investment fund reported to the investors
by the investment manager as at the end of the
reporting period. For the remaining three (2076:
three) investment funds in Level 3, their fair values are
estimated based on the fair values of the companies
invested by the funds. All of the investment funds in
Level 3 included both listed investments and unlisted
investments. The fair values of listed investments are
estimated with reference to quoted market price,
while the fair values of unlisted investments are
estimated by the respective investment managers
using valuation techniques, including mainly price/
earnings (P/E) multiple model, price/sales (P/S)
multiple model and discounted cash flows model. In
determining the fair value of unlisted investments,
it includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The expected
annual growth rates of unquoted companies invested
by the funds ranging from -18% to 29% (2076: 0%
to 29%), average price/earnings (P/E)and average
price/sales (P/S) multiples of comparable companies
of the corresponding industries ranging from 16.6
to 47.4 times (2016: 13.1 to 48.6 times) and 2.1
to 10.4 times (2076 1.5 to 7.6 times) respectively.
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45. DREEE(E)

(a)

URRBEIRNEREERE
&%)

ERAERN=Z2RAEEE
ZIEERMMERBAE)

(i) ARG E : I LTRAE
7

fEH A3 2 — BN A
REMIE LTRAFLF
NABERHREELENA
TR EREEE - 515
FEMZBAESZNAAR
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45. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and significant inputs used in
Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Available-for-sale: Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities in Level
3 newly invested in current year are determined
by the investment manager using price/sales (P/S)
multiple model. In determining the fair value of the
unlisted equity securities, it includes assumptions that
are not supported by observable market prices or
rates, including expected annual growth rates of 0%
(2016: 29%) and comparable companies’ average P/S
multiples of 1.5 times (2076: 1.48 times).

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

The fair values of IRS and CCS contracts, which are
categorised as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy,
determined based on the present value of the
estimated cash flows based on the terms and maturity
of each contract, taking into account the current
interest rates, foreign exchange spot and forward
rates and interest rate curves.

(iv)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Contingent consideration payable

The fair value of contingent consideration payable in
Level 3 is determined by using the income approach
based on the expected payment amounts and their
associated probabilities. When appropriate, it is
discounted to present value. In the opinion of the
directors, changing one or more of the inputs to
reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not
change the fair value significantly.
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45. DAEEEE) 45. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
() UAABEIENSREERA (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
E(E) (Continued)
FERTEEMARRE ST Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
inputs
TR3AREAEZTENAER The sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable inputs
R A RS BB T for Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
MEER
AEEREE
Et2ERE
hEg
Impact on fair
RW17E ATBREGANERY value and the
128318 MMEENSRE Group's other
ZARE (RREMEZRETR) comprehensive
Fair value at 31 Sensitivity of fair income for
December 2017 fEfERSE value to changes in FENTHEE the year
g ARBEFT Valuation FUBRHA unobservable inputs (assuming Reasonably — AREF7T
Description AMB000  techniques Unobservable input  other factors remain unchanged) possible range RMB'000
HHESHER
Available-for-sale financial assets
REES 504359 TRBEL EREHERE FERBEREER +-10% +5,513
EDpERE R
Investment funds PIE multiple Expected annual The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher the
growth rates fair value and vice versa;
AEBRRAZ ARBAFZ TEmRELS 4% 4780
THmRx ERABEER KRR
Average PIE ratio of The higher average P/E ratio of comparable companies, the
comparable companies  higher the fair value and vice versa;
iR EfFERE ERpBEER R +1-5% +1-4,612
PIS multiple Expected annual The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher the
growth rates fair value and vice versa;
TLRARZTHTE AHAAEZTIREE - 2% +-13,325
ki FEOLLEE R2RE
Average PISratioof - The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies, the
comparable companies  higher the fair value and vice versa;
5 FRAES ;8 Bt FERE RELENRREEREER +-5% 415,536
ERpEEER  R2TA-
Unlisted equity securities 110,722 PIS multiple Expected annual growth  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher the
rates fair value and vice versg;
THAINTATEE  TRRANTHTERER  ARABEEE RZA +33% 436907

Average P/S ratio of #:
comparable companies  The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies, the
higher the fair value and vice versa;

EEEERARAT
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45. DAREEE(E)

(@) HUXAEEIIRNEMEERE

45. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

&(E) (Continued)
FERTEHEHARRBREZETH Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
(%) inputs (Continued)
MMEER
AREAEE
Et2ERE
20165 nEE
12A318 Impact on fair
ZARE FUBRBANERY value and the
Fair value at 31 MEEHSRE Group's other
December 2016 (RREMEZRETE) comprehensive
NEEFT Sensitivity of fair income for
ABO00 fEESA value to changes in RENTREE the year
it (#27))  Valuation LN unobservable inputs (assuming Reasonably NREFT
Description (Restateq) techniques Unobservable input  other factors remain unchanged) possible range RVB000
THHESHER
Available-for-sale financial assets
REES 48705 TRERE FRRMERE FRRBEREZHNE +-10% 4432
ERRBHR RIMA:
Investment funds P/E muttiple Expected annual growth  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher the
rates fair value and vice versa;
AHHRRAL AHRAA T RESS +-1% +743
TamRE EDnEEES  R2TE:
Average P/E ratio of The higher average PIE ratio of comparable companies, the
comparable companies  higher the fair value and vice versa;
THERY BHELRE EDABEER RO 5% 41,938
PIS muttiple Expected annual The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher the
growth rates fair value and vice versa;
RRRAZTITE TRAN TTEE 3% #5763
% FEOLREE R2AR
Average P/S ratio of The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies, the
comparable companies  higher the fair value and vice versa;
S LTARS AR REERE EBEENEREEREER 5% #5070
ERRBEHR RFA -
Unlisted equity securities 130,757 P/S multiple Expected annual growth  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher the
rates fair value and vice versa;
ALARNTETEE  ALARMTHNEEER  ARABEER RN +-34% +/-44,.324
Average P/S ratio of f:
comparable companies  The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies, the
higher the fair value and vice versa;
FREDEIZAR
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45,
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45,

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation processes used in Level 3 fair value
measurement

In estimating the fair value of investment fund and unlisted
equity securities within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,
the Group uses market observable-data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
obtains the valuations provided by the respective investment
managers or trust administrator for the investment funds.

The Group's finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds for
financial reporting purposes. The team reports directly to
the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management, investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds at
least once every year. At each financial year end, the finance
department works closely with the investment managers or
trust administrator of the investment funds to establish the
appropriate valuation technigues and inputs to the valuation
models, verifies all major unobservable inputs in the
valuations, assesses valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report and holds discussions
with the investment managers or trust administrator of the
investment funds.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

In the opinion of the directors, except for the Listed
Unsecured Notes as described in the note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements, no other financial assets
and liabilities of the Group are carried at amount materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2017 and
2016.
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46. 7RI

BRRAGEEVBEBRREMIHORE
ZAENE - REEE THIHERE

46. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the commitments disclosure elsewhere in

the consolidated financial statements, the Group has the

commitments as follow:

(a) EBEARXHAIE (a) Capital expenditure commitments
2017 2016
AREFT AREFIT
BRI R R EE Contracted but not provided for: RMB’000 RMB’000
(4 &E3))
(Restated)
BEMEER Expenditures on properties,
BERAX plant and equipment 927,244 797,850
REES Investment funds 106,258 128,554
1,033,502 926,404
(b) HEEBENEE (b) Commitments under operating leases
AEBBFRBA The Group as lessee

REER  REFAHE K
B AEERXKEHRE
MEREREHIRIT

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases, which are payable as follows:

2017 2016

AREFTT ABWEF T

RMB’000 RMB'000

(4 &E5)

(Restated)

196 A Within one year 294,644 293,722
MRE2FEESFEM  In the second to fifth years inclusive

(BREEE2F) 477,436 530,851

5F A% After five years 105,185 142,357

877,265 966,930
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46. EYE(E) 46. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
AEFZHBA The Group as lessor
AEEALFLENEEHREE The Group leases out certain of its investment properties
THREEEME - FHHEL under operating leases with average lease terms of 2-3 years
HR2EIFRAERELH T and with options to renew the leases upon expiry at new
EARF AT AL TR - R terms. The future aggregate minimum rental receivables
ol Rz &EFY - B =E under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
ZRKEE 2 RERW T
2017 2016
AREFT ARETT
RMB000 RMB’000
(4 Z3)
(Restated)
1R Within one year 34,375 33,214
ME2FZESFEM  In the second to fifth years inclusive
(BREEE2F) 15,329 29,975
49,704 63,189
47. tkEBEF 47. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
BRAEEHBEHRY BE Conforming to current year's presentation, the gross rental income
201612 A31B Yo% ER from investment properties of RMB27,924,000 that was included
H b U 25538 B 1248 M B 8 in other revenue as shown in the consolidated income statement
AL U A A AR 27,924,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016 has been reclassified under
FEHHBAFAMWZEARK « Bop revenue. In addition, expenses of RMB323,240,000 that were
EBZE2016F12 8318 264K included in other operating expenses and other net income of
HEN AREHMKLERER RMB812,371,000 as shown in the consolidated income statement
TETEMAL ARK323,240,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016 have been reclassified
TRHEMEBEWRABRZ AR K under other net income (expenses). The revised presentation
812,371,0007C ' CEHHEEZEM reflected more appropriately the nature of these items. These
B A (T H) o BETE 25 5HE reclassifications have no effect on the reported financial position,
FEAMNBR T EEEENME - results or cash flows of the Group.

EUEEM D BREAKERENIH
I - RESREREIETE -
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48. ARR PRI K

RIBFERADEH BB KE R
B3R ARBMBHRARERHEBZ

RN

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the

Company and the movements in its reserves are set out below:

2017 2016
izt AR¥TT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(4&E31)
(Restated)
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
I - #ISS AR Property, plant and equipment 196 356
MIB A R Interest in subsidiaries 11,562,066 10,590,571
A E 2 & BB E  Available-for-sale financial assets 522,587 506,484
12,084,849 11,097,411
REBEE Current assets
TET B R FEMFRIE  Prepayments and other receivables 27,751 35,095
W B AR ZERFKIE Amount due from a subsidiary 2,722,521 1,875,285
IRITHEB MRS Bank balances and cash 229,300 507,835
2,979,572 2,418,215
wmEE Total assets 15,064,421 13,515,626
RENEIZER
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48. ﬂiﬁ\ﬁ]z,ﬂijﬁ%ﬂﬁ/ﬂ,ﬁ(ég) 48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
2017 2016
i3 AR¥Fr ARBTFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(#4FEZI)
(Restated)
BRERRAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
AR #E Capital and reserves
AR Issued capital 235,053 234,767
B m (B Share premium 611,736 523,278
& Reserves 48(a) 6,538,442 2,679,243
48 % < Total equity 7,385,231 3,437,288
kRBARE Non-current liabilities
BRAREE Financial liabilities at fair value
B AR R AE B 5 AR through profit or loss
RENEHEBE 37,448 152,650
RHEEEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 4,105,080 5,249,431
BTRMEE Employee benefit obligations 47,442 109,161
4,189,970 5,511,242
REAE Current liabilities
E R SR Other payables 68,346 74,765
g Taxation 28,000 —
BEEEZ Current portion of interest-bearing
BVERER 5> borrowings 3,392,874 4,492,331
3,489,220 4,567,096
wmaes Total liabilities 7,679,190 10,078,338
BRAREE Total equity and liabilities 15,064,421 13,515,626

M2018F3I A0 ESTEHEN Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20

REEL WA TATIRERES March 2018 and signed on its behalf by
FLFE M Wei Ing-Chou FH H#& — BB Junichiro Ida
E & Director ZEZ Director
EEERARAT
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48. ARFZPBRRR(E)

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(a) fEE<2H (@) Movements of the reserves
RAEE MEBRE REEfRE BRERE
fife EffERE ffa fifs  Share-
Capital Remeasur-  Exchange Investment based RE&RF
redemption ement translation revaluation  payment  Retained B8
reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  Profits Total
AEEFL AREFL ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT AREFZ
RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB0O0  RMB000  RMB000
W016F1A18 (BE7]) At 1 January 2016 (Restated) 400 (85,973) 381,531 48706 382,542 813,070 1,540,276
RER R Profit for the year — — — — — 1,873,949 1,873,949
KEEEMEENE Other comprehensive income (loss)

(B8) for the year — 53827 (46317) 13,05 — — 20566
BaEBROI 7R Equity settled share-based transactions - — - — 55157 — 55157
REBRETEBT R0 Shares issued under share option scheme — - — — (4,220) — (4,220)
BRREAH Shares option lapsed — — — — (3,387) 3,387 —
BHOERIRE2015EREHES 2015 final dividend approved and paid - — - — — (806,485  (806,485)
20168128318 (BE5) At 31 December 2016 (Restated) 400 (32,146) 335214 61,762 430,092 1,883,921 2,679,243
R2017%E1818 (BE3) At 1 January 2017 (Restated) 400 (32,146) 335,214 61,762 430,092 1,883,921 2,679,243
RER R Profit for the year - - - - — 4,460,695 4,460,695
AEEHMPENS Other comprehensive income (loss)

(B#&) for the year — 28247 (158,036) 86,265 - — (4352
BREZERNZ 2508 Equity settled share-based transactions - - - — 44234 - 434
REBREERT 2R, Shares issuied under share option scheme - - - - (2135) — (21357
RN Share option lapsed - — — — (485 24852 —
EILERRE2016ERERE 2016 final dividend approved and paid - - — - —  (580,849) (580,849)
R2017E128318 At 31 December 2017 400 (3,899) 177,178 148,027 428,117 5,788,619 6,538,442

R2017F12A31H - KARAIA 5
Bl REBRERE BN RRNDRE
2 & %A A R%6,400,355,0007C
(2016 4F : A K& #2,407,199,000

Jc) e

At 31 December 2017, the Company’s distributable reserves

including retained profits and share premium amounted to
RMB6,400,355,000 (2016: RMB2,407,199,000).
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49. FEMEAT 49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
THBFERAARIEENEEES The following included the principal subsidiaries directly or
ZXENBAR BEERAEZER indirectly held by the Company and, in the opinion of directors,
FIEAFEWRFZEEANTE - 348 are significant to the revenue for the year or form a substantial
KAEBREENEENLH - EF portion of total assets of the Group. The directors consider that
RAFNNEMBATINER @ giving details of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of
RIRTLR ° excess length.

HMmAL
¥
Place of HEMER/TRITRA FEAR B RELL B
8 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# LiE:3
Directly Indirectly
RAEAERREVVERRFE HERLEE uss2 100% - RAER
Master Kong Instant Foods (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
REERRMERAT i US$72,000,000 - 100% BHERHEEREE
Tianjin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
BMEZERRERAF B US$31,000,000 - 100% RERHEHER
Guangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles

* MMBERRAERAA HE US$151,500,000 - 100% HERHEEHFEE

* Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale

of instant noodles

* EREGRMERAR HE US$3,000,000 - 100% BERHEREE

* Master Kong (Kunming) Convenient PRC Manufacture and sale

Food Co., Ltd. of instant noodles
EERRRARERAT HE US$17,000,000 - 100% REREEHEE
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. # PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
REEZRMARAR il US$17,800,000 - 100% BHERHEREE
Wuhan Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
AXERRmERAR i US$44,300,000 - 100% BUEREEHFE
Xian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
EEEHRmARAR hE US$5,000,000 - 100% BUEREEHFE
Qingdao Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
RREEGRMERAR HE US$11,200,000 - 100% BEREEHFRE
Harbin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
BEEGRMERAR e US$4,500,000 - 100% BEREEFRE
Fujian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale

EEEERARAT
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49. TEMBAR(E) 49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
EmA
EEME
Place of HEMEX/TRIRE P45 R A L A
28 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# B3
Directly Indirectly
* ARERRMERAR e US$14,000,000 - 100% BUEREEHEE
* NanlJing Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
© REEOFR) AERMERAT e US$6,000,000 - 100% BUEREEHREE
* Master Kong (Shenyang) Convenient PRC Manufacture and sale
Food Co., Ltd. * of instant noodles
* KHERRRERAR el US$17,000,000 - 100% BUEREEHEE
* Chengdu Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
* VB (ZE) RARRERAR el US$5,000,000 - 100% BUERHEEHFEE
* Master Kong (Chongging) Convenient Food ~ PRC Manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd. of instant noodles
* BNEERABRAA R US$50,000,000 - 100% HERBEEFFEE
* Zhengzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
EERRRMAERAHA HWERHESER
Chongging Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$22,000,000 — 100%  Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
RN E 7 B (P ) BRAT e US$227,500,000 - 100%  HEER
Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment PRC Investment holding

(China) Co., Ltd.

FREDEEEH BV BIRA R RERLHS US$1 100% - REER
Master Kong Bakery (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
BMEFRRARE (TE)BERAF el US$98,900,000 - 100% ®ERK
Master Kong Instant Foods Investment PRC Investment holding

(China) Co., Ltd.

REERRGERDA HE US$37,000,000 - 100% SUERHEFERD
Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale

of instant food

MMEERRERAR e US$18,400,000 - 100% HERHESRRR
Hangzhou Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant food

FRESR® BV)BERAF EBEUHE US$55,263 90.50% - REER
Master Kong Beverages (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
FREDEIZAR
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49. TEMBLTE)

49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

HL
EEME
Place of HEMER/TRIRE FE A5 R L A
Eg04 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
B &
Directly Indirectly
RAERREREBA FEHE US$10,527.37 25.4% 4751%  BREZRR
Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holdmg Co., Ltd. Cayman Islands Investment holding
* RERRRBERAF e US$60,840,000 — 7291% BEREERM
* Tianjin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
BINERRRERAR el US$20,000,000 - 7291% HEREERS
Guangzhou Tlngjln Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* INERRRERRT Bl US$38,100,000 — 7291% BENHESR
* Hangzhou Tlngjm Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* FRRVE () R ABRA el US$28,350,000 — 7291% BERHESRR
* Master Kong (Hangzhou) Beverage Co., Ltd.*  PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* RERRRBEBRAF e US$73,500,000 — 7291% BERHESRR
* Wuhan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
EEEERMAERAT e US$24,000,000 — 7291% BERHEESRD
Chongging ng in Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* EERERAERAT e US$15,000,000 — 7291% BEREERM
* Qingdao Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
BRERRRAERAR hEl US$13,700,000 - 7291% HEREERSD
Fujian Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* REERERAERLT hEl US$33,000,000 — 7291% BEREERR
* Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* RRREEZRABRAA R US$12,000,000 — 7291% HEREESM
* Kunming Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BHNERRBBBRAF e US$24,000,000 — 7291% BERHESRR
* Zhengzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BMNIERRABRAR FEl US$16,000,000 — 7291% BEREESRM
* Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages

EEMEERARA R
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49. TEMBAT(E)

49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

EmA
EEME
Place of HEMEX/TRIRE P45 R A L A
28 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# B3
Directly Indirectly
* REE(ER) RRBRAF e US$41,000,000 — 7291% BERHEESRD
* Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co. Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* REE(AR) RRBRAF e US$48,500,000 — 7291% BEREESRR
* Master Kong (Xi'an) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BRI (RE) RRBRAR el US$31,800,000 — 7291% BERHEERG
* Master Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BNEZRGERD R US$36,500,000 — 7291% BEREESRM
* Yangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BNERSRERAT i US$59,300,000 — 7291% BERHESRR
* Guangzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* B (SEAE)RRERAR e US$12,000,000 — 7291% BERHESRR
* Master Kong (Wulumugi) Beverage Co., Ltd.*  PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BRERRBERAF e US$12,000,000 — 7291% BERHEESRD
* Baotou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BYRRRAERAA e US$28,500,000 — 7291% BEREESRR
* Langfang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BNEERRERA el US$41,500,000 — 7291% BERHEERG
* Suzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
EEERRRE(PE)ERAF h US$87,702,000 — 7291%  #ERK
Master Kong Beverage Investment PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
PERROR(FR)A Bk Uss$2 — 7291%  REER
China Bottlers (Hong Kong) L|m|ted Hong Kong Investment holding
BE(TE)REBRAR e US$358,216,517 — 7291% REERK
PepsiCo Investment (China) Limited PRC Investment holding
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49. TEMBLTE)

49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

EMmA
EEME
Place of HEMER/TRIRE FE A5 R L A
Eg04 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
B &
Directly Indirectly
BERM(EMBRAF e US$197,800,000 — 7291% HERHEERM
PepsiCo Beverages (Guangzhou) Limited PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
BMBETLHMERAE e US$66,650,000 — 7291% BEREERM
Guangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited* of beverages
* ERBENERRERAF e US$14,119,449 — 4739% EHEREERD
* Beijing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* REAFWEASHERAR hEl US$20,000,000 — 41.92% HERHEERRD
* Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited # of beverages
* REASWERHERAR Bl RMB100,000,000 — 64.16% BERHESRR
* Tianjin PepsiCo Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
KBEERHERAF e US$6,600,000 — 7291% BERHESRR
Chengdu PepsiCo Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
BHBEHHBRAT e US$1,350,000 — 7291% HERHEERM
Lanzhou Pepsi Beverages Company Limited #  PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* EEAFAREHERAR e US$17,845,000 — 6883% BERHERM
* Chongging Pepsi-Tianfu Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Co., Limited of beverages
RYBEATEHRBRRF el US$12,250,000 - 7291% HEREERSD
Shenzhen Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* MNBETERHERAR e US$10,400,000 — 36.46% BENHESRR
* Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
ROBETERHERAR HhE US$28,000,000 — 7291% BERHESRR
Changsha Pepsi-Cola Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited of beverages
EUIEEDIES /Gl ONG| e RMB19,764,000 — 7291% BERHESRR
Fuzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
BERM(EE)BRAF e US$9,000,000 — 51.04% HERFESR
Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang) Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages

EEMEERARA R
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49. FEMBAT(E) 49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
EmA
EEME
Place of HMERBREITRA P45 R A L A
28 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# B3
Directly Indirectly
JER V) BRAR HERLES US$1,000 100% — RERK
Tingtong (BVI) Limited BVI Investment holding
EE(FAEE)ERERAR FRERE US$2,118,334 — 50.01% ®EEKR
Tingtong (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. Cayman Islands Investment holding
LERENRERAT i US$5,000,000 — 50.01% SRR
Shanghai Tingtong Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC Logistics services
Fa(REEZE)BRERAR RRELES US$50,000 100% —  AREZREAE
Tingyi (BVI) Int'l Co., Ltd. BVI Purchasing and sales
agent for the Group
EHREARAT RERAES US$147,232,000 — 100% HAER
Wealth City Investment Limited BVI Investment holding
PEITRRER AR AR HKERAES Uss1 100% — RAER
China Dingya Holding Limited BVI Investment holding
TBEHERERERRAR H US$135,000,000 - 100% REDEEERS
Shanghai Jingiu Minghao PRC Provision of properties
Property Co., Ltd. # management service
REEREAERDA e US$200,000 100% —  REEERH
Tianjin Tingyu Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC Provision of
management services
* HEMBARGEMAETRIIAL A * These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
(ED 2 - companies.
# X EIED (A5 4 English translation for identification purposes only.
HEMAREEBRBREBENZHE DA The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered as
BRI R AR BN - wholly-owned foreign enterprises.
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P.O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

TEEK I
B _EEH 201103
BT

R 1688 5%

BEAMNER

BB EEIE 185
FIREIS 56185607
5% 0 (852) 2511 1911
fH : (852) 2511 7911
BT : info@tingyi.com

#a35
www.masterkong.com.cn
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/tingyi

ErmkRSE
EEBERSHBRAR
FEHLRIR - 0322

EFETFEFEE S Level 1
RGRIR : TCYMY

AEFITEE
FBHEMRYE 0 910322

EEMEERARA R

250 TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
No.1688, Wuzhong Road

Minhang District

Shanghai City 201103

PRC

HONG KONG OFFICE

Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2511-1911

Fax: (852) 2511-7911

E-mail: info@tingyi.com

WEBSITE
www.masterkong.com.cn
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/tingyi

PLACE OF LISTING OF SHARES AND TRADING CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Security code: 0322

ADR Level 1 Programme
Symbol: TCYMY

Taiwan Depositary Receipts
Security Code: 910322
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HITEE
REMNEE(EELR)
FRE—BEE(FEFR)
WAL

RE\IHRE

RELEE

R REE

BYFHITES
BEREE
FREBEE
RER S E

FEHERNDBFETAR

Genesis Trust & Corporate Services Ltd.
2nd Floor, Compass Centre

P.O. Box 448, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1106

Cayman Islands

BEROBFETIE

EABSELARAR
BE

B EFRER 1835
AL 1T7HE
1712-1716 5548

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou (Chairman)
Mr. Junichiro Ida (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Lin Chin-Tang

Mr. Teruo Nagano

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming

Mr. Koji Shinohara

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock
Mr. Hiromu Fukada

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Genesis Trust & Corporate Services Ltd.

2nd Floor, Compass Centre

P.O. Box 448, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1106

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China

ANZ Bank

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of Ningbo

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ

Credit Agricole Corporate & Investment Bank
China Construction Bank

China Merchants Bank

China Minsheng Bank

CITI Bank

Deutsche Bank

Development Bank of Japan Inc.
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Metrobank

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

Rabobank

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC)

Westpac Banking Corporation

The above banks are arranged in alphabetical order

LEGAL ADVISERS
Sidley Austin

PRC principal legal advisers:
Baker McKenzie

Haiwen & Partners
AlIBright Law Offices
Zhenghan Lawfirm
JUN&HENG Law Offices

as to Cayman Islands law:
Maples and Calder (Hong Kong) LLP

AUDITOR
Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
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